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City Administrator Report to Mayor & City Council
May 09, 2014, Edition No. 127

WEEKLY UPDATE:

1. IEDA: On May 15th, we will be heading to Des Moines in support of the IEDA
application for funding of the Meeker’s downtown project (hotel, convention
center and parking garage). We are allotted 10-15 minutes to focus on
feasibility and in particular uniqueness. The ISU economic study should be
complete in time for our full application should we be invited to apply. 1
should be back in time for the meeting, but if not Randy Hill will be available.

2. Blue Zones: From Joni: “This (attached) is a very helpful way to explain the
current status of the journey toward “certified community”. We will be in
touch as soon as we know when the state team visit is all set.” In fact, the
Blue Zones team will be visiting on June 24 and 25. The community should
hear 20 days subsequently on our certification.

3. Departments: FYI...I have scheduled weekly tours/staff visits to each of our
facilities. This is a more formal visit than normal, but somewhat
unstructured. I am looking to meet onsite with staff and discuss the
department, facilities, goals, and anything that departments would like to
discuss. I will be attending departmental staff meetings as well.

4. Golf Pro: The new golf pro (Bill Pearse) will be beginning his duties on May
28th. Stop in and say hello to Bill sometime. He and his wife will be moving
from Wisconsin to Muscatine.

5. Sirens: Per Emergency Mangement - we finally have a diagnosis of the
troubled "Garfield School" Siren. It has apparently been struck by lightning
and is completely seized up. It is scheduled to be removed by crane and sent
to an electric motor repair facility. The information will be posted to the
City’s website and new outlets. There is no ETA for repair at this time.

6. Colorado Street: Per Randy Hill - “You asked today about the Colorado Street
construction schedule. So I inquired further with Jim & Jon. And I can tell
you that the contractor is 4-5 weeks behind schedule. The short version of
the delay is because of a redesign of the storm sewer. A private service was
not identified in the initial drawings and this impacted many things resulting
in a redesign of this part of the infrastructure. The matter was further
complicated by the "discovery" of a utility vault at Park Ave. Bottom line is
the storm water is now directed south instead of north (original route) at
Park Ave.What sets the project back the most is the backlog in ordering the
materials to meet the new design requirements. However, the material is on
order (arrival on May 14th); the new design completed; the contractor is
busy in other parts of the construction zone; and once the storm sewer is in
place paving for Phase I will commence.The delay only costs time and not
money. We will make sure to review all invoices from Shoemaker-Haaland so
we are NOT paying for the redesign. If you have any questions please let me
know.”

"I remember Muscatine for its sunsets. I have never seen any

on either side of the ocean that equaled them" — Mark Twain



7. Bonds: Attached is the Final Offering Statement for the bond issue. This
includes the awarded bid information, etc.

8. Parking: Attached is the flyer for this year’s leased parking specials for 2014.
We will also put this in the Journal a few times,have the meter attendants
drop off copies at downtown businesses, and place on our website.

9. EMS: EMS Day - this Saturday from 10am to 2pm at Farm & Fleet...please
come a join the Fire Department and check out the displays.

10.Attached are the handouts from the 5/8 City Council In-Depth meeting.



Community Talking Points after Metrics are Reached

Due to the public-facing nature of our online dashboard feature and our network/reach within each
community, we understand that questions may be asked when metrics show completed or 100% on the
website. The following are suggested talking points for a community after the metrics are reached and
before certification is granted.

After Dashboard Reflects 100% Completion

We're excited to say that our community has completed the hard work to reach our goals in
each sector. We've engaged more than XX number of people and we’re proud of the work of
our community, schools, worksites, restaurants and grocery stores have completed towards
improving well-being.

Our next step is to complete a review with the Blue Zones Project team — that review is set for
DATE/TIME FRAME. This is an opportunity for us to showcase all the hard work we’ve done and
tell our story.

Before Report is Finalized

We recently completed our community review with the Blue Zones Project team, the review
was a huge success and a great opportunity to share all the success we’ve had here in
COMMUNITY. Very soon, we will receive a report based on this visit that details
accomplishments and certification status.

If Corrective Action is Needed

Our community has completed the hard work to reach our goals in each sector, we are now
working with each of those sectors to ensure that their efforts were implemented correctly to
improve the well-being of our community.

After Certification Review is Successful

We are so proud of all the work we’ve done here in COMMUNITY to improve well-being. We
have completed our goals in each sector for Blue Zones Project and have been named a Blue
Zones Community!



City of Muscatine
Leased Parking Spaces Now Available
(5-15-14)

Parking Locations Available

Lot #2 (2" and Pine) — Spaces Available

Lot #4 (Sycamore and Mississippi Drive) — Spaces Available
Lot #7 (3™ Street Across from City Hall) — Spaces Available
Lot #8 (3™ and Cedar) — Waiting List

Current Rates

Regular Annual Lease (July — June each year) $300.00
Lease Fee if Paid Quarterly $87.50 per Quarter
Downtown Residents $75.00 Semi-Annually

Parking Specials for 2014

Annual Lease Renewals for July 1, 2014
If Paid by June 20 $270.00 (10% discount)

New Annual Leases $270.00 — Park Now through June 30 at No
Additional Charge

Quarterly Lease Renewals for July 1, 2014
If Paid by June 20 $75.00 per Quarter

New Quarterly Leases $75.00 — Park Now through June 30 at No
Additional Charge

Downtown Residents Renewals for July 1, 2014
If Paid by June 20 $65.00 Semi-Annually (or $35.00 if paid
quarterly)

New Downtown Residents for July 1, 2014 $65.00 Semi-Annually (or $35.00 if paid
Quarterly) — Park Now through June 30 at
No Additional Charge

Please contact the City Hall Finance Department, 215 Sycamore Street, for more information
and specific parking spaces available. Telephone: 563-264-1550 and ask for Lorrie or Shelley, or
Email: Ifry@muscatineiowa.gov, or smeyer@ muscatineiowa.gov.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED MAY 6, 2014

New Issue Rating: Moody’s Investors Service ‘Aa2’

In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Bond Counsel, according to present laws, rulings and decisions and assuming compliance with certain covenants the interest on the Bonds
(including any original issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; it should be noted, however that for the purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes), such interest is taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings. The City will designate the Bonds as
“qualified tax-exempt obligations.” See “TAX EXEMPTION AND RELATED CONSIDERATIONS” herein for more information.

CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA
$2,575,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014

Dated: Date of Delivery (June 2, 2014) Principal Due: June 1, 2015-2024

The $2,575,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014 (the “Bonds™) are being issued pursuant to Division 1ll
of Chapter 384 of the Code of lowa and a resolution to be adopted by the City Council of the City of Muscatine, lowa (the “City”).
The Bonds are being issued to pay costs, to that extent, of constructing street improvements, acquiring ambulance equipment,
constructing improvements to the municipal airport, installation of an emergency siren and constructing improvements to the
municipal library. The purchaser of the Bonds agrees to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with the City pursuant
to authority contained in Section 384.24A of the Code of lowa. The Bonds are issued in evidence of the City’s obligations under
the Loan Agreement. The Bonds are general obligations of the City for which the City will pledge its power of levy direct ad
valorem taxes to the repayment of the Bonds.

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered Bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co.,
as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purchases
may be made in book-entry-form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof. Purchasers will not receive
certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. Principal of the Bonds, payable annually on each June 1, beginning
June 1, 2015 and interest on the Bonds, payable initially on December 1, 2014 and thereafter on each June 1 and December 1, will
be paid to DTC by the City’s Registrar/Paying Agent, Bankers Trust Company, Des Moines, lowa (the “Registrar”). DTC will in
turn remit such principal and interest to its participants for subsequent disbursements to the beneficial owners of the Bonds as
described herein. Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a bond as shown on the records of ownership
maintained by the Registrar as of the close of business on the 15" day of the month next preceding the interest payment date (the
“Record Date”).

The Bonds will mature June 1 in the years and amounts as follows:

CUsSIP CUSIP
Year Interest Base Year Interest Base

(June 1) Amount Rate Yield Price 627236 (June 1) Amount Rate Yield Price 627236
2015 $55,000 1.50% 0.30% 101.193 VK5 2020 $370,000 2.00% 1.40% 103.439 VQ2
2016 25,000 1.50% 0.45% 102.085 VL3 2021 375,000 2.00% 1.65% 102.303 VRO
2017 75,000 1.50% 0.70% 102.368 VM1 2022 390,000 2.00% 1.85% 101.110 VS8
2018 125,000 2.00% 0.95% 104.108 VN9 2023 395,000 2.00% 2.00% 100.000 VT6
2019 360,000 2.00% 1.15% 104.116 VP4 2024 405,000 2.10% 2.10% 100.000 VU3

REDEMPTION: Bonds due after June 1, 2022 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or from time to time
in part, in any order of maturity and within a maturity by lot on said date or on any date thereafter at
the option of the City, upon terms of par plus accrued interest to date of call. Notice of such call
shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owners
of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books.

The Bonds are offered for delivery, when, as and if issued and subject to the legal opinion of Dorsey & Whitney, LLP, Bond
Counsel, of Des Moines, lowa, to be furnished upon delivery of the Bonds. The Bonds will be available for delivery on or about
June 2, 2014.

UMB BANK, N.A.

Copyright 2014, American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau,
a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc..
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA
$2,575,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014
INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement contains information relating to the City of Muscatine, lowa (the “City”) and its issuance of
$2,575,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014 (the “Series 2014 Bonds”). This Official
Statement has been executed on behalf of the City and its Finance Director and may be distributed in connection
with the sale of the Bonds authorized therein. Inquiries may be made to Public Financial Management, Inc., 801
Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, lowa 50309 or by telephoning (515) 243-2600. Information can also be
obtained from Ms. Nancy Lueck, Finance Director, City of Muscatine, 215 Sycamore Street, Muscatine, lowa
52761, or by telephoning (563) 264-1550.

AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

The Bonds are being issued by the City pursuant to Division Il of Chapter 384 of the Code of lowa and a
resolution to be adopted by the City Council of the City. The Bonds are being issued to pay costs of constructing
street improvements, acquiring ambulance equipment, constructing improvements to the municipal airport,
installing of an emergency siren and constructing improvements to the municipal library. The purchaser of the
Bonds agrees to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with the City pursuant to authority contained
in Section 384.24A of the Code of lowa. The Bonds are issued in evidence of the City’s obligations under the Loan
Agreement.

The Sources and Uses of the Bonds are as follows:

Sources of Funds

Par Amount of the Bonds $2,575,000.00
Premium 48,595.55

Total Funds $2,623,595.55

Uses of Funds

Deposit to Construction Account $2,568,531.45
Underwriter’s Discount 10,564.10
Cost of Issuance 44,500.00

Total Uses $2,623,595.55

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

Bonds due after June 1, 2022 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or from time to time in part, in any
order of maturity and within a maturity by lot on said date or on any date thereafter at the option of the City, upon
terms of par plus accrued interest to date of call. Notice of such call shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to
the date fixed for redemption to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the
registration books.

INTEREST

Interest on the Bonds will be payable on December 1, 2014 and semiannually on the 1% day of June and December
thereafter. Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a bond as shown on the records of
ownership maintained by the Registrar as of the close of business on the 15" day of the month next preceding the



interest payment date (the “Record Date”). Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
day months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

The Bonds are general obligations of the City and the unlimited taxing powers of the City are irrevocably pledged
for their payment. Upon issuance of the Bonds, the City will levy taxes for the years and in amounts sufficient to
provide 100% of annual principal and interest due on all the Bonds. If, however, the amount credited to the debt
service fund for payment of the Bonds is insufficient to pay principal and interest, whether from transfers or from
original levies, the City must use funds in its treasury and is required to levy ad valorem taxes upon all taxable
property in the City without limit as to rate or amount sufficient to pay the debt service deficiency.

Nothing in the resolution authorizing the Bonds prohibits or limits the ability of the City to use legally available
moneys other than the proceeds of the general ad valorem property taxes levied as described in the preceding
paragraph to pay all or any portion of the principal of or interest on the Bonds. If and to the extent such other
legally available moneys are used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds, the City may, but shall not be
required to, (a) reduce the amount of taxes levied for such purpose, as described in the preceding paragraph; or (b)
use proceeds of taxes levied, as described in the preceding paragraph, to reimburse the fund or account from which
such other legally available moneys are withdrawn for the amount withdrawn from such fund or account to pay the
principal of or interest on the Bonds.

The City’s obligation to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds is on a parity with the City’s obligation to
pay the principal of and interest on any other of its general obligation debt secured by a covenant to levy taxes
within the City, including any such debt issued or incurred after the issuance of the Bonds. The resolution
authorizing the Bonds does not restrict the City’s ability to issue or incur additional general obligation debt,
although issuance of additional general obligation debt is subject to the same constitutional and statutory limitations
that apply to the issuance of the Bonds. For a further description of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt
upon issuance of the Bonds and the annual debt service on the Bonds, see DIRECT DEBT under CITY
INDEBTEDNESS herein. For a description of certain constitutional and statutory limits on the issuance of general
obligation debt, see DEBT LIMIT under CITY INDEBTEDNESS herein.

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE

The information contained in the following paragraphs of this subsection “Book-Entry-Only Issuance” has been
extracted from a schedule prepared by Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) entitled “SAMPLE OFFERING
DOCUMENT LANGUAGE DESCRIBING DTC AND BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE.” The information in
this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the City believes to
be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the securities (the
“Securities”). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for each issue of the Securities, each in the aggregate
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. If, however, the aggregate principal amount of
any issue exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal amount,
and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s
participants (the “Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among
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Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly
or indirectly (the “Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s rating: AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to
its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be
found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a
credit for the Securities on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security (the
“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers
of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not affect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices
of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that
the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.
In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Registrar and request
that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed,
DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co., nor any other DTC nominee, will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the
record date identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy.

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct
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Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or Agent,
on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities
held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of
such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be
in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co.,
or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC, is the responsibility of the City
or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement
of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant, to
Tender/Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to transfer
the Participant’s interest in the Securities, on DTC’s records, to Tender/Remarketing Agent. The requirement for
physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed
satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records and
followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to Tender/Remarketing Agent’s DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the City or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not
obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor
securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that
the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

FUTURE FINANCING
The City does not anticipate any additional borrowings within 90 days of the date of this Official Statement.
LITIGATION

The City is not aware of any threatened or pending litigation affecting the validity of the Bonds or the City’s ability
to meet its financial obligations.

DEBT PAYMENT HISTORY
The City knows of no instance in which it has defaulted in the payment of principal or interest on its debt.
LEGALITY

The Bonds are subject to approval as to certain matters by Dorsey & Whitney LLP of Des Moines, lowa as Bond
Counsel. Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Official Statement and will not pass upon its
accuracy, completeness, or sufficiency. Bond Counsel has not examined nor attempted to examine or verify, any of
the financial or statistical statements, or data contained in this Official Statement and will express no opinion with
respect thereto. A legal opinion in substantially the form set out as Appendix A to this Official Statement, will be
delivered at closing.



TAX EXEMPTION AND RELATED CONSIDERATIONS

Federal Income Tax Exemption: The opinion of Bond Counsel will state that under present laws and rulings,
interest on the Bonds (including any original issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal
alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the
“Code”), provided, however that such interest must be taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings
for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations (as defined for federal income
tax purposes).

The opinion set forth in the preceding sentence will be subject to the condition that the City comply with all
requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest
thereon be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with
certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross income for federal income
tax purposes to be retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. In the resolution authorizing the issuance of the
Bonds, the City will covenant to comply with all such requirements.

There may be certain other federal tax consequences to the ownership of the Bonds by certain taxpayers, including
without limitation, corporations subject to the branch profits tax, financial institutions, certain insurance companies,
certain S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits and taxpayers who
may be deemed to have incurred (or continued) indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations. Bond
Counsel will express no opinion with respect to other federal tax consequences to owners of the Bonds. Prospective
purchasers of the Bonds should consult with their tax advisors as to such matters.

Proposed Changes in Federal and State Tax Law: From time to time, there are Presidential proposals, proposals of
various federal committees, and legislative proposals in the Congress and in the states that, if enacted, could alter or
amend the federal and state tax matters referred to herein or adversely affect the marketability or market value of
the Bonds or otherwise prevent holders of the Bonds from realizing the full benefit of the tax exemption of interest
on the Bonds. Further, such proposals may impact the marketability or market value of the Bonds simply by being
proposed. No prediction is made whether such provisions will be enacted as proposed or concerning other future
legislation affecting the tax treatment of interest on the Bonds. In addition, regulatory actions are from time to time
announced or proposed and litigation is threatened or commenced which, if implemented or concluded in a
particular manner, could adversely affect the market value, marketability or tax status of the Bonds. It cannot be
predicted whether any such regulatory action will be implemented, how any particular litigation or judicial action
will be resolved, or whether the Bonds would be impacted thereby.

Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed legislation, regulatory
initiatives or litigation. The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are based upon existing legislation and
regulations as interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as of the date of issuance and delivery of
the Bonds, and Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any
proposed or pending legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation.

Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations: In the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, the City will designate
the Bonds as “qualified tax exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code relating to the
ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes a portion of the interest
expense that is allocable to tax-exempt obligations.

Original Issue Premium: The initial public offering price of certain Bonds maturing in 2015 through 2022 may be
issued at a premium to the principal amount payable at maturity (collectively, the “Premium Bonds”). Except in the
case of dealers, which are subject to special rules, Bondholders who acquire Premium Bonds must, from time to
time, reduce their federal tax basis for the Premium Bonds for purposes of determining gain or loss on the sale or
payment of such Premium Bonds. Premium generally is amortized for federal income tax purposes on the basis of
a Bondholder’s constant yield to maturity or to certain call dates with semiannual compounding. Bondholders who
acquire any Premium Bonds at a premium might recognize taxable gain upon sale of the Premium Bonds, even if
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such Premium Bonds are sold for an amount equal to or less than their any original cost. Amortized premium is not
deductible for federal income tax purposes. Bondholders who acquire any Premium Bonds at a premium should
consult their tax advisors

RELATED TAX MATTERS

Information Reporting and Back-up Withholding; Audits: In general, information reporting requirements will
apply with respect to payments to an owner of principal and interest (and with respect to annual accruals of OID)
on the Bonds, and with respect to payments to an owner of any proceeds from a disposition of the Bonds. This
information reporting obligation, however, does not apply with respect to certain owners including corporations,
tax-exempt organizations, qualified pension and profit sharing trusts, and individual retirement accounts. In the
event that an owner subject to the reporting requirements described above fails to supply its correct taxpayer
identification number in the manner required by applicable law or is notified by the Internal Revenue Service (the
“Service™) that it has failed to properly report payments of interest and dividends, a backup withholding tax
(currently at a rate of 28%) generally will be imposed on the amount of any interest and principal and the amount of
any sales proceeds received by the owner on or with respect to the Bonds.

Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding provisions may be credited against the United States federal
income tax liability of the beneficial owner, and may entitle the beneficial owner to a refund, provided that the
required information is furnished to the Service.

The Service has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to determine whether, in the view of the
Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal
income tax purposes. It cannot be predicted whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an
audit is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the City as a taxpayer and the bondholders may
have no right to participate in such procedure. The commencement of an audit could adversely affect the market
value and liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome.

Opinion: Bond Counsel’s opinion is not a guarantee of a result, or of the transaction on which the opinion is
rendered, or of the future performance of parties to the transaction, but represents its legal judgment based upon its
review of existing statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the representations and covenants
of the City described in this section. No ruling has been sought from the Service with respect to the matters
addressed in the opinion of Bond Counsel and Bond Counsel’s opinion is not binding on the Service. Bond
Counsel assumes no obligation to update its opinion after the issue date to reflect any further action, fact or
circumstance, or change in law or interpretation, or otherwise.

RATING

The Bonds are rated ‘Aa2’ by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s). In addition, Moody’s currently rates the
City’s general obligation long-term debt ‘Aa2’. The existing rating on long-term debt reflects only the view of the
rating agency and any explanation of the significance of such rating may only be obtained from Moody’s. There is
no assurance that such ratings will continue for any period of time or that they will not be revised or withdrawn.
Any revision or withdrawal of the rating may have an effect on the market price of the Bonds.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The City has retained Public Financial Management, Inc. Des Moines, lowa as Financial Advisor in connection
with the preparation of the issuance of the Bonds. In preparing the Official Statement, the Financial Advisor has
relied on government officials, and other sources to provide accurate information for disclosure purposes. The
Financial Advisor is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken, an independent verification of the
accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in the Official Statement. Public Financial
Management is an independent advisory firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or
distributing municipal securities or other public securities.



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to permit bidders for the Bonds and other Participating Underwriters in the primary offering of the Bonds
to comply with paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the City will covenant and agree, for the benefit of the registered
holders or beneficial owners from time to time of the outstanding Bonds, in the resolution authorizing the issuance
of the Bonds and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, to provide annual reports of specified information and
notice of the occurrence of certain material events as hereinafter described (the “Disclosure Covenants”). The
information to be provided on an annual basis, the events as to which notice is to be given, and a summary of other
provisions of the Disclosure Covenants, including termination, amendment and remedies, are set forth as
APPENDIX C to this Official Statement. The City is currently compliant in all material respects with its
continuing disclosure undertakings and has filed all required reports for the past five years. However, the City
inadvertently failed to properly calculate the due date for the June 30, 2011 annual reports. When calculating the
due date, a 360 day year was used versus the actual number of days in the year. While not material, this
miscalculation resulted in the report being filed 5 days late. The City has taken steps to assure future compliance
with its Disclosure Covenants, and has filed the June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013 annual reports timely.

Breach of the Disclosure Covenants will not constitute a default or an “Event of Default” under the Bonds or the
resolution for the Bonds. A broker or dealer is to consider a known breach of the Disclosure Covenants, however,
before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market. Thus, a failure on the part of the
City to observe the Disclosure Covenants may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and
their market price.

SALE AT COMPETITIVE BIDDING

After competitive bids were received on May 1, 2014, the Bonds were awarded to UMB Bank, N.A. for an
aggregate price of $2,613,031.45.

CERTIFICATION

The City has authorized the distribution of this Official Statement for use in connection with the initial sale of the
Bonds. | have reviewed the information contained within the Official Statement prepared on behalf of the City of
Muscatine, lowa, by Public Financial Management, Inc., Des Moines, lowa, and said Official Statement does not
contain any material misstatements of fact, nor omission of any material fact regarding the issuance of $2,575,000
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014.

CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA
/sl Nancy Lueck, Finance Director




CITY PROPERTY VALUES

IOWA PROPERTY VALUATIONS

In compliance with Section 441.21 of the Code of lowa, the State Director of Revenue annually directs the county
auditors to apply prescribed statutory percentages to the assessments of certain categories of real property. The
2012 final Actual Values were adjusted by the Muscatine County Auditor. The reduced values, determined after
the application of rollback percentages, are the Taxable Values subject to tax levy.

The Legislature’s intent has been to limit the growth of statewide taxable valuations for the specific classes of
property to 4% annually. Political subdivisions whose taxable values are thus reduced or are unusually low in
growth are allowed to appeal the valuations to the State Appeal Board, in order to continue to fund present services.

HISTORICAL ROLLBACK PERCENTAGES

Agricultural Commercial
Fiscal Year Land & Buildings Residential Industrial & Railroad Utilities
2010-11 66.2715% 46.9094% 100.0000% 100.0000%
2011-12 69.0152% 48.5299% 100.0000% 100.0000%
2012-13 57.5411% 50.7518% 100.0000% 100.0000%
2013-14 59.9334% 52.8166% 100.0000% 100.0000%
2014-15Y 43.3997% 54.4002% 95.0000% 100.0000%

1) The 2013 rollback percentages are now available and will become effective July 1, 2014.

1/1/2012 VALUATIONS (Taxes payable July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014)

Taxable Value

100% Actual Value (With Rollback)

Residential $834,660,717 $439,988,430
Commercial 233,677,171 233,677,171
Industrial 116,856,275 116,856,275
Railroad 648,208 648,208
Utilities w/o Gas & Electric 5,981,766 5,981,766
Gross valuation $1,191,824,137 $797,151,850
Less Military Exemption (1,946,452) (1,946,036)?
Net valuation $1,189,877,685 $795,205,814
TIF increment (used to compute debt service
levies and constitutional debt limit) $25,670,157 Y $25,669,741 Y
Taxed separately

Ag. Land & Buildings $1,903,217 $908,805

Gas & Electric Utilities $9,261,326 $3,415,743

1) Excludes $578,693 of TIF Increment Ag. Land & Ag. Building valuation
2) Reduced by $416 of TIF Increment Military Exemption



Trend of VValuations

Assessment  Payable 100% Actual Valuation Net Taxable Valuation Taxable TIF Increment
Year Fiscal Year Valuation % Change Valuation % Change Valuation % Change
2009 2010-11 $1,193,428,431 0.58% $740,436,638 1.46% $21,620,691 (1.21%)
2010 2011-12 1,213,313,348 1.67% 759,702,874 2.60% 22,447,993 3.83%
2011 2012-13 1,220,460,654 0.59% 781,443,576 2.86% 23,452,229 4.47%
2012 2013-14 1,227,291,078 0.56% 798,621,557 2.20% 25,669,741 9.46%
2013V 2014-15 1,238,312,164 0.90% 798,149,186 (0.06%) 31,617,913 23.17%

1) The City’s 1/1/2013 valuations are now available from the State of lowa and will be effective July 1, 2014.

The 100% Actual Valuations, before rollback and after reduction of military exemption, include Ag. Land &
Buildings, TIF Increment and Gas & Electric Utilities. The Taxable Valuations, with the rollback and after the
reduction of military exemption, includes Gas & Electric Utilities and exclude Taxable TIF Increments and Ag.
Land & Buildings. lowa counties certify operating levies against Taxable Valuations excluding the Taxable TIF
Increment and debt service levies are certified against Taxable Valuations including the Taxable TIF Increment.

2012 GROSS TAXABLE VALUATION BY CLASS OF PROPERTY ?

1/1/2012 Percent
Taxable Valuation Total
Residential $439,988,430 54.96%
Commercial, Industrial and all Utilities 359,930,955 44.96%
Railroad 648,208 0.08%
Total Gross Taxable Valuation $800,567,593 100.00%

1) Includes all Utilities but excludes Taxable TIF Increment and Ag. Land & Buildings.

LARGER TAXPAYERS

1/1/2012

Taxable
Taxpayerl) Type of Property/Business Valuation?
Grain Processing Corp Manufacturing — Corn Products $39,580,090
HNI Corporation Manufacturing — Office Furniture 31,056,180
H.J. Heinz Company LP Food Processors 10,888,030
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Commercial/Retail 10,202,870
Menard Inc. Commercial/Retail 9,704,700
Interstate Power & Light Co. Utility 8,662,191
Bridgestone Bandag Tire Manufacturing — Retreading 8,551,510
Gridco LLC Manufacturing — Sports/Event Lighting 7,611,700
Sodarock Properties LLC % Comm./Industrial Rent/Leasing 7,583,780
Cobblestone Apartments Comm./Industrial Rent/Leasing 6,789,960

1) This list represents some of the larger taxpayers in the City, not necessarily the 10 largest taxpayers.

2) The Taxable Valuation listed represents only those valuations associated with the title holder and may not necessarily
represent the entire taxable valuation.

3) Sodarock Properties LLC, formerly known as River Bend Leasing LLC.

Source: Muscatine County Auditor’s Office.



RECENT PROPERTY TAX LEGISLATION

During the 2013 legislative session, the lowa General Assembly enacted Senate File 295 (the “Act”), which the
Governor signed into law on June 12, 2013. Among other things, the Act (i) reduces the maximum annual taxable
value growth percent, due to revaluation of existing residential and agricultural property, from the current 4% to
3%, (ii) assigns a “rollback” (the percentage of a property’s value that is subject to tax) to commercial, industrial
and railroad property of 95% for the 2013 assessment year and 90% for the 2014 assessment year and all years
thereafter, (iii) creates a new property tax classification for multi-residential properties (mobile home parks,
manufactured home communities, land-lease communities, assisted living facilities and property primarily used or
intended for human habitation containing three or more separate dwelling units) (“Multi-residential Property”) that
begins in the 2015 assessment year, and assigns a declining rollback percentage of 3.75% to such properties for
each subsequent year until 2021 assessment year (the rollback percentage for Multi-residential Properties will be
equal to the residential rollback percentage in 2022 assessment year and thereafter) and (iv) exempts a specified
portion of the assessed value of telecommunication properties.

The Act includes a standing appropriation to replace some of the tax revenues lost by local governments, including
tax increment districts, resulting from the new rollback for commercial and industrial property. Prior to fiscal year
2017-18, the appropriation is a standing unlimited appropriation, but beginning in fiscal year 2017-18 the standing
appropriation cannot exceed the actual fiscal year 2016-17 appropriation amount. The appropriation does not
replace losses to local governments resulting from the Act’s provisions that reduce the annual revaluation growth
limit for residential and agricultural properties to 3% from 4%, the gradual transition for Multi-residential Property
from the commercial rollback percentage (100% of Actual Value) to the residential rollback percentage (currently
52.8166% of Actual Value), or the reduction in the percentage of telecommunications property that is subject to
taxation.

Given the wide scope of the statutory changes, and the State of lowa’s discretion in establishing the annual
replacement amount that is appropriated each year commencing in fiscal year 2017-18, the impact of the Act on the
City’s future property tax collections is uncertain and the City is unable to accurately assess the financial impact of
the Act’s provisions on the City’s future operations.

In Moody’s Investor Service US Public Finance Weekly Credit Outlook, dated May 30, 2013, Moody’s Investor
Service (“Moody’s”) projected that local governments in the State of lowa are likely to experience modest
reductions in property tax revenues starting in fiscal year 2014-15 as a result of the Act, with sizeable reductions
possible starting in fiscal year 2017-18. According to Moody’s, local governments that may experience
disproportionately higher revenue losses include regions that have a substantial commercial base, a large share of
Multi-residential Property (such as college towns), or significant amounts of telecommunications property.

Notwithstanding any decrease in property tax revenues that may result from the Act, lowa Code section 76.2
provides that when an lowa political subdivision issues general obligation bonds, “the governing authority of these
political subdivisions before issuing bonds shall, by resolution, provide for the assessment of an annual levy upon
all the taxable property in the political subdivision sufficient to pay the interest and principal of the bonds within a
period named not exceeding twenty years. A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed with the county auditor
or the auditors of the counties in which the political subdivision is located; and the filing shall make it a duty of the
auditors to enter annually this levy for collection from the taxable property within the boundaries of the political
subdivision until funds are realized to pay the bonds in full.”

From time to time, other legislative proposals may be considered by the lowa General Assembly that would, if
enacted, alter or amend one or more of the property tax matters described in this Official Statement. It cannot be
predicted whether or in what forms any of such proposals may be enacted, and there can be no assurance that such
proposals will not apply to valuation, assessment or levy procedures for the levy of taxes by the City.
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CITY INDEBTEDNESS
DEBT LIMIT

Avrticle XI, Section 3 of the State of lowa Constitution limits the amount of debt outstanding at any time of any
county, municipality or other political subdivision to no more than 5% of the actual value of all taxable property
within the corporate limits, as taken from the last state and county tax list. The debt limit for the City, based on its
2012 valuation currently applicable to the fiscal year 2013-14 is as follows:

2012 Actual Valuation of Property $1,229,237,530
Less: Military Exemption (1,946,452)

Subtotal $1,227,291,078
Legal Debt Limit of 5% 0.05

Legal Debt Limit $61,364,554
Less: G.O. Debt Subject to Debt Limit (16,605,000)
Less: Urban Renewal Revenue Debt Subject to Debt Limit (925,000)
Less: Developer Rebate Agreements (13,300,491)

Net Debt Limit $30,534,063

DIRECT DEBT

General Obligation Debt Paid by Taxes (Includes the Bonds)

Principal
Date Original Final Outstanding
of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6/2/14
6/08A $5,120,000 Public Improvements 6/18 $2,530,000
6/10 7,425,000 Public Improvements 6/20 5,515,000
6/12 4,715,000 Improvements & Refunding 6/22 4,125,000
3/13 1,115,000 Refunding 6/16 745,000
6/14 2,575,000 Public Improvements 6/24 2,575,000
Total General Obligation Debt Subject to Debt Limit: $15,490,000
General Obligation Debt Paid by Tax Increment Revenue
Principal
Date Original Final Outstanding
of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6/2/14
6/10 $1,535,000 Public Improvements 6/20 $1,115,000
Total General Obligation Debt Subject to Limit $16,605,000
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Urban Renewal Revenue Bonds

Principal

Date Original Final Outstanding

of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6/2/14

6/04 $1,885,000 TIF Revenue 6/21 $925,000

Total Urban Renewal Revenue Debt Subject to Limit $925,000

Annual Fiscal Year Debt Service Payments
General Obligation Debt Paid by Taxes (Includes the Bonds)
Current Outstanding Debt The Bonds Total Outstanding
Fiscal Principal & Principal & Principal &
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2014-15 $2,110,000 $2,420,418 $55,000 $105,988 $2,165,000 $2,526,406
2015-16 2,205,000 2,470,748 25,000 75,305 2,230,000 2,546,053
2016-17 2,050,000 2,263,598 75,000 124,930 2,125,000 2,388,528
2017-18 2,105,000 2,264,738 125,000 173,805 2,230,000 2,438,543
2018-19 1,650,000 1,753,523 360,000 406,305 2,010,000 2,159,828
2019-20 1,645,000 1,708,098 370,000 409,105 2,015,000 2,117,203
2020-21 570,000 590,710 375,000 406,705 945,000 997,415
2021-22 580,000 591,020 390,000 414,205 970,000 1,005,225
2022-23 395,000 411,405 395,000 411,405
2023-24 405,000 413,505 405,000 413,505

$12,915,000 $2,575,000 $15,490,000

General Obligation Debt Paid by Tax Increment Revenue

Outstanding Debt

Fiscal Principal &
Year Principal Interest
2014-15 $175,000 $207,825
2015-16 180,000 208,450
2016-17 180,000 203,050
2017-18 185,000 202,650
2018-19 195,000 207,100
2019-20 200,000 206,250

$1,115,000
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Urban Renewal Revenue Debt Paid by Tax Increment Revenue

QOutstanding Debt

Fiscal Principal &

Year Principal Interest
2014-15 $115,000 $165,930
2015-16 120,000 165,065
2016-17 125,000 163,705
2017-18 130,000 161,955
2018-19 140,000 164,805
2019-20 145,000 161,965
2020-21 150,000 158,700

$925,000

REVENUE DEBT

The City has revenue debt outstanding payable solely from the net revenues of the sewer utility as follows:

Principal

Date Original Final Outstanding

of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 6/2/14

11/08 $16,500,000 Sewer Improvements (SRF) 6/32 $14,295,000

OVERLAPPING DEBT

City’s
1/1/2012 Taxable Valuation Percent G.O. Proportionate

Taxing District Valuation within the City  In City Debt ? Share
Muscatine County $1,830,366,814  $825,200,103%  45.08% $11,845,000 $5,339,726
Muscatine CSD 1,217,631,483 801,154,354  65.80% 0 0
Louisa-Muscatine CSD 255,606,994 24,045,749 9.41% 0 0
Eastern lowa Comm. College 13,420,924,611 825,200,103 ¥ 6.15% 53,655,000 3,299,783
City’s share of total overlapping debt $8,639,509

1) Includes Ag. Land, Ag. Buildings, all utilities and Taxable TIF Increment.

2) Includes general obligation bonds, PPEL notes, certificates of participation and new jobs training certificates.
3) Excludes $578,693 of Ag Land and Ag Buildings TIF Increment valuation.

4) Excludes $414,163 of Ag Land and Ag Buildings TIF Increment valuation.

5) Excludes $164,530 of Ag Land and Ag Buildings TIF Increment valuation.

13



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Debt Ratios
Debt/Actual Debt/Taxable Debt Per
Market Value Value Capita
G.O. Debt ($1,227,291,078) Y  ($825,200,103) 2  (22,886)
City Total G. O. Debt $16,605,000 1.35% 2.01% $725.55
City Total TIF Revenue Debt 925,000 0.08% 0.11% 40.42
City’s Share of Overlapping Debt 8,639,509 0.70% 1.05% 377.50
City’s Net Overall Debt $26,169,509 2.13% 3.17% $1,143.47

1) Based on the City’s 1/1/2012 Actual Valuation including Ag. Land & Buildings, Taxable TIF Increment and all Utilities.
2) Based on the City’s 1/1/2012 Taxable Valuation including Ag. Land & Buildings, Taxable TIF Increment and all Utilities.
3) Population based on the City’s 2010 U.S. Census.

Valuation Per Capita

Valuation Per Capita

1/1/2012 Valuation (22,886) ¥
100% Actual Valuation $1,227,291,078 ¥ $53,626
Taxable Valuation 825,200,103 ? 36,057

1) Based on the City’s 1/1/2012 Actual Valuation including Ag. Land & Buildings, Taxable TIF Increment and all Utilities.
2) Based on the City’s 1/1/2012 Taxable Valuation including Ag. Land & Buildings, Taxable TIF Increment and all Utilities.
3) Population based on the City’s 2010 U.S. Census.

LEVIES AND TAX COLLECTIONS

Collection Collected During Percent
Period Levy Collection Year Collected
2009-10 $11,350,546 $11,332,799 99.84%
2010-11 11,692,917 11,689,173 99.97%
2011-12 11,993,254 12,031,835 100.32%
2012-13 12,258,744 12,260,308 100.01%
2013-14 12,539,510 - In Process of Collection ------

Collections include delinquent taxes from all prior years. Taxes in lowa are delinquent each October 1 and April 1
and a late payment penalty of 1% per month of delinquency is enforced as of those dates. If delinquent taxes are
not paid, the property may be offered at the regular tax sale on the third Monday of June following the delinquency
date. Purchasers at the tax sale must pay an amount equal to the taxes, special assessments, interest and penalties
due on the property and funds so received are applied to taxes. A property owner may redeem from the regular tax
sale but, failing redemption within three years, the tax sale purchaser is entitled to a deed, which in general conveys
the title free and clear of all liens except future tax installments.

Source: The City and the City’s June 30, 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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TAX RATES

FY 2009-10 FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14
$/$1,000 $/$1,000 $/$1,000 $/$1,000 $/$1,000
City of Muscatine 15.55353 15.77147 15.77146 15.67209 15.67209
Muscatine County 7.84326 8.18240 8.00950 7.73335 7.70380
County Assessor 0.31638 0.35363 0.33767 0.33455 0.32536
Ag Extension 0.14331 0.14589 0.14582 0.13969 0.14106
Muscatine CSD 14.90569 14.90920 15.36192 15.35345 15.27597
Louisa-Muscatine CSD 13.78199 14.08973 13.78625 11.97595 10.58609
Eastern lowa Comm. College 0.87714 0.92444 1.01724 0.91511 0.92043
State of lowa 0.00300 0.00340 0.00320 0.00330 0.00330
Consolidated Tax Rate:
Muscatine CSD Resident 39.64231 40.29043 40.64681 40.15154 40.04201
Consolidated Tax Rate:
Louisa-Muscatine CSD Resident 38.51861 39.47096 39.07114 36.77404 35.35213
CITY TAX RATE BREAKDOWN
Fiscal General Emergency Debt Employee Capital Ag.
Year Fund Outside Fund Service Benefits Improvement  Total Levy Levy
2010 8.10000  0.72728  0.27000 2.90101  3.55524 0.00000 15.55353 3.00375
2011 8.10000  0.65364  0.08000 3.14336  3.79447 0.00000 15.77147 3.00375
2012 8.10000  0.75904  0.00000 2.85051  4.06191 0.00000 15.77146 3.00375
2013 8.10000 0.79615  0.00000 2.90388  3.87206 0.00000 15.67209 3.00375
2014 8.10000 0.87301  0.00000 2.89226  3.80682 0.00000 15.67209 3.00375
LEVY LIMITS

A city’s general fund tax levy is limited to $8.10 per $1,000 of taxable value, with provision for an additional $0.27
per $1,000 levy for an emergency fund which can be used for general fund purposes (Code of lowa, Chapter 384,
Division I). Cities may exceed the $8.10 limitation upon authorization by a special levy election. Further, there are
limited special purpose levies, which may be certified outside of the above-described levy limits (Code of lowa,
Section 384.12). The amount of the City’s general fund levy subject to the $8.10 limitation is $8.10 for fiscal year
2013-14. The City does levy for levee improvements; liability, property & self insurance costs, operation and
maintenance of publicly owned transit, and other employee benefits in addition to the $8.10 general fund limit as
authorized by law. Currently, the City does not levy for an emergency fund. Debt service levies are not limited.
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FUNDS ON HAND (CASH AND INVESTMENTS AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2014)

Account

General

Debt Service

Insurance Reserve

Parks Trust

Cemetery Perpetual Care

Cemetery Perpetual Care Interest

Cemetery Trusts

Library Trusts

Art Center Trusts

Capital Project Funds:
Cedar Street Improvements
Colorado Street Improvements
Hershey Street Improvements
Mississippi Drive Corridor Study
Other Street Projects
Sewer Improvement Projects
Trail Projects
Weed Park Maintenance Building Project
Golf Course Irrigation Project
Building Demolition Projects
Downtown Revitalization Project
Southend Fire Station Project
City Building Boiler Replacements
Property Acquisition for Colorado Street Project
Mad Creek Levee Improvements
Police Radio System
Transfer Station Equipment
Airport Improvement Projects
Other Capital Projects

Enterprise Funds:
Transit
Parking
Golf
Boat Harbor
Marina
Refuse Collection
Landfill (Solid Waste Agency)
Landfill Reserves
Transfer Station
Transfer Station Reserve
Water Pollution Control Operations
Collection and Drainage
Sewer Reserves
Airport Operations
Ambulance
Convention & Visitors Bureau (Component Unit)
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Balance

$1,723,691.15

1,169,237.11
73,626.90
54,743.11
827,000.00
26,866.06
64,459.65
251,152.60
484,715.37

(234,687.28) Y
235,862.98
86,788.86
29,864.01
67,352.05
(9,307.54)
61,670.56
(114,373.09) ¥
(270,163.85) ©
(28,754.86) °
(6,463.28) ?
51,935.69
(102,950.68) ¥
(80,283.57) ¥
(201,613.38) ©
34,263.31
(177,370.00) ©
(86,715.12) V?
22,780.08

(7,853.90) 2°
77,856.58
(18,320.43)
(2,014.74) ®
(4,660.65) *
200,543.90
(562,864.00) °
1,369,514.05
(356,465.46) °
38,395.00
1,411,597.09
1,176,838.22
4,349,200.38
(41,278.37) ¥
139,778.43
84,881.03



Account

Internal Services Funds:
Equipment Services
Central Supplies
Health Insurance
Dental Insurance
Various Clearing Accounts
Special Revenue Funds:
Close CDBG Grant Funds
Housing Home Ownership Program
Housing Children's Education Program
Road Use Tax
Employee Benefits
Emergency Tax Levy Fund
Computer/Equipment Replacement Funds
Local Option Sales Tax
Tax Increment Funds
COPS Grant Future Funding Reserve
Public Housing
Section 8 Housing

Total - All Funds

1) Deficits to be eliminated through bond proceeds.

2) Deficits to be eliminated through grants.
3) Deficits to be eliminated through transfers.

Balance

90,653.79

(2,004.43) ©

2,033,407.59
22,154.89
59,322.14

39,714.83
110,494.48
7,462.55
580,119.77

(327,643.18) ¥

80,454.81
97,078.51
1,430,082.97
1,321,522.92
40,000.00
303,965.58

61,625.63
$17,756,886.82

4) Deficits to be eliminated through incremental tax collections (TIF).

5) Deficits to be eliminated through future operations. This includes future tax receipts and user charges.
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THE CITY
CITY GOVERNMENT

The City operates under the mayor-council form of government and has a City Administrator. Policy-making and
legislative authority are vested in a mayor and seven council members. The city council is responsible, among
other things, for passing ordinances and resolutions, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both
the City Administrator and the City Attorney. The City Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies
and ordinances of the city council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing
the heads of various departments. The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year
staggered terms and the mayor is elected to serve a two-year term. Five of the council members are elected by
district. The mayor and the two remaining council members are elected at large.

The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection; roadway maintenance; water
pollution control; solid waste management; recreational and cultural activities and facilities; and a general aviation
airport.

EMPLOYEES AND PENSIONS

The City contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (“IPERS”) which is a cost sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death
benefits which are established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report
may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-9117. In fiscal year 2012-13 plan
members were required to contribute 5.78% of their annual covered salary and the City was required to contribute
8.67% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are established by State statute. The City's
contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $649,684, $596,712, and $507,528
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

The City contributes to the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa, which is a cost sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement,
disability and death benefits which are established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. The Plan
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. The report may be obtained by writing to Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa, 7155
Lake Drive, Suite 201, West Des Moines, lowa 50266. Plan members are required to contribute 9.35% of earnable
compensation and the City’s contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2013 was 26.12% of earnable
compensation. Contribution requirements are established by State statue. The contribution rate for the current year
increase to 30.12%. The City's contributions to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were
$1,138,473, $1,029,441, and $778,181, respectively, which met the required minimum contribution for each year.

UNION CONTRACTS

The City has negotiated contracts with the following employee union groups:

Annual Wage Increases

Contract FY FY FY FY FY FY
Employee Group Expiration Date 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Fire June 30, 2019 2.90% 2.25% 2.50% 2.75% 2.90% 3.00%
Police June 30, 2019 2.95% 2.25% 2.50% 2.75% 2.90% 3.00%
Blue/White Collar June 30, 2019 Y 2.90% 2.25% 2.50% 2.75% 2.90% 3.00%

1) Individual positions in the Blue/White Collar group may have increases higher or lower than the rates shown; the percentages
shown represent the overall increases to the City.
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For all three bargaining units, effective January 1, 2016 the single/family health insurance deductibles will increase
from $500/$1,000 to $600/$1,200 and the out-of-pocket maximums will increase from $1,000/$2,000 to
$1,200/$2,400. The employee’s contributions for health insurance will increase from the current 5% to 6%
effective January 1, 2017, 7% effective January 1, 2018, and 8% effective January 1, 2019. These changes will
also be implemented for non-bargaining unit employees of the City.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (GASB 43 & 45)

Plan description: The City sponsors a single-employer health care plan for its active and retired employees. Upon
normal retirement, employees have the option of continuing health and dental insurance coverage at their cost until
the age of 65.

Funding policy: The City establishes and amends contribution requirements. The current funding policy of the City
is to pay health claims as they occur. This arrangement does not qualify as OPEB plan assets under GASB
reporting. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing. For the year ended
June 30, 2013, the City contributed $11,219, which was net of retiree premiums received of $159,741.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City's annual other postemployment benefit (“OPEB™) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (“ARC”), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not-to-exceed 30 years. The following table shows the
components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the 2012-13 fiscal year, the amount actually contributed to the plan,
and the changes in the City's net OPEB obligation to the postemployment health plan:

Annual Required Contribution $102,814
Interest on net OPEB obligation 15,764
Adjustment to annual required contribution (20,508)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) $98,070
Contributions and payments made 11,219
Increase in net OPEB obligation $86,851
Net OPEB obligation — July 1, 2012 315,254
Net OPEB obligation — June 30, 2013 $402,105

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the two preceding years are as follows:

Percentage of Annual

Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Net OBEB Obligation
June 30, 2011 $155,310 62.17% $156,003
June 30, 2012 164,574 3.23% 315,254
June 30, 2013 98,070 11.44% 402,105
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INSURANCE
The City’s insurance coverage is as follows:

Type of Insurance

Property/Equipment

Inland Marine:
Fine Arts
Contractors Equipment
Miscellaneous Equipment
Radio/TV Communications Equipment

Flood Policy:
City Hall
Public Safety
Pearl City Station
Riverview Center
Pistol Range
Liability:
General
Employee Benefit
Liquor
Law Enforcement
Public Entity Employment
Public Entity Management
Cyber

Business Automobile

Umbrella

Crime

Workers Compensation

Travel Accident (Police & Fire Medical)
Airport Protection

Fuel Tank Pollution Liability

Ocean Marine Insurance — Dredging:
Hull Coverage Limit — Vessel & Equipment
Protective & Indemnity Limit

Ocean Marine Maritime Employers Liability
Ocean Marine Insurance Excess — Dredging

Coverage Limit
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$74,053,870

$10,205,380
$2,990,674
$2,531,065
$135,988

$500,000
$500,000
$250,000
$454,100

$78,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$10,000,000
$500,000
$500,000
$250,000
$5,000,000
$1,000,000

$291,524
$1,000,000

$500,000
$10,000,000



GENERAL INFORMATION
LOCATION AND TRANSPORTATION

The City of Muscatine was incorporated in 1851 by a special act of the lowa State Legislature and is located on the
Mississippi River, which is the eastern boundary of the State of lowa. The City is located 160 miles east of Des
Moines, 200 miles west of Chicago, and is the county seat of Muscatine County. The City occupies a land area of
approximately 18.5 square miles and serves a population of 22,886 people based on the 2010 U.S. Census.
Voluntary annexations in 2012 and 2013 increased the population to 23,819. The city is empowered to levy a tax
on all property located within its boundaries.

LARGER EMPLOYERS
A representative list of larger employers for the City is as follows:

Approximate Number

Employer Type of Business of Employees b
HNI Corporation/The HON Co. Manufacturing 3,400
Muscatine Foods Manufacturing/Production Food Products 900
Muscatine Community School District Education 844
Trinity of Muscatine Healthcare 534
Musco Sports Lighting Sports/Event Lighting 400
Monsanto Company Herbicides, Pesticides 395
Hy-Vee Food Store Grocery Store 358
Wal-Mart Retail 337
H.J. Heinz LP Food Processing 295
Muscatine Power and Water Utility 285
The Raymond Corporation Electric Lift Trucks 265
The Stanley Group Engineering/Consulting/Construction 265
City of Muscatine Government 222
Muscatine County Government 203
Bridgestone Bandag LLC Tire Manufacturing/Re-Treadin 200
Letica Corporation Plastic Packaging 130

1) This number includes full-time, part-time and seasonal employees.
Source: The City and the Muscatine Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
U.S. CENSUS DATA

Population Trend

Census Year City of Muscatine Muscatine County
1990 22,881 39,907
2000 22,697 41,722
2010 22,886 42,745

Source: U.S. Census Bureau website.
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RETAIL SALES
The following table represents Retail Sales figures for the City of Muscatine.
Number of Businesses »

Year Ending 6/30 Taxable Retail Sales

2009 $378,670,791 708
2010 371,429,841 706
2011 375,283,095 693
2012 386,770,122 695
2013 371,978,755 711

1) The number of businesses is estimated by dividing the total number of quarterly returns filed during the fiscal year by four.
Source: lowa Department of Revenue; lowa Retail Sales & Use Tax Report.
BUILDING PERMITS

City officials report the following construction activity as of February 28, 2014. Permits for the City are reported

on a calendar year basis.

Single Family Homes:
No. of New Homes:
Valuation:

Home Remodeling,
Improvements, & Garages
No. of Permits Issued:
Valuation:

Multiple-Family Dwellings &
Duplexes:

No. of New Buildings:
Valuation:

Commercial/Industrial/Other:
No. of New Buildings:
Valuation:

Commercial/Industrial/Other

Additions & Alterations:
No. of Permits Issued:
Valuation:

Total Permits:
Total VValuations:

2010 2011 012 2013 2014
8 11 15 10 1
$1,113,325 $2,244,560 $2,144,865 $2,525,540 $137,740
207 256 325 259 11
$1,916,322 $1,983,475 $2,754,000 $1,784,904 $174,470
5 2 0 5 0
$982,320 $1,638,643 $0 $2,280,540 $0
1 4 6 5 0
$1,675,200 $9,494,636 $4,387,265  $15,021,973 $0
88 127 47 76 4
$3,780,982 $9,907,203  $30,432,120  $12,490,299 $797,217
309 400 393 355 16
$9,468,149  $25,268,517  $39,718,250  $34,103,256 $1,109,427
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UNEMPLOYMENT RATES

Muscatine State of United

County lowa States

Annual Averages: 2010 7.8% 6.3% 9.6%
2011 6.4% 5.9% 8.9%

2012 5.5% 5.2% 8.1%

2013 4.7% 4.6% 7.4%

2014 (Jan) 5.3% 4.3% 6.6%

Source: lowa Workforce Development Center and United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics websites.

EDUCATION

Public education is provided to residents of the City by the Muscatine Community School District, Louisa-
Muscatine Community School District and parochial schools. The Muscatine Community School District provides
public education, with certified enrollment for the 2013-14 school year of 5,344. The district owns and operates
eight elementary schools, two middle schools, and one high school. The Louisa-Muscatine Community School
District provides public education with certified enrollment for the 2013-14 school year of 771. The district owns
and operates one pre-school through sixth grade elementary school and one seventh through twelfth grade
secondary school.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Financial services for residents of the City are provided by Central State Bank, Community Bank and Trust and
First National Bank of Muscatine and branch offices of U.S. Bank N.A.

Central State Bank, Community Bank and Trust and First National Bank of Muscatine report deposits, as of June
30" for each year, as follows:

Community First National
Year Central State Bank Bank and Trust Bank of Muscatine
2009 $219,227,000 $196,568,000 $242,074,000
2010 230,920,000 207,990,000 247,405,000
2011 240,372,000 210,436,000 254,439,000
2012 288,047,000 218,402,000 258,920,000
2013 266,338,000 225,130,000 260,715,000

Source: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation website.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City’s June 30, 2013 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, as prepared by a certified public accountant, is
reproduced as APPENDIX B. The City’s certified public accountant has not consented to distribution of the
audited financial statement and has not undertaken added review of their presentation. Further information
regarding financial performance and copies of the City’s prior Independent Auditor’s Reports may be obtained
from the City’s Financial Advisor, Public Financial Management, Inc.

McGladrey LLP, the City’s independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform, and has not performed, since the

date of its report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in that report. McGladrey
LLP, also has not performed any procedures relating to this Official Statement.
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(Form of Bond Counsel Opinion)

We hereby certify that we have examined certified copies of the proceedings (the
“Proceedings”) of the City Council of the City of Muscatine (the “Issuer”), in Muscatine County,
lowa, passed preliminary to the issue by the Issuer of its General Obligation Corporate Purpose
Bonds, Series 2014 (the “Bonds”) in the amount of $2,575,000, dated June 2, 2014, in the
denomination of $5,000 each, or any integral multiple thereof, in evidence of the Issuer’s
obligation under a certain loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), dated as of June 2, 2014.
The Bonds mature on June 1 in each of the respective years and in the principal amounts and
bear interest payable semiannually, commencing December 1, 2014, at the respective rates as
follows:

Date Principal Interest Rate Date Principal Interest Rate
2015 $ 55,000 1.50% 2020 $370,000 2.00%
2016 $ 25,000 1.50% 2021 $375,000 2.00%
2017 $ 75,000 1.50% 2022 $390,000 2.00%
2018 $125,000 2.00% 2023 $395,000 2.00%
2019 $360,000 2.00% 2024 $405,000 2.10%

Principal of the Bonds maturing in the years 2023 and 2024, inclusive, are subject to optional
redemption prior to maturity on June 1, 2022, or on any date thereafter on terms of par plus
accrued interest.

Based upon our examination, we are of the opinion, as of the date hereof, that:

1. The Proceedings show lawful authority for such issue under the laws of the State
of lowa.

2. The Bonds and the Loan Agreement are valid and binding general obligations of
the Issuer.

3. All taxable property within the corporate boundaries of the Issuer is subject to the

levy of taxes to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds without constitutional or statutory
limitation as to rate or amount.

4. The interest on the Bonds (including any original issue discount properly
allocable to an owner thereof) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes
and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed
on individuals and corporations; it should be noted, however, that for the purpose of computing
the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations (as defined for federal income tax
purposes), such interest is taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings. The
opinions set forth in the preceding sentence are subject to the condition that the Issuer comply
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with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™) that must be satisfied
subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be,
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Issuer has covenanted to
comply with each such requirement. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may
cause the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross income for federal income tax purposes to
be retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.

5. The Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. The opinion set forth in the preceding sentence is subject to the
condition that the Issuer comply with all requirements of the Code that must be satisfied
subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that the Bonds be, or continue to be, qualified
tax-exempt obligations. The Issuer has covenanted to comply with each such requirement.

We express no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to
the Bonds.

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, and their
enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases.

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP



APPENDIX B

JUNE 30, 2013 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

McGladrey LLP, the City’s independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform, and has not performed, since the
date of its report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in that report. McGladrey LLP,
also has not performed any procedures relating to this Official Statement.
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City Hall, 215 Sycamore St.
Muscatine, IA 52761-3899
(563) 264-1550

Fax (563) 264-0750

MUSCATINE

FINANCE & RECORDS

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

DATE: December 5, 2013

Iowa law requires that all cities publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set
of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial
report of the City of Muscatine for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained
in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

McGladrey LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the City
of Muscatine’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013. The independent auditor’s report is
located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated
“Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing
Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of
the financial statements, but also on the City’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements,
with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal
awards. These reports are included in the compliance section of this report.

Profile of the Government

The City of Muscatine was incorporated in 1851 by a special act of the lowa State Legislature and is
located on the Mississippi River, which is the eastern boundary of the state of lowa. The City is located
160 miles east of Des Moines, 200 miles west of Chicago, and is the county seat of Muscatine County.
The City occupies a land area of approximately 18.5 square miles and serves a population of 23,819
people. Two voluntary annexations in 2012 and 2013 increased the City’s population by 933 from the
2010 Census population of 22,886 to the current level. The City is empowered to levy a tax on all
property located within its boundaries.

"I remember Muscatine for its sunsets. I have never seen any
on either side of the ocean that equaled them" — Mark Twain



The City operates under the mayor-council form of government and has a City Administrator. Policy-
making and legislative authority are vested in a mayor and seven council members. The city council is
responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances and resolutions, adopting the budget, appointing
committees, and hiring both the City Administrator and the City Attorney. The City Administrator is
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the city council, for overseeing the day-to-day
operations of the government, and for appointing the heads of various departments. The council is elected
on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year staggered terms and the mayor is elected to
serve a two-year term. Five of the council members are elected by district. The mayor and the two
remaining council members are elected at large.

The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection; roadway maintenance;
water pollution control; solid waste management; recreational and cultural activities and facilities; and a
general aviation airport.

The City Council is required to hold a public hearing on and adopt a budget for each fiscal year no later
than March 15" of the preceding year. The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial
planning and control. The budget is prepared by function, fund, and department. The legal level of
control is at the function level. The budget may be amended by resolution of City Council following a
required public hearing.

The City’s government-wide financial statements include three discretely presented component units.
These component units are those entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable.
These entities are the Muscatine County Solid Waste Management Agency (Agency), the Muscatine
Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB), and Muscatine Power and Water (MP&W). The Agency is
comprised of eight governmental entities in Muscatine County and based on the City of Muscatine
population, the City accounts for 56% of the board’s voting authority. The City Council also approves the
Agency’s budget, sets its rates and approves any debt issuance. The CVB is administered by the CVB
Board of Directors and receives nearly all of its funding from the City from a portion of the hotel/motel
taxes making the CVB fiscally dependent on the City. MP&W is a municipal utility which provides
water, electric, and communications services within the City of Muscatine and in other areas within
Muscatine County. MP&W’s governing board is appointed by the Mayor and approved by Council.
MP&W provides a financial benefit by providing electricity for City buildings and all street and traffic
lighting free of charge to the City. These entities are reported in separate columns in the government-wide
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

Local Economy

The City of Muscatine has a history of business and industrial development equal to cities of much larger
size. Muscatine is the corporate headquarters of HNI Corporation, makers of office furniture. Other
major employers located in the Muscatine area include H.J. Heinz LP, food processing; Bridgestone-
Bandag, makers of pre-cured tire tread rubber, Monsanto Company, herbicides and plastics; Raymond-
Muscatine, front-end loaders, etc.; Muscatine Foods Corporation, corn distillates and feed; Stanley
Consultants Inc., consulting engineers and architects; and Musco Sports Lighting LLC, sports lighting
systems. The presence of many diverse companies has provided the Muscatine economy with economic
stability and employment security for many years. Unemployment rates over the past ten calendar years
ranged from 3.2% to 8.1% with the rate for 2012 at 5.5%. Prior to 2009, 2010, and 2011 when the rates
were 8.1%, 7.6%, and 6.4%, respectively, the highest previous rate was 4.6% in 2008. The recent higher
rates are attributed to the local effect from the national economy. Muscatine Power and Water, the City of
Muscatine’s municipal light, water, and communications utility, operates the largest municipal power
plant in the State of lowa. This plant provides for abundant supplies of low cost electricity. The City’s
Water Pollution Control Plant has undergone renovation over the years and currently has the capacity to



triple the volume of wastewater it treats with only marginal increases in operating expenditures. The City
operates a general aviation airport and has excellent railroad service provided by the Canadian Pacific
Railroad.

All of these elements provide an excellent atmosphere for continued economic stability and growth.
Long-term Financial Planning

On May 10, 1994, the citizens of Muscatine first voted to implement a 1% local option sales tax for the
purpose of funding storm and sanitary sewer renovation and extension projects. The tax was imposed
effective July 1, 1994, for a five-year period. Voters approved continuation of the local option sales tax
for two subsequent 5-year periods through June 30, 2009. This tax was used primarily for storm and
sanitary storm sewer projects with the exception of 10% that was allocated to the Pearl of the Mississippi
project from May 1, 2003 through June 30, 2009. The 1% local option sales tax generated over $2.5
million in the most recent year.

In 2008 the City held an election for the continuation of this tax. The ballot question approved by voters
extended this tax for an additional ten years (though June 30, 2019) with up to 20% of the proceeds to be
used for the City’s Pavement Management Program with the remaining 80% to be used for storm and
sanitary sewer improvement projects. Future sewer projects have been identified including those required
by an Order for Compliance on Consent issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(E.P.A.). Provisions of the Order required the City to complete separation of the combined sewers in the
Hershey Avenue area by December 31, 2011, and separation for the remaining combined portions of the
sewer system including the West Hill area by December 31, 2024. In November of 2012 the City received
approval from the E.P.A for extension of the completion deadline for the multi-phase, multi-year West
Hill area sewer separation to December 31, 2028. The Hershey Avenue Sewer Separation project was
completed in 2011/2012 and the contract for the first phase of the West Hill Sewer Separation project was
awarded in May of 2012. The contract for the second phase of the West Hill project was awarded in
February of 2013. The election to continue the local option tax again received strong support by voters.

The City began a comprehensive Pavement Management Program in 2007. Allocations totaling over $5
million funded the initial upgrade of streets throughout the City. These improvements were substantially
completed by June 30, 2010. The initial costs of this program were funded with general obligation bond
proceeds. Annual allocations to maintain all streets at this higher level began in 2010/2011 with funding
from the 20% allocation of local option sales tax. This 20% allocation was $504,932 in 2012/2013. In
addition to street improvements funded from local option sales taxes, engineering design was underway in
2012/2013 for major improvements to both Cedar Street and Colorado Street. Those projects will be
funded from federal grants, general obligation bond proceeds, road use taxes, and local option sales taxes.

The City continues to complete improvements at the municipal airport as part of the long range plan for
this facility. In 2012/2013 construction was completed on the runway lighting improvement and airfield
maintenance projects. Work was also underway on the airport obstruction removal project. Projects for
the upcoming year include the runway repair project, the airport hangar access security project, and the T-
hangar drainage project.

Since 2003/2004 the City has made operational changes to address funding reductions to the City’s
General fund as a result of reductions in funding from the State of lowa which began in 2003/2004 and
continued in 2004/2005. The state eliminated approximately $360,000 in annual funding to the City of
Muscatine beginning in 2003/2004 and an additional $70,000 annually was eliminated in 2004/2005. In
response to these reductions, the City made a number of significant budget changes which included
personnel reductions, funding transfers, and consolidation of services. Full-time equivalent employees of



the City are thirteen (13) less than what was included in the original 2003/2004 budget. Nine (9) of these
positions were eliminated when the City of Muscatine and Muscatine County combined their emergency
dispatch services effective in September, 2004. Both entities have and will continue to benefit both
financially and operationally by combining their dispatch services.

A key issue in the development of the 2010/2011 budget was the consideration of and ultimate adoption
of a Utility Franchise Fee on Alliant Energy, the provider of natural gas to the community. The ordinance
change adopting this fee provides that the fee may be up to 5% on natural gas sales by Alliant in the
community. The initial rate was set at 2% which was effective July 1, 2010. Implementation of this fee
allowed for a reduction in the City’s property tax rate for 2010/2011 and future years. The establishment
of this fee also allowed the City to diversify funding sources used for the provision of General Fund
services. With this franchise fee in place for up to 5% of gas sales, this will allow flexibility in future
years for the City Council to modify this rate if needed to continue to provide expected levels of City
services to residents. This rate can be modified by giving a 90-day notice to Alliant Energy. For the
2012/2013 year City Council chose to reduce the Utility Franchise Fee rate to 1% which generated
$103,931. This reduction was possible since there has been increased revenues in other areas of the
General Fund budget, specifically Automatic Traffic Enforcement (ATE) fines and fees for Fire
department inspections and permits. The 1% Utility Franchise Fee was continued in the 2013/2014
budget.

The City made a number of structural and operational changes in 2010/2011 in an effort to place the
General Fund in a better financial position for 2011/2012 and future budget years. These included (1) a
reduction of one full-time position in the Park Maintenance budget; seasonal staff was increased to
partially offset this reduction for a net savings of $49,300, (2) elimination of one full-time custodian
position with contract cleaning services partially offsetting the cost savings for a net savings of $7,400,
(3) funding economic development administrative costs and the Chamber economic development
allocation with Tax Increment Financing (TIF) funds (a total of $137,500 in 2011/2012), (4) not filling
the budgeted % time Automatic Traffic Enforcement (Red Light Camera) Technician in the Police
department net of the cost of creating an additional sergeant position for this function ($30,000 savings),
and (5) transferring the dredge operation to the Water Pollution Control fund ($42,000 General Fund
savings). These items total $266,200 which provided a positive impact on the General Fund for
2011/2012 and will continue to have a positive impact on the General Fund in future years.

Additional changes implemented in 2011/2012 and 2012/2013 focused on department efficiencies and
cost savings including (1) using sponsorships for the Parks seasonal brochure and Golf score cards saving
$4,700 annually; (2) the new eleven foot mower in the Parks department and trackhoe for grave digging at
the Cemetery both saved man hours that were redirected to other functions in those divisions; (3)
additional Park sites were “adopted” under the “Adopt a Park” program with this program expanding
from four sites in 2010 to twelve in 2013; (4) redesigning the Library circulation system process
eliminating a 35-hour/week position and creating a new 30-hour/week “Holds” person at a lower pay rate
for a savings of $17,800; (5) using staggered work times in the Police investigations division which
reduced overtime and call-ins saving an estimated $3,500 in overtime costs annually; (6) activities in the
Engineering (engineering design for smaller projects), Community Development (Comprehensive Plan
update), and Art Center (printing) were done in-house rather than under contracts resulting in varying
amounts of cost savings; (7) using inmate labor to clear the Airport fence line of unwanted growth saved
an estimated $22,000; and (8) the use of automatic traffic enforcement cameras has allowed the Police
department to re-direct their time to other areas of law enforcement.

Departments will continue to look for efficiencies and cost savings in their operations in 2013/2014 and
future years. The City’s goal for the upcoming year of establishing a formal “Lean” program will assist
departments in identifying and implementing efficiencies and cost savings applicable to their department



operations. With limited financial resources expected to be available in future years and a growing
demand for municipal services, the City must continue to take significant steps to enhance revenue
streams as well as reduce expenditures where appropriate to meet these challenges.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City’s current budget policies provide that the City’s unreserved General Fund balance be at least
10% of budgeted General Fund expenditures. The City has been striving to increase the General Fund
balance in recent years over this minimum level. One of City Council’s goals for 2013/2014 is to formally
update this policy to reflect a higher minimum fund balance and to address conditions for use of reserves,
authority over reserves, and replenishment of reserves.

The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 in
2010/2011. This Statement provided for the following classifications of governmental fund balances:
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. The unassigned portion of the General
Fund balance is similar to the previous classification of unreserved balance referenced in the City’s
current financial policies. The unassigned General Fund balance at June 30, 2011 was $2,141,534 which
was 14.3% of General Fund expenditures. The unassigned General Fund balance increased to $3,319,319
at June 30, 2012 which is 21.2% of General Fund expenditures. The unassigned General Fund balance
decreased to $3,073,412 (18.8% of General Fund expenditures) at June 30, 2013. This was a decrease of
$245,907 compared to the prior year unassigned balance. This was a budgeted decrease in fund balance.
For 2012/2013 City Council chose to use a portion of the increased General Fund balance for one-time
capital purchases including $496,438 for a new fire engine and $160,000 for new financial software. The
availability of General Fund resources for these purchases is in part attributed to several categories of new
revenues including automatic traffic enforcement fines (implemented in the spring of 2011) and fire
inspection and permit fees (effective in April, 2011).

For the 2013/2014 budget, taxable property values increased by 2.3% which will provide $141,891 more
in tax funding from the general fund tax levy which has been at the maximum rate of $8.10 per $1,000 of
valuation in all recent years. There was growth in residential property valuations of 5.1%. Commercial
property valuations, however, decreased by 1.2% and industrial property valuations decreased for
2013/2014 by 7.4% due to revaluation of these properties by the County Assessor.

As noted in the previous section, beginning in 2010/2011 the City implemented a 2% utility franchise fee
on the provider of natural gas services in the community. This fee was decreased to 1% for 2012/2013
and the 1% rate was maintained for 2013/2014. The availability of this revenue source will assist in
continuing to fund the City’s core General Fund services to the community. This fee is budgeted to
generate $100,000 in the upcoming 2013/2014 fiscal year. As noted above, this fee may be increased up
to 5% by City Council action with a 90-day notice to the utility.

The City continues to claim less than the full amount of incremental taxes available from the Downtown
and Southend Tax Increment Financing (TIF) areas. As growth in valuations in these areas has exceeded
original projections, balances have been accumulating in these funds in advance of the debt schedules in
effect. Not claiming the full amount allows a portion of the increased values in each area to go back onto
regular taxable valuations of all taxing entities affected. Approximately $522,000 of incremental taxes
were not claimed by the City for 2012/2013 and this same amount is estimated for 2013/2014. This
results in increased regular taxable values and increased taxes generated by the $8.10 General Fund levy.



The effects of the changes implemented by City Council in 2010/2011 through 2012/2013 as well as
those implemented in previous years in reducing the General Fund workforce, combining services with
Muscatine County, and claiming less than the full amount of incremental taxes will continue to be
realized in future years. These changes as well as the implementation of the utility franchise fee beginning
in 2010/2011 and automated traffic enforcement cameras beginning in the spring of 2011 have placed the
City in a more favorable position to address funding requirements for the provision of General Fund
services in future years.

Major Initiatives

The City continues to strive to make significant capital improvements to the City’s infrastructure and
facilities. Major budget initiatives for 2013/2014 include (1) completion of the engineering design,
awarding the bids, and starting construction for major improvements to Cedar Street and Colorado Street;
(2) completion of the first phase of the multi-year, multi-phase West Hill separation project with the first
phase scheduled to be completed late in 2013; (3) start of construction for the second phase of the West
Hill Sewer Separation project; (4) complete construction of the new Weed Park Maintenance facility; (5)
complete construction of the Lab Annex building at the Water Pollution Control plant; and (6) completion
of the design and solicting bids for the Musser Park to Weggins Road Trail Extension.

Awards and Acknowledgements Updated

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Muscatine for its comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This was the 19th consecutive year that the City has
received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published
an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City has also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its
annual budget document for fiscal year 2013/2014. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award, the City’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories,
including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. The
award for the 2013/2014 budget was the 29th consecutive year that the City of Muscatine has received the
GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation. The GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award is good for a period of one year. The City of Muscatine plans to submit its budget document for
the 2014/2015 fiscal year to the GFOA to again be considered for this award.

In regard to the preparation of this report and the accounting activity throughout the year in the Finance
Department, we would like to express our appreciation to all members of this department for their
assistance and contributions for this endeavor. Also appreciated is the continued interest and support by
the members of the City Council and City departments in planning and conducting the financial
operations of the city in a responsible and prudent manner in these times of limited resources and ever-
increasing demands. Lastly, we would extend our appreciation to McGladrey LLP, Certified Public
Accountants, for their assistance and suggestions in regard to the preparation of the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report.



Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Gregg Mandsager /s/ Nancy A. Lueck
City Administrator Finance Director
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McGladrey LLP

g McGladrey

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Muscatine, lowa
Muscatine, lowa

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Muscatine, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit, Muscatine Power & Water,
which represents 98 percent, 100 percent and 99 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position and
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for Muscatine Power & Water, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

14

Member of the RSM Intematlonal network of Independent accounting, tax and consulting firms.



Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Muscatine, lowa, as of June 30, 2013,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As explained in Note 14 to the basic financial statements, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 65,
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which restated the beginning net position of the
governmental activities, business-type activities, Water Pollution Control Fund, Transfer Station Fund and
Refuse Collection Fund. Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 17 through 30, budgetary comparison schedule of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance budget to GAAP reconciliation and schedule of funding
progress for other postemployment benefit plan on pages 71 through 75 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, individual component unit financial statements and the accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133
Audits of State, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations, listed in the table of contents as
supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections as listed in the table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statement. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 5,
2013 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

/%M ceo

Davenport, lowa
December 5, 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Muscatine, we present this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This narrative is intended to supplement the
letter of transmittal and the financial statements and should provide the reader with contextual
information that will advance our goal of full disclosure.

Financial Highlights

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Muscatine exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $135,465,228 (net
position). Of this amount, $9,783,412 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The City’s total net position increased by $2,244,585 during the year. This overall increase is due
to the $2,523,690 increase in the business-type activities which was in part offset by a decrease in
the governmental activities of $279,105.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $10,319,341, a decrease of $1,995,462 in comparison with the prior year. This
overall decrease is primarily in the local option sales tax and capital projects funds. The local
option sales tax fund balance decreased by $694,710 with those funds used for the West Hill
Sewer Separation project. Capital project fund balances decreased by $1,117,778 primary due to
the expenditure of prior year bond proceeds for current year capital project costs, primarily street
projects. Of the ending balance, approximately 13% ($1,315,180) was nonspendable, 54%
($5,632,650) was restricted, 5% ($506,407) was assigned, and 28% ($2,865,104) was unassigned.
Restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned funds are available for spending within the
statutory guidelines pertaining to each fund at the City’s discretion.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$3,073,412, or 18.8% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City’s total debt decreased by $2,919,070 (8.3%) during the current fiscal year. During the
year $1,115,000 in general obligation refunding debt was issued and $3,409,312 in general
obligation debt was retired. No new tax increment revenue bonds were issued and $105,000 was
retired. Sewer revenue loans outstanding decreased by $606,565 during the year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.



The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between these four categories
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator
of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include Public Safety, Public Works, Health and Social
Service, Culture and Recreation, Community and Economic Development, General Government, and
Interest and Fees on Long-term Debt. The business-type activities of the City include Water Pollution
Control, Transfer Station, Refuse Collection, Airport, Parking, Transit, Golf Course, Boat Harbor,
Marina, Ambulance, and Public Housing.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also three legally separate entities, Muscatine Power and Water, the Muscatine
Convention and Visitors Bureau, and the Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency, for which the City of
Muscatine is considered to be financially accountable. Financial information for these three component
units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.
Muscatine Power and Water issues separate financial statements. The Muscatine Convention and Visitors
Bureau and the Solid Waste Agency do not issue separate financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 31-32 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. This information is useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements and is
typically the basis that is used for developing the next annual budget.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The City has four major governmental funds: the General Fund, the Employee Benefits Fund, the Local
Option Sales Tax Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. Information is presented separately in the



governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for these major funds. Data from all other non-major governmental funds are
combined into a single aggregated presentation and are referenced under a single column as Other
Governmental Funds. Individual fund data for each of the non-major governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 33-36 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. They are the enterprise
funds and the internal service funds. While both types of proprietary funds are run in a business-like
manner, enterprise funds are included in business-type activities since they serve the entire community,
while internal service funds are included in governmental activities since they predominantly benefit the
City’s governmental functions.

Enterprise funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City has eleven (11) enterprise funds. Three of the enterprise funds, the
Water Pollution Control Fund, Transfer Station Fund, and Refuse Collection Fund, are considered major
funds and are reported individually throughout the report. The other eight (8) non-major enterprise funds
are grouped together for reporting purposes and listed under a single heading, Other Enterprise Funds.
Detail information for each of the eight (8) non-major enterprise funds is provided in combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Internal service funds are an accounting tool used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
City’s various functions. The City has four internal service funds: Equipment Services, Central Supplies,
Health Insurance, and Dental Insurance. Individual fund data for the Internal Service Funds is provided in
the form of combining statements in the latter section of this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 37-41 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The City has three fiduciary funds, all of
which are maintained as agency funds, with no attempt to create ongoing fund balances.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statement can be found on page 42 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 43-70.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information. Required supplementary information includes (1) a
budgetary comparison schedule on the aggregate basis for the City’s budgeted governmental and
proprietary funds, and (2) the schedule of funding progress for the City’s other post employment benefits
plan.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, non-
major enterprise funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As stated earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $135,465,228 at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (87.8%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

CITY OF MUSCATINE’S NET POSITION

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Current and other assets $ 26,280,394 $ 28,512,152 $ 88314064 $ 9,528,547 $ 35111,858 § 38,040,699
Capital assets 66,711,244 66,531,763 83,498,523 81,553,383 150,209,767 148,085,146
Total assets 92,991,638 95,043,915 92,329,987 91,081,930 185,321,625 186,125,845
Deferred outflows of resources 6,218 - 43,404 - 49,622 -
Long-term liabilities outstanding 18,284,870 19,795,510 16,183,542 17,451,630 34,468,412 37,247,140
Other liabilities 726,968 1,185,446 1,253,729 1,069,402 1,980,697 2,254,848
Total liabilities 19,011,838 20,980,956 17,437,271 18,521,032 36,449,109 39,501,988
Deferred inflows of resources 13,456,910 13,106,743 - - 13,456,910 13,106,743
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 51,062,032 49,843,849 67,867,972 64,583,715 118,930,004 114,427,564
Restricted 6,614,924 8,626,783 136,888 178,360 6,751,812 8,805,143
Unrestricted 2,852,152 2,485,584 6,931,260 7,798,823 9,783,412 10,284,407

Total net position $ 60,529,108 $ 60,956,216 $ 74,936,120 $ 72,560,898 $ 135465228 § 133,517,114

A portion of the City’s net position (5.0%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($9,783,412) may be used to
meet the City’s ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-
type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

Net investment in capital assets increased by $4,502,440 during the year. Restricted net position
decreased by $2,053,331. Unrestricted net position decreased by $500,995 during the year with the
unrestricted net position of business-type activities decreasing by $867,563 and the unrestricted net
position of governmental activities increasing by $366,568.



CITY OF MUSCATINE CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Programrevenues:
Charges for services $ 3,053,992 $ 3,366,985 $ 12,423,768 $ 12,060,724 $ 15477,760 $ 15,427,709
Operating grants, contributions and
restricted interest 4,922,364 4,915,000 820,150 659,185 5,742,514 5,574,185
Capital grants and contributions 767,392 1,398,288 561,426 661,419 1,328,818 2,059,707
General revenues:
Property taxes 13,117,510 12,861,006 - - 13,117,510 12,861,006
Utility taxes 57,576 58,048 - - 57,576 58,048
Local option sales tax 2,567,849 2,543,654 - - 2,567,849 2,543,654
Hotel/motel tax 335,701 347,771 - - 335,701 347,771
Cable franchise tax 222,288 225,902 - - 222,288 225,902
Utility franchise fees 103,931 170,225 - - 103,931 170,225
Intergovernmental, not restricted to
specific programs 150,031 156,229 - - 150,031 156,229
Unrestricted investment earnings 13,582 16,177 9,379 17,875 22,961 34,052
Other 6,958 6,373 19,874 - 26,832 6,373
Total revenues 25,319,174 26,065,658 13,834,597 13,399,203 39,153,771 39,464,861
Expenses:
Public safety 8,106,391 7,933,672 - - 8,106,391 7,933,672
Public works 4,111,389 4,603,469 - - 4,111,389 4,603,469
Health and social service 20,000 17,800 - - 20,000 17,800
Culture and recreation 4,018,788 4,072,299 - - 4,018,788 4,072,299
Community and economic development 3,099,380 3,063,468 - - 3,099,380 3,063,468
General government 2,352,743 2,129,477 - - 2,352,743 2,129.477
Interest and fees on long-term debt 496,578 504,515 - - 496,578 504,515
Water pollution control - - 6,088,562 5,757,128 6,088,562 5,757,128
Transfer station - - 2,140,480 2,302,385 2,140,480 2,302,385
Refuse collection - - 2,068,419 2,015,577 2,068,419 2,015,577
Airport - - 551,499 462,094 551,499 462,094
Parking - - 237,933 244,115 237,933 244,115
Transit - - 1,121,524 1,077,339 1,121,524 1,077,339
Golf course - - 864,167 871,848 864,167 871,848
Boat harbor - - 27,878 31,036 27,878 31,036
Marina - - 13,873 19,507 13,873 19,507
Ambulance - - 500,046 473,350 500,046 473,350
Public housing - - 1,089,036 1,164,215 1,089,036 1,164,215
Total expenses 22,205,769 22,324,700 14,703,417 14,418,594 36,909,186 36,743,294
Increase (decrease) in net position
before transfers 3,113,405 3,740,958 (868,820) (1,019,391) 2,244,585 2,721,567
Tranfers in (out) (3,392,510) (1,144,303) 3,392,510 1,144,303 - -
Increase (decrease) in net position (279,105) 2,596,655 2,523,690 124,912 2,244,585 2,721,567
Net position, beginning of year
(as restated) 60,808,213 58,359,561 72,412,430 72,435,986 133,220,643 130,795,547
Net position, end of year $ 60,529,108 $ 60,956,216 $ 74,936,120 $ 72,560,898 § 135465228 $ 133,517,114

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $279,105. This
overall decrease was primarily due to the increase in transfers out, a substantial portion of which is the
local option sales tax transfer for the West Hill Sewer Separation project accounted for in the Water
Pollution Control fund.



Revenues for governmental activities decreased in total by $746,484 or 2.9% from the previous
year primarily due to a decrease of $630,896 in capital grants and contributions and a decrease in
charges for services of $312,993. These decreases were partially offset by increases in property
taxes and local option sales taxes.

Charges for services for governmental activities decreased by $312,993. Charges for services in
the public safety function decreased by $92,893 primarily due to a decrease in automatic traffic
enforcement (ATE) fines. The ATE cameras became operational in the spring of 2011 and
2011/2012 was the first full fiscal year of their operation. The ATE fines decreased in 2012/2013
due to increased compliance with traffic laws in these areas. Charges for services in the public
works function decreased by $410,607 and culture and recreation charges decreased by $56,841.
The public works decrease was primarily due to one-time charges in 2011/2012 related to a street
project. The decrease in culture and recreation was due to less favorable weather conditions in the
spring of 2013 which impacted aquatic center revenues as well as revenues for other recreation
programs. These decreases were partially offset by increases of $29,757 in the community and
economic development and $217,591 in the general government functions.

Operating grants and contributions for governmental activities increased slightly (by $7,364)
compared to the previous year. .

Capital grants and contributions decreased by $630,896 from the previous year primarily due to
decreased grant funding for capital projects. Prior year capital grants included the final state grant
payment of $718,755 for the new Southend Fire Station.

Property taxes increased by $256,504 during the year or 2.0%.

Local option sales taxes increased by $24,195 or 1.0% during the year.

Hotel/motel taxes decreased by $12,070 or 3.5%.

The reduction of $66,294 in utility franchise fees is due to City Council reducing the franchise fee
rate from 2% to 1% as part of the budget for 2012/2013. The City’s franchise fee ordinance
allows the rate to be up to 5%. This rate can be changed by City Council action by giving a

minimum of a 90 day notice to the utility company.

Unrestricted investment earnings decreased by $2,595 or 16.0% during the year due to the
continued low interest rates.

Expenses for governmental activities decreased by $118,931 or .5% from the previous year.

Governmental expenses increased in the public safety ($173,219), community development
($35,912), general government ($223,266), and health and social services ($2,200) functions.
Expenses decreased in the public works ($492,080) and culture and recreation ($53,511)
functions. Interest and fee expenses also decreased by $7,937.
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s total net position by $2,523,690,
accounting for all of the total increase in the City of Muscatine’s net position during the year. Increases
in net position were reported in the Water Pollution Control, Transfer Station, Refuse Collection, Boat
Harbor, and Ambulance funds. Decreases in net position were reported in the Airport, Parking, Transit,
Golf Course, Marina, and Public Housing funds. Key elements of these changes are as follows:

Net position of the Water Pollution Control fund increased by $2,847,872 during the year
primarily due to capital asset additions. Transfers from the Local Option Sales Tax fund funded
$3,130,824 of sewer-related capital project costs during the year.

Net position of the Transfer Station fund increased by $479,979 during the year. During the year
there was a $726,219 transfer from the debt service fund to fund the transfer station debt
requirements for the year.

Net position of the Refuse Collection fund increased by $55,802 during the year.

Net position of the non-major enterprise funds decreased by $951,183 during the year with the
most significant decreases in the Public Housing ($361,243), Airport ($293,366), Golf Course
($128,110), and Transit ($116,087) funds.

Revenues for the business-type activities increased in total by $435,394 (3.3%).

Charges for services increased in total by $363,044. Water pollution control charges for services
increased by $452,526 and refuse collection charges increased by $27,330. The increase in water
pollution control charges was due to a rate increase. Transfer station charges for services
decreased by $108,389 as a result of decreased waste volume at this facility. There were
decreases in Golf fees and charges of $133,807, boat harbor charges of $11,149, and marina
charges of $5,678, all related to the extremely wet spring weather in 2013. Ambulance fees and
charges increased by $184,672 during the year due to increased ambulance runs and public
housing charges decreased by $67,235 since the prior year amount included $67,134 in one-time
revenue.

Operating grants and contributions increased by $160,965. Public housing operating grants
increased by $179,879. The prior year amount was lower than most years due to changes in the
federal housing program operating subsidy calculations.

Capital grants and contributions decreased by $99,993. Water pollution control capital grants
increased by $170,382 and Airport capital grants decreased by $270,375. Unrestricted investment
income decreased by $8,496 due to the continued low interest rates.

Expenses for the business-type activities increased $284,823 (2.0%). Expenses increased by
$331,434 in the Water Pollution Control fund, decreased by $161,905 in the Transfer Station
fund, and increased by $52,842 in the Refuse Collection fund. Expenses increased by $89,405 in
the Airport fund, by $44,185 in the Transit fund, and by $26,696 in the Ambulance fund.
Expenses decreased by $6,182 in the Parking fund, by $7,681 in the Golf Court fund, by $3,158
in the Boat Harbor fund, by $5,634 in the Marina fund, and by $75,179 in the Public Housing
fund.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $10,319,341, a decrease of $1,995,462 in comparison with the prior year. This decrease was
primarily due to the $1,117,778 decrease in the capital projects funds, $694,710 decrease in the local
option sales tax fund, decrease of $113,890 in the employee benefits fund, and a decrease of $40,425 in
the debt service fund. The decrease in the capital projects funds was primarily due to the expenditure of
prior year general obligation bond proceeds on current year capital project costs. The local option sales
tax fund decrease was primarily due to use of accumulated balance in this fund for a major sewer project.
The decreases in the employee benefits and debt service funds were budgeted decreases to fund current
year employee benefit and debt service costs.

Of the combined $10,319,341 governmental fund balances at year end 12.7% ($1,315,180) is classified as
nonspendable and includes prepaid items, advances to other funds, and permanent fund principal. A total
of $5,632,650 (54.6%) is classified as restricted by grantors, state or federal laws, or enabling legislation.
Assigned fund balances total $506,407 (4.9%) with these funds assigned for purchases on order, future
equipment purchases, risk management, and future grant commitments. The remaining $2,865,104 is
classified as unassigned (27.8%). By definition unassigned balances include all deficit balances. The
Community Development Improvements and Riverfront Improvements capital projects funds had
unassigned fund balance deficits at year-end of $14,219 and $209,003, respectively. These deficits will be
eliminated with future year revenues.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Muscatine. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $3,073,412, while the total fund balance was
$3,668,147. The General Fund balance includes $88,328 classified as nonspendable for prepayments. The
assigned portion of the balance totals $506,407 which includes $250,993 for purchases on order,
$141,838 for future equipment purchases, $73,576 for risk management, and $40,000 for a future grant
commitment. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The unassigned and total general fund
balances at the end of the fiscal year represent 18.8% and 22.4%, respectively, of total general fund
expenditures. These percentages decreased from the prior year computation of unassigned and total fund
balances of 21.2% and 22.9%, respectively. These decreases were planned decreases since the City
budgeted to purchase a new fire engine ($496,438) and new financial software ($160,000) from the
General fund in 2012/2013. The City' of Muscatine’s general fund balance increased by $87,344 during
the current fiscal year.

The Employee Benefits fund balance decreased during the year by $113,890. Taxes are levied in this fund
for employee benefits for general fund employees. The decrease in fund balance was due to the budgeted
use of a portion of the prior year balance in this fund which had accumulated due to savings in employee
benefit costs from vacancies in prior years.

The Local Option Sales Tax fund balance decreased during the fiscal year by $694,710. Funds
accumulated in this fund in prior years were used to fund Phase I of the West Hill Sewer Separation
project.



The Debt Service Fund balance decreased $40,425 due to the budgeted use of prior year excess bond
proceeds.

The fund balances in the Other Governmental Funds decreased in total by $1,233,781. This was primarily
due to the decreases in the capital projects fund balances of $1,117,778. Most of this decrease was due to
the expenditure of prior year general obligation bond proceeds on current year capital project costs.

Proprietary funds. The City of Muscatine’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Total net position for the City’s enterprise funds as of June 30, 2013 was $74,758,037, an increase of
$2,432,470 from the previous fiscal year. Of the net position of the enterprise funds, $67,867,972 is the
net investment in capital assets of the enterprise funds. Restricted net position totaled $136,888.
Unrestricted net position totaled $6,753,177, a decrease of $958,783 compared to the previous year.

The City’s internal service funds include Equipment Services, Central Supplies, Health Insurance, and
Dental Insurance. Net position for the internal service funds totaled $1,904,869 as of June 30, 2013, an
increase of $189,509 from the previous year. This overall increase was primarily due to an increase in the
Health Insurance fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year there was a $564,990 increase in General Fund appropriations between the original
General Fund budget and the final amended budget. Budgeted revenues and transfers in to the General
Fund increased by $326,344 from the original to the amended budget. Following are the main
components of the overall budget increases during the year:

e The $130,130 overall increase in the public safety function budget included increases of $124,000
in the fire department and $7,930 for emergency management. The police budget decreased
slightly ($1,800) between the original budget and the amended budget. The increase in the fire
budget included increases in various areas of the budget including increased allocations for fuel,
vehicle and equipment repair parts and services, increased personnel costs including retirement
pay for a former assistant chief, and increased insurance costs. The increase in the emergency
management budget was primarily due to the matching funds (15%) for a homeland security grant
which funded the emergency siren activation upgrade to a radio controlled system

e The culture and recreation function increased in total by $87,100. This overall increase includes
increases totaling $63,900 in the various Parks department budgets. The Park department increase
included $22,200 for a new park shelter in Weed Park which was 100% funded from donations,
with the balance of the increase in various other park activities, primarily for increased
maintenance costs. The Art Center budget was increased by $23,200 which included an increase
of $13,500 from a State Cultural Affairs grant in that amount awarded after the original budget
was adopted and an increase of $9,700 in insurance costs for the art center’s collections.

e The community and economic development function appropriation was increased by $4,700
primarily for economic development administrative and legal costs.



e Public works department expenditures were amended upward in total by $35,900 with this
increase primarily in the roadway maintenance activity.

e The amended budget included a $37,000 increase in the general government function
expenditures. Significant increases were in the Human Resources ($16,000), Risk Management
($12,700), and Buildings and Grounds ($55,500) budgets. These increases were partially offset by
decreases in other general government activity budgets.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Muscatine’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2013, amounts to $150,209,767 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and building improvements, machinery and
equipment, park facilities, streets, and bridges. The City of Muscatine’s investment in capital assets for
the current fiscal year increased by $179,481 for governmental activities compared to the prior year and
increased by $1,945,140 for business-type activities.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
e Additions to capital assets (net of asset retirements) totaled $8,660,549.
e  Major asset additions included $2,179,968 in street improvements; $4,470,176 in sewer system
improvements; $330,164 for the golf course irrigation system, $496,438 for a new fire engine,

and $79,686 for Airport improvements.

e Depreciation expense totaled $7,050,824 for the year with $3,343,878 in the governmental
activities and $3,706,946 in the business-type activities.

City of Muscatine Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land, art work and construction in
progress, not being depreciated $ 19,880,556 $ 20,734,527 $ 8,446,710 $ 4524371 $ 28327266 $ 25,258,898
Other capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation 46,830,688 45,797,236 75,051,813 77,029,012 121,882,501 122,826,248
Total capital assets $ 66,711,244 $ 66,531,763 $ 83,498,523 § 81,553,383 $ 150,209,767 $ 148,085,146

Additional information on the City of Muscatine’s capital assets can be found in note 4 on pages 55-58 of
this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of
$32,367,687. Of this amount, $16,459,687 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. Of this
amount $800,955 is debt that serves enterprise funds and therefore is reflected as debt of the respective
enterprise funds with the remainder of the general obligation bonds $15,658,732 reflected as debt of the
governmental activities. The remainder of the City of Muscatine’s debt represents revenue bonds secured
solely by specific revenue sources.



City of Muscatine Outstanding Debt

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
General obligation bonds $ 15658732 $ 17,177,089 $ 800,955 $ 1,490,103 § 16459687 § 18,667,192
Revenue bonds 1,035,000 1,140,000 14,873,000 15,479,565 15,908,000 16,619,565
Total $ 16,693,732 $ 18,317,089 $ 15673955 $ 16,969,668 § 32367687 $§  35286,757

The City’s total bonded debt decreased by $2,919,070 during the year. The City issued $1,115,000 in
general obligation refunding bonds during the year and issued $5,000 in new sewer revenue debt. The
$5,000 in sewer revenue debt was the final amount on the State Revolving Fund Loan which financed
major improvements to the Water Pollution Control plant. Debt retired included $3,405,000 in general
obligation bonds, $105,000 of tax increment revenue bonds, and $611,565 in sewer revenue bonds.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt to 5% of the total actual valuation of property in
the City of Muscatine. The current debt limit of the City of Muscatine is $60,902,264. The amount of
bonded debt applicable to the debt limit totals $17,450,000. The City also has Tax Increment Financing
rebate agreements which total to a maximum obligation of $13,690,463 as of the end of the year. The
bonded debt and rebate agreements total to $31,140,463. Although tax increment rebate agreements are
required to be included in the computation of debt subject to the debt limit, these obligations are totally
financed by incremental taxes received from the benefitted properties. The City’s debt, including the
rebate agreement obligations, is significantly less than the maximum debt limit allowed.

The City was assigned an Aa2 rating from Moody’s for the City’s general obligation debt issue in June of
2012. This rating was the same rating as that assigned for the June, 2010 bond issue.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 5 on pages 58-63 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for Muscatine County was 5.5% for calendar year 2012 compared to
6.4% the previous year. Separate unemployment figures are not maintained for the City of
Muscatine.

e The City’s taxable value increased by 2.8% for the 2012/2013 year and increased by 2.3% for the
upcoming 2013/2014 fiscal year.

e The upcoming budget provides funding for capital improvement projects to continue. Local
option sales tax funds will continue to be used to fund sanitary and storm sewer projects in the
City (80%) and also ongoing costs of the City’s pavement management program (20%).

e Two major street reconstruction projects are scheduled for 2014 - Cedar Street from Parham to
Houser and Colorado Street. These projects will be financed with a combination of grant funds,
general obligation bonds, road use taxes, and local option sales taxes.

e In 2013/2014 the City will continue the ongoing maintenance portion of the Comprehensive
Pavement Management Program. Prior year funding allocations totaling over $5 million were



used to complete the initial upgrade of the City’s streets. Annual allocations to maintain streets at
this higher level will be funded from the 20% allocation of local option sales tax.

e In 2007 the City signed a Consent Order with the Environmental Protection Agency (E.P.A.)
which requires the City to complete specific major sewer separation projects by 2024. In
November of 2012 the City received notification that the request to extend the deadline to 2028
had been approved by the E.P.A. The West Hill Sewer Separation project is the remaining project
mandated by this Consent Order. This is a multi-year, multi-phase project estimated to reach or
exceed $50 million in total costs. Local option sales tax funds will fund a significant portion of
the cost of this project. The local option sales tax funds, however, will need to be supplemented
with future sewer revenue bonds or other funds to complete the financing for this project. The
City is setting aside annual allocations from the Water Pollution Control fund operating budget so
these funds will be available to assist with financing this project.

o The 2013/2014 budget provides for increases in sewer fees. No fee increases are budgeted for the
transfer station, refuse collection, parking, golf course, boat harbor, airport, or transit.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Muscatine’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance
Director, 215 Sycamore Street, Muscatine, lowa, 52761.



ASSETS

Cash and pooled investments
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles):

Interest

Taxes

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Loan receivable from component unit
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaids
Restricted assets:

Temporarily restricted:

Cash and pooled investments
Capital assets:

Land, art work and construction

in progress, not being depreciated
Other capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation

Utility plant in service

Joint venture rights

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charges on refundings

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accruals
Retainages payable

Deposits

Accrued interest payable
Escrow liability

Unearned revenue

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Current installment of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Loan due to primary government
Closure/post-closure obligation

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Public works

Community and economic development

Public safety
Employee benefits
Tax increment financing projects
Culture and recreation
Capital projects
Perpetual care, nonexpendable
Endowments:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net position

City of Muscatine, lowa

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

Primary Government

Component Units

Muscatine Muscatine Muscatine
Governmental Business-type County Solid Convention & Power &
Activities Activities Total Waste Agency Visitors Bureau Water
$ 9,796,348 $ 5,352,588 $ 15,148,936 $ - N 64,831 $ 13,637,808
1,331,345 316,584 1,647,929 - - 3,027,000
5,783 - 5,783 - - 736,918
14,054,498 - 14,054,498 - - -
375,147 1,675,544 2,050,691 - - 7,497,904
676,009 89,830 765,839 - - -
- 1,022,347 1,022,347 - - -
(178,083) 178,083 - - - -
131,019 55,200 186,219 - - 20,090,576
88,328 4,400 92,728 - - 561,327

- 136,888 136,888 1,360,499 - 7,039,626
19,880,556 8,446,710 28,327,266 1,080,608 - 3,649,526
46,830,688 75,051,813 121,882,501 1,300,039 10,271 -

- - - - - 119,442,218

- - - - - 110,558
92,991,638 92,329,987 185,321,625 3,741,146 75,102 175,793,461

6,218 43,404 49,622 - - -
541,133 900,278 1,441,411 58,400 296 7,702,062
82,594 216,239 298,833 - - -

- 45,801 45,801 - - 2,177,462
37,073 42,444 79,517 - - 623,522
21,637 - 21,637 - - -
44,531 48,967 93,498 - - 6,349,845

- - - - - 943,000

- - - - - 92,980

2,316,549 1,562,988 3,879,537 1,406 - -
15,968,321 14,581,909 30,550,230 182 - 3,427,351

- - - 1,022,347 - -

- 38,645 38,645 2,558,574 - -
19,011,838 17,437,271 36,449,109 3,640,909 296 21,316,222
13,456,910 - 13,456,910 - - -
51,062,032 67,867,972 118,930,004 2,380,647 10,271 117,327,198

93,347 98,243 191,590 - - -
2,786,595 - 2,786,595 - - -
321,698 - 321,698 - - -
41,579 - 41,579 - - -
50,368 - 50,368 - - -
1,091,092 - 1,091,092 - - -
28,935 - 28,935 - - -
598,605 - 598,605 - - -
850,274 - 850,274 - - -
168,061 - 168,061 - - -
584,370 - 584,370 - - -

- 38,645 38,645 - - 6,947,624

2,852,152 6,931,260 9,783,412 (2,280,410) 64,535 30,202,417
$ 60,529,108 $ 74,936,120  $ 135,465,228 $ 100,237 § 74,806 $ 154,477,239

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Functions:
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Interest and fees on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water pollution control
Transfer station
Refuse collection
Airport
Parking
Transit
Golf course
Boat harbor
Marina
Ambulance
Public housing

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component Units:
Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency
Muscatine Convention & Visitors Bureau
Muscatine Power & Water

Total component units

Program Revenues

City of Muscatine, lowa

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Component Units

Operating Grants, Capital Muscatine County Muscatine
Charges for Contributions and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Solid Waste Convention & Muscatine
Expenses Services Restricted Interest Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Visitors Bureau Power & Water
$ 8,106,891 $ 1,137,537 $ 450,326 $ 28,439 $  (6,490,589) $ - $ (6,490,589)
4,111,389 224,263 2,345,681 695,184 (846,261) - (846,261)
20,000 - - - (20,000) - (20,000)
4,018,788 488,456 251,156 15,759 (3,263,417) - (3,263,417)
3,099,380 456,674 1,875,201 - (767,505) - (767,505)
2,352,743 747,062 - 28,010 (1,577,671) - (1,577,671)
496,578 - - - (496,578) - (496,578)
22,205,769 3,053,992 4,922,364 767,392 (13,462,021) - (13,462,021)
6,088,562 5,399,757 529 439,360 - (248,916) (248,916)
2,140,480 1,850,428 34,540 - - (255,512) (255,512)
2,068,419 2,137,772 - - - 69,353 69,353
551,499 69,136 12,929 122,066 - (347,368) (347,368)
237,933 177,415 - - - (60,518) (60,518)
1,121,524 179,622 509,141 - - (432,761) (432,761)
864,167 740,694 - - - (123,473) (123,473)
27,878 28,665 - - - 787 787
13,873 13,079 - - - (794) (794)
500,046 1,351,714 - - - 851,668 851,668
1,089,036 475,486 263,011 - - (350,539) (350,539)
14,703,417 12,423,768 820,150 561,426 - (898,073) (898,073)
$ 36,909,186 $ 15,477,760 $ 5,742,514 $ 1,328,818 (13,462,021) (898,073) (14,360,094)
$ 1,127,763 $ 1,210,186 $ 117,177 $ - $ 199,600 $ - $ -
29,247 - 103,980 - - 74,733
98,094,426 97,130,827 - 296,821 - - (666,778)
$ 99,251,436 $ 98,341,013 $ 221,157 $ 296,821 199,600 74,733 (666,778)
General revenues:
Property taxes 13,117,510 - 13,117,510 - - -
Utility taxes 57,576 - 57,576 - - -
Local option sales tax 2,567,849 - 2,567,849 - - -
Hotel/motel taxes 335,701 - 335,701 - - -
Cable franchise taxes 222,288 - 222,288 - - -
Utility franchise fees 103,931 103,931 - - -
Intergovernmental, unrestricted 150,031 - 150,031 - - -
Unrestricted investment income 13,582 9,379 22,961 149 73 1,372,414
Gain on sale of capital assets - 19,874 19,874 - - -
Contributions to endowments 6,958 - 6,958 - - -
Transfers (3,392,510) 3,392,510 - - - -
Total general revenues, contributions to endowments and transfers 13,182,916 3,421,763 16,604,679 149 73 1,372,414
Change in net position (279,105) 2,523,690 2,244,585 199,749 74,806 705,636
Net position, June 30, 2012, as restated 60,808,213 72,412,430 133,220,643 (99,512) - 153,771,603
Net position, June 30, 2013 $ 60,529,108 $ 74,936,120 $ 135,465,228 $ 100,237 $ 74,806 $ 154,477,239

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Muscatine, Iowa

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2013

Other Total
Employee Local Option Governmental  Governmental
General Benefits Sales Tax Debt Service Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments $ 3,196,648 $ 20,072 $ 1,475,843 $ 70,256 $ 2,997,691 $ 7,760,510
Investments - - - - 1,331,345 1,331,345
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles):
Interest 29 - - - 5,754 5,783
Taxes 7,207,741 3,057,501 470,045 2,397,277 921,934 14,054,498
Accounts 306,074 - - - 40,097 346,171
Intergovernmental 243,416 - - - 432,593 676,009
Prepaid insurance 88,328 - - - - 88,328
Advances to other funds - - - - 244,578 244,578
Total assets 11,042,236 3,077,573 1,945,888 2,467,533 5,973,992 24,507,222
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accruals $ 212,259 $ - $ - $ - $ 73,124 $ 285,383
Retainages payable - - - - 82,594 82,594
Escrow liability - - - - 21,637 21,637
Advances from other funds - - - - 244,578 244,578
Unearned revenue 22,811 - - - 21,720 44,531
Total liabilities 235,070 - - - 443,653 678,723
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 7,138,119 3,027,205 - 2,374,186 917,400 13,456,910
Unavailable revenue - other taxes - - 51,348 - - 51,348
Unavailable revenue - intergovernmental 900 - - - - 900
Total deferred inflows of resources 7,139,019 3,027,205 51,348 2,374,186 917,400 13,509,158
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Prepaid items - - - - - -
Advances to other funds - - - - 244,578 244,578
Permanent fund principal - - - - 982,274 982,274
Restricted for:
Grant purposes - - - - 965,280 965,280
Housing assistance payments - - - - 54,393 54,393
Tax levy purposes - 50,368 - - 1,091,092 1,141,460
Sewer and street projects 1,894,540 - - 1,894,540
Debt service - - - 93,347 - 93,347
Housing and community development - - - - 194,080 194,080
Art center - - - - 372,820 372,820
Library - - - - 218,009 218,009
Capital projects - - - - 598,605 598,605
Other purposes - - - - 100,116 100,116
Assigned to:
Purchases on order 250,993 - - - - 250,993
Future equipment purchases 141,838 - - - - 141,838
Risk management 73,576 - - - - 73,576
Future grant commitments 40,000 - - - - 40,000
Unassigned 3,161,740 - - - (208,308) 2,953,432
Total fund balances 3,668,147 50,368 1,894,540 93,347 4,612,939 10,319,341
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 11,042,236 $ 3,077,573 $ 1,945,888 $ 2,467,533 $ 5,973,992 $ 24,507,222

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Total governmental fund balances $ 10,319,341
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds. 66,690,936
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore

are deferred in the funds. 52,248
Unamortized balance of deferred amount of refunding bonds not reported in the funds 6,218

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment services, central supplies
and health insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 1,904,869

Internal service fund allocations to business-type activities (178,083)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Bonds payable (16,693,732)
Accrued interest payable (37,073)
Compensated absences (1,246,190)
Other post-employment benefits (289,426)
Net position of governmental activities $ 60,529,108

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



REVENUES

Taxes:

Property

Utility

Hotel/motel

Cable franchise

Utility franchise

Local option sales
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic
development
General government
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Paying agent
Refunding bond issuance costs
Capital outlay:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic
development
General government

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Refunding bonds issued
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, June 30, 2012

Fund balances, June 30, 2013

City of Muscatine, lowa

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Other Total
Employee Local Option Debt Governmental Governmental

General Benefits Sales Tax Service Funds Funds
$ 6,934,096 $ 3,016,089 $ - $ 2,330,018 $ 837,307 $ 13,117,510
32,683 14,225 - 10,668 - 57,576
335,701 - - - - 335,701
222,288 - - - - 222,288
103,931 - - - - 103,931
- - 2,524,657 - - 2,524,657
390,491 - - - - 390,491
895,789 - - - - 895,789
578,958 - - 114,312 4,274,617 4,967,887
527,813 - - - - 527,813
170,847 - 2,425 1,390 32,931 207,593
956,507 - - - 351,818 1,308,325
11,149,104 3,030,314 2,527,082 2,456,388 5,496,673 24,659,561
7,703,350 - - - 642 7,703,992
1,829,551 - - - - 1,829,551
20,000 - - - - 20,000
2,753,211 - - - 31,056 2,784,267
797,506 - - - 2,322,828 3,120,334
2,049,017 - - - - 2,049,017
- - - 2,630,000 105,000 2,735,000
- - - 447,398 61,308 508,706
- - - 2,800 - 2,300
- - - 15,021 - 15,021
778,394 - - - 188,211 966,605
109,558 - - - 1,953,130 2,062,688
284,219 - - - 43,604 327,823
17,250 - - - 4,664 21,914
40,151 - - - 235,970 276,121
16,382,207 - - 3,095,219 4,946,413 24,423,839
(5,233,103) 3,030,314 2,527,082 (638,831) 550,260 235,722
- - - 1,115,000 - 1,115,000
5,932,686 - - 209,625 887,467 7,029,778
(612,239) (3,144,204) (3,221,792) (726,219) (2,671,508) (10,375,962)
5,320,447 (3,144,204) (3,221,792) 598,406 (1,784,041) (2,231,184)
87,344 (113,890) (694,710) (40,425) (1,233,781) (1,995,462)
3,580,803 164,258 2,589,250 133,772 5,846,720 12,314,803
$ 3,608,147 $ 50,368 $ 1,894,540 $ 93,347 $ 4,612,939 $ 10,319,341

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



City of Muscatine, lowa

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the
estimated useful lives of the assets:

Capital asset purchases capitalized
Depreciation expense

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales,
trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net position:
Capital contributions - land and permanent easements
Capital contributions - art
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds.

Revenues in the governmental funds not reflected as revenue in the statement of activities

since recognized in prior years

The issuance of long-term debt (i.e. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources

to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes

the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities:

General obligation refunding bond proceeds

General obligation bond principal payments

Tax increment bond principal payments

Net effects of bond premiums, discounts, and deferred amounts on refunding

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Change in compensated absenses
Other post-employment benefits
Change in accrued interest payable

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of equipment services,

central office supplies, health and dental insurance to individual funds. The net revenue (expense)
of internal service funds is allocated between governmental and business-type activities in the

Statement of Activities:

Net revenue (expense) of internal service funds
Allocation of net revenue (expense) to business-type activities

Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ (1,995,462)

2,965,780
(3,341,132)

537,256
43,000
(31,353)

52,248

(134,809)

(1,115,000)
2,630,000
105,000
9,575

(44,443)
(63,408)
5,354

189,509
(91,220)

$  (279,105)



ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Investments

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):

Accounts
Intergovernmental:
Federal
State
County
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and pooled investments
Advances to component unit
Advances to other funds
Capital assets:
Land
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding

LIABILITES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accruals
Retainages payable
Compensated absences payable
Due to other funds
Deposits
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
State revolving fund loan
General obligation bonds

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
State revolving fund loan
Advances from other funds
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Transfer station closure obligation

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Closure costs
Unrestricted

Total net position

City of Muscatine, lowa

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2013

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water Other Activities -
Pollution Transfer Refuse Enterprise Internal
Control Station Collection Funds Total Service Funds
$ 5,048,080 - N 48,433 256,075 5,352,588 $ 2,035,838
- - - 316,584 316,584 -
612,422 545,641 298,093 219,388 1,675,544 28,976
- - - 73,364 73,364 -
5,000 - - 6,665 11,665 -
- - - 4,801 4,801 -
6,540 - - 5212 11,752 1,095
- - - 55,200 55,200 131,019
- - - 4,400 4,400 -
5,672,042 545,641 346,526 941,689 7,505,898 2,196,928
98,243 38,645 - - 136,888 -
1,022,347 - - - 1,022,347 -
637,769 - - - 637,769 -
536,914 175,000 - 2,173,659 2,885,573 -
173,126 1,019,897 - 12,126,683 13,319,706 -
49,583,409 7,428,336 1,312,083 10,530,356 68,854,184 -
4,652,698 221,942 108,521 1,220,440 6,203,601 117,956
982,546 538,701 608,901 1,476,528 3,606,676 64,309
45,274,672 - - - 45,274,672 -
5,545,937 - - 15,200 5,561,137 -
(38,156,853) (4,836,228) (1,099,797) (18,114,148) (62,207,026) (161,957)
68,592,449 4,547,648 929,708 9,428,718 83,498,523 20,308
70,350,808 4,586,293 929,708 9,428,718 85,295,527 20,308
76,022,850 5,131,934 1,276,234 10,370,407 92,801,425 2,217,236
- 39,018 4,386 - 43,404 -
603,038 42,234 51,049 203,957 900,278 255,750
211,009 - - 5,230 216,239 -
94,509 8,115 28,407 53,002 184,033 19,805
- - - 11,752 11,752 1,095
- - - 45,801 45,801 -
40,278 1,904 262 - 42,444 -
- - 732 48,235 48,967 -
578,000 - - - 578,000 -
- 704,040 96,915 - 800,955 -
1,526,834 756,293 177,365 367,977 2,828,469 276,650
14,295,000 - - - 14,295,000 -
- 449,449 - 188,320 637,769 -
89,579 5,978 35,523 50,994 182,074 27,873
56,594 7,197 19,277 21,767 104,835 7,844
- 38,645 - - 38,645 -
14,441,173 501,269 54,800 261,081 15,258,323 35,717
15,968,007 1,257,562 232,165 629,058 18,086,792 312,367
53,719,449 3,882,626 837,179 9,428,718 67,867,972 20,308
98,243 - - - 98,243 -
- 38,645 - - 38,645 -
6,237,151 (7,881) 211,276 312,631 6,753,177 1,884,561
$ 60,054,843 3,913,390 $ 1,048,455 9,741,349 74,758,037 $ 1,904,869

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Reconciliation of Proprietary Funds Net Position
to the Net Position of Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2013

Total enterprise fund net position $74,758,037

Amounts reported for enterprise activities in the statement of net position are
different because:
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
services to individual funds. Internal service fund net position increased during
the year. A portion of this increase has been allocated to business-type
activities in the statement of net position 178,083

Net position of business-type activities $74,936,120

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Operating revenues:
Charges for sales and services
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Other contributions
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Cost of sales and services:
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services

Administration

Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Intergovernmental
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets

Non-operating revenues (expenses), net

Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions - grants

Capital contributions - property owners
Transfers in

Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position, June 30, 2012, as restated

Net position, June 30, 2013

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

City of Muscatine, lowa

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water Other Activities -
Pollution Transfer Refuse Enterprise Internal
Control Station Collection Funds Total Service Funds
N 5,127,920 $ 1,843,339 $ 2,133,017 $ 2,884,495 11,988,771 $ 1,211,305
R - - - - 2,278,187
- - - - - 216,783
- - - - - 159,741
271,837 7,089 4,755 151,316 434,997 4,636
5,399,757 1,850,428 2,137,772 3,035,811 12,423,768 3,870,652
2,016,346 231,695 732,771 1,702,963 4,683,775 297,637
245,114 39,521 88,103 555,254 927,992 643,456
744,258 1,580,139 1,106,820 1,075,542 4,506,759 2,674,855
167,400 2,500 61,700 132,500 364,100 18,300
2,457,414 211,567 83,840 954,125 3,706,946 2,746
5,630,532 2,065,422 2,073,234 4,420,384 14,189,572 3,636,994
(230,775) (214,994) 64,538 (1,384,573) (1,765,804) 233,658
- 34,540 - 785,081 819,621 -
8,049 - 125 1,734 9,908 2,177
(502,570) (81,327) (10,210) - (594,107) -
2,984 16,890 - (10,958) 8,916 -
(491,537) (29,897) (10,085) 775,857 244,338 2,177
(722,312) (244,891) 54,453 (608,716) (1,521,466) 235,835
- - - 122,066 122,066 -
439,360 - - - 439,360 -
3,130,824 726,219 1,349 374,467 4,232,859 -
- (1,349) - (839,000) (840,349) (46,326)
2,847,872 479,979 55,802 (951,183) 2,432,470 189,509
57,206,971 3,433,411 992,653 10,692,532 72,325,567 1,715,360
$ 60,054,843 $ 3,913,390 $ 1,048,455 $ 9,741,349 74,758,037 $ 1,904,869




City of Muscatine, Iowa

Reconciliation of the Change in Net Position of Enterprise Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Change in net position in enterprise funds

Amounts reported for proprietary activities in the statement of activities
are different because:
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of various
activities internally to individual funds. Internal service fund net position increased during
the year. A portion of this increase has been allocated to business-type activities
in the statement of net position

Change in net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 2,432,470

91,220

$ 2,523,690



Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments for interfund services used
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other funds
Advances from other funds
Advances to other funds
Repayment of advance to solid waste component unit
Repayment of advances from other funds
Repayment of advances to other funds
Subsidies from federal, state and local grants
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Capital contributions

Purchase of capital assets

Return of portion of prior year prepaid asset purchase

Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchase of investments
Interest received
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and pooled investments
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2012

Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2013

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accruals
Compensated absences payable
Other post-employment benefits
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non-cash capital and related financing activities:
Accounts payable used to purchase capital assets
Intergovernmental receivable for capital debt
Capital contributions
Transfer of capital asset

City of Muscatine, lowa

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water Other Activities -
Pollution Transfer Refuse Enterprise Internal
Control Station Collection Funds Total Service Funds
$ 5,383,645 $ 2,171,729 $ 2,119,987 $ 3,054,526 $ 12,729,887 $ -

- - - - - 3,860,638
(1,013,446) (1,543,211) (1,090,743) (1,103,730) (4,751,130) (3,325,565)
(1,400,532) (156,370) (496,615) (1,323,231) (3,376,748) (201,116)

(612,884) (68,716) (225,382) (372,420) (1,279,402) (91,656)
(205,906) (94,878) (172,833) (606,399) (1,080,016) (18,300)
2,150,877 308,554 134,414 (351,254) 2,242,591 224,001

- - - (839,000) (839,000) (46,326)
3,130,824 726,219 - 374,467 4,231,510 -

- - - 193,531 193,531 1,095
(188,320) - - (5,212) (193,532) (1,095)
433,295 - - - 433,295 -

- (359,985) - (3,992) (363,977) (1,199)
363,451 - - 526 363,977 1,199

- 34,540 - 785,681 820,221 -
3,739,250 400,774 - 506,001 4,646,025 (46,326)

407,500 - - 108,689 516,189 -
(4,891,706) - (31,622) (444,629) (5,367,957) (8,676)

- - - 1,100 1,100 -
(611,565) (681,225) (93,775) - (1,386,565) -
(545,341) (44,994) (6,194) - (596,529) -

26,608 16,890 - - 43,498 -
(5,614,504) (709,328) (131,591) (334,840) (6,790,263) (8,676)

- - - 540,011 540,011 -

- - - (464,983) (464,983) -
8,049 - 125 1,890 10,064 2,177
8,049 - 125 76,918 85,092 2,177
283,673 - 2,948 (103,175) 183,446 171,176
4,862,650 38,645 45,485 359,250 5,306,030 1,864,662
$ 5,146,323 $ 38,645 $ 48,433 $ 256,075 $ 5,489,476 $ 2,035,838
$ (230,775 $ (214994 8 64,538 $ (1,384,573) $ (1,765,804) § 233,658
2,457,414 211,567 83,840 954,125 3,706,946 2,746
(16,112) 321,301 (18,100) 11,538 298,627 (10,014)

- - - (4,671) (4,671) 26,438

- - - 38,624 38,624 -
(62,580) (15,929) (6,954) 19,217 (66,246) (33,692)

(8,844) 5,112 6,764 2,782 5,814 3,233
11,774 1,497 4,011 4,528 21,810 1,632

- - 315 5,351 5,666 -

- - - 1,825 1,825 -
2,381,652 523,548 69,876 1,033,319 4,008,395 (9,657)

$ 2,150,877 $ 308,554 $ 134,414 $  (351,254) $ 2,242,591 $ 224,001
272,830 - - 15,121 287,951 -
5,000 - - - 5,000 -
31,860 - - - 31,860 -
- (1,349) 1,349 - - -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2013
Agency
Funds
Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 672,424
Accounts receivable 50,821
Due from other funds 50,500
Total assets 773,745
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals 723,245
Due to other funds 50,500
Total liabilities $ 773,745

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this
statement.



CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

The notes to the financial statements contain a summary of significant accounting policies and other information
considered necessary for an understanding of the financial statements of the City and are an integral part of this
report. The index to the notes is as follows:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Deposits and Investments

Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Capital Assets

Long-Term Debt

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost

Retirement Systems

Deficit Fund Equity

Other Post Employment Health and Dental Care Benefits (OPEB)

. Industrial Revenue Bonds

. Risk Management

. Commitments and Contingencies

. New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards
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NOTE 1.

CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

The City of Muscatine, lowa, was chartered in 1851 under the laws of the state of lowa, later
amended in July 1975 under the Home Rule City Act. The City operates under a
Mayor/Council/City Administrator form of government and provides a broad range of services to its
citizens, including general government, public safety, public works, community development, and
cultural and park facilities. The City also operates an airport, parking facilities, public housing
facilities, transit system, sewer and sanitation utilities, a municipal golf course, public library, and a
municipal museum and art center.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these
financial statements present the City of Muscatine and its component units, entities for which the
City is considered to be financially accountable. The City has no blended component units. Each
discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency (Agency). The Agency has been organized as a joint
venture under Chapter 28E of the Code of Iowa between the City of Muscatine; Muscatine County;
and the municipalities of Fruitland, Stockton, West Liberty, Nichols, Conesville and Atalissa, lowa.
The Agency is responsible for the disposal of all solid waste for member municipalities and
unincorporated portions of Muscatine County.

The City of Muscatine appoints a representative to the Agency's governing board whose vote (based
on the City's population) accounts for 56% of the board's voting authority. A two-thirds vote is
required for board action; therefore, the City does not appoint a voting majority of the Agency's
governing board. Nonetheless, the Agency is considered a component unit of the City because of its
fiscal dependence on the City. The City Council approves the Agency's budget, sets its rates, and
approves any debt issuances.

The Agency has a June 30 year-end. Separate financial statements are not issued for the Agency, and
the Agency accounts for all of its financial transactions in a single fund.

Muscatine Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB). The CVB was established as a non-profit
corporation as defined in section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code in the current year. The
initial CVB Board of Directors was appointed by the Mayor. Thereafter board member appointments
will be made according to provisions of the CVB’s bylaws. The City of Muscatine has allocated
25% of the hotel/motel tax revenue to the CVB which is substantially all of the CVB’s financial
resources. Because of its fiscal dependence on the City the CVB is considered a component unit of
the City. The CVB has a June 30 year-end. Separate financial statements are not issued for the CVB.



Muscatine Power & Water (MP&W). MP&W is a municipal utility which provides water,
electric, and communication service to users within the City of Muscatine and in other urban and
rural areas within Muscatine County. MP&W's governing board is appointed by the Mayor and
approved by the City Council. MP&W provides a financial benefit to the City by providing
electricity for City buildings and all street and traffic lighting free of charge to the City.

MP&W has a December 31 year-end. Complete financial statements for MP&W may be obtained at
its administrative offices at Muscatine Power & Water, 3205 Cedar Street, Muscatine, lowa 52761.

Joint Venture

The City is a member organization along with Muscatine County and Muscatine Power and Water in
a joint venture organized under Chapter 28E of the lowa Code to develop and operate the Muscatine
Area Geographic Information Consortium (MAGIC). The purpose of MAGIC is to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of its member organizations through the coordinated development of
geographic and land information systems technology and data. A six-member board composed of
two appointees from each member organization governs MAGIC. Each member organization has
one vote on all matters. Each member organization is responsible for one-third of the operating
expenses incurred by MAGIC. In the event MAGIC is terminated, the material benefits realized
from the liquidation of any and all of its assets shall be divided among the participating
organizations on a pro rata basis after any and all claims against MAGIC have been satisfied. The
intent of the organization is not to accumulate excess funds and based upon the balance at year end
the future contributions are adjusted accordingly. In accordance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s Codification, a claim to assets upon the joint venture’s dissolution is not
considered to be an equity interest. Therefore no investment in the joint venture is reported on the
face of the financial statements of the City. There are no separately issued financial statements for
this joint venture.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations that provide goods or services to
the citizenry of the City but do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is no ongoing
financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments. City officials are members of
the following boards and commissions: Muscatine County Joint Communications Commission;
Muscatine County/Municipal Disaster Services Board; Crossroads Workshop Board; Muscatine
Island Flood Control Commission; Muscatine County Assessor’s Conference Board; and Muscatine
County Drug Task Force.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Net Position presents the City’s nonfiduciary assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.
Net position is reported in three categories.



Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position results when constraints placed on net position use are either externally
imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position consists of net position not meeting the definition of the two preceding
categories. Unrestricted net position often has constraints on resources imposed by management
which can be removed or modified.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants, contributions and interest that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources.
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, items previously
reported as assets and liabilities in the current year. The adoption of these Statements changed the
presentation of the basic financial statements to a statement of net position format and restated net
position, as disclosed in Note 14.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements, other then agency funds. Agency funds use the full accrual basis of accounting but do
not have a measurement focus and therefore report only assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied and budgeted for. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers property tax revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period and all other revenues to be available if they are
collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. The City has determined that there are
various revenues, except for property tax revenues, including reimbursement of expenditures that are
received between 60 and 90 days and therefore have adopted a 90 day availability period in order to
keep the revenues and expenditures in the same current period.



However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which taxes have been levied and budgeted
for, provided they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Sales taxes are considered measurable
and available at the time the underlying transaction occurs provided they are collected within 90 days
after year-end. Income and other taxes are considered measurable and available when they have
been collected by the state or other levying authority. Special assessments receivable are recognized
at the time of their levy. The related revenue is recognized at the time the assessment is due or
collected. Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures and miscellaneous revenue are recognized as
revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
Investment earnings are recognized as earned.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The employee benefits fund accounts for property taxes levied for police and fire retirement
contributions, FICA and IPERS, and other employee benefits, as provided in Section 384.6 of the
Code of lowa.

The local option sales tax fund accounts for revenue from the 1% local option tax. Effective July
1, 2009, voters approved using up to 20% of future local option tax for the City’s pavement
management program with the remaining funds to be used for storm and sanitary sewer
improvements.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and
interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water pollution control fund accounts for the operation of a municipally owned sewer
treatment plant which provides services to the City. All activities necessary for such services are
provided for in this fund as well as plant and various sewer system improvement projects.

The transfer station fund accounts for the operation of the refuse transfer station and recycling
center.

The refuse collection fund accounts for the collection of solid waste from residential property in
the City as well as from some commercial customers.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for equipment services, central supply distribution, and employee
health and dental benefits provided to other departments of the government on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or
other funds. Following is the City’s fiduciary fund type:



Agency funds function to account for assets held by the City as an agent for payroll processing,
housing programs, and miscellaneous other entities.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the government’s sewer and transfer station functions and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise funds and of the government’s internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

State statute authorizes the City, the Agency, the CVB and MP&W to invest public funds in
obligations of the United States government and its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of
deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the
City Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high-rated commercial paper;
perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment
companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a
drainage district.

The City is authorized by the City Council to invest in obligations of the United States
government and its agencies and instrumentalities; in certificates of deposit or other evidences
of deposit at federally insured depository institutions; and investments in joint investment trusts
authorized by resolution of the City Council.

Investments of the City, the Agency, the CVB and Muscatine Power & Water are stated at fair
value with the exception of the investment in the lowa Public Agency Investment Trust which is
stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables
Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements

outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "advances to/from other funds" to
indicate the non-current nature of the interfund loans. All other outstanding balances between



funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance nonspendable amount in applicable governmental funds to indicate they are not
available for appropriation and are not available financial resources.

The County Treasurer bills and collects taxes for the City. Taxes for the year ended June 30,
2013, were certified with the County during the preceding fiscal year and were due in two equal
installments by September 30, 2012 and March 31, 2013. Any County collections on the 2012-
2013 tax levy remitted to the City within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2013, are recorded as
property tax revenues in the governmental fund statements. Taxes not collected and remitted to
the City within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2013, are delinquent and have been recorded
as receivables and deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund statements. By
statute, the City is required to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal
year. However, by statute, the tax askings and budget certification for the following fiscal year
becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax
receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is deferred and will not be recognized as
revenue until the year for which it is levied and budgeted for in both the governmental fund
statements and the government-wide statements.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of proprietary funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased. The City's inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.
MP&W's inventories are valued at their weighted average cost.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets of the Transfer Station fund represents amounts set aside under law to provide
for Transfer Station closure costs. Transfer Station assets of $38,645 at June 30, 2013 are
classified as restricted because their use is restricted to provide for Transfer Station closure
costs.

Restricted assets of the Water Pollution Control fund represents amounts set aside as required
under the State Revolving Fund loan to pay interest and principal of the bonds and any parity
obligations. Water Pollution Control assets of $98,243 at June 30, 2013 are classified as
restricted because their use is restricted under the State Revolving Fund loan.

Restricted assets of the Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency represent amounts set aside
under law to provide for the cost of future landfill closure and post-closure costs. Solid Waste
Agency assets of $1,360,499, at June 30, 2013 are classified as restricted because their use is
restricted to provide for the cost of future landfill closure and post-closure costs.

Muscatine Power & Water’s restricted assets represent amounts set aside under the terms of the
bond resolutions relating to the electric revenue bonds, or under the terms of the
communications loan agreement, or by the Board. In accordance with the covenants of the
bond resolutions, the amounts have been segregated into various funds or accounts. The
extraordinary operation and maintenance account may be used for extraordinary operating



expenses and debt service at the discretion of the Board. In accordance with the
communications loan agreement, the communications system loan repayment sinking fund is
used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the bank loans.

The composition of the restricted funds as of December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Current accounts:
Extraordinary operation and

maintenance account $ 6,032,610
Communications loan sinking fund 1,007,016
Total restricted assets $ 7,039,626

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide statement of net position and in the proprietary funds
statement of net position. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess
of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land improvements 10-50
Buildings 15-40
Building improvements 5-40
Equipment 4-20
Vehicles 4-15
Sewer system 50
Infrastructure 7-75

MP&W's utility plant is stated at original cost, which includes the cost of contracted services,
material, labor, overhead, and on significant projects, an allowance for borrowed funds used
during construction.

6. Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City only
has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on refunding



10.

reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding
debt.

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. Vacation pay is payable to employees upon retirement or termination. Sick pay is
payable upon retirement, in which event employees are paid for 40% of all eligible hours.
Beginning July 1, 2000, retirement sick pay for non-union employees is paid to a post-
employment health plan to be used for health care cost of the retirees. Beginning July 1, 2001,
retirement sick pay for Fire bargaining unit and Blue/White Collar bargaining unit employees is
also paid to the post employment health plan. A liability for those amounts is reported in the
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations
and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest rate method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium
or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenses at the time the debt is incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balances sheet will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from three sources: Property taxes, other taxes,
and intergovernmental revenue. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available. In the City’s government-wide
statements, only the property tax revenues remain a deferred inflow and will become an inflow
in the year they are levied and budgeted for.

Fund Equity
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — Amounts which cannot be spent either because they are in a nonspendable
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.



Restricted — Amounts restricted to specific purposes when constraints placed on the use of the
resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, state or federal laws, or imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — Amounts which can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
formally imposed by the City Council through resolutions approved prior to year end. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or
changes the specified use by taking the same action it employed to commit those amounts.

Assigned — Amounts constrained by the City’s intent to use them for a specific purpose. It is the
City’s policy that the authority to assign fund balance has been delegated by City Council to the
Finance Director.

Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. The General fund is
the only fund that would report a positive amount in unassigned fund balance. Residual deficit
amounts of other governmental funds would also be reported as unassigned.

When an expenditure is incurred in governmental funds which can be paid using either
restricted or unrestricted resources, the City policy is to pay the expenditure from restricted
fund balance and then from less-restrictive classifications — committed, assigned, then
unassigned.

11. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for
the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets
excludes unspent bond proceeds. As of June 30, 2013, there were unspent bond proceeds
totaling $1,038,302 in the non-major Capital Projects funds. Net position is reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use through enabling legislation or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments.

Net position restricted through enabling legislation consists of $2,786,595 for public works,
$50,368 for employee benefits, $41,579 for public safety, and $1,091,092 for tax increment
financing projects.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The deposits and investments of the Solid Waste Agency and Muscatine Convention and Visitors
Bureau (CVB) are pooled with those of the City. Disclosures referring to deposits and investments of
the City include the pooled amounts belonging to the Agency and CVB.



As of June 30, 2013, the deposits and investments of the City consist of the following:

Petty cash and undeposited cash $ 82,324
Cash in bank 297,201
Savings accounts 45,651
Money market accounts 14,902,012
Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust 2,552,319
Certificates of deposit 1,152,000

$ 19,031,507

The City invests in the Diversified portfolio of the lowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT).
IPAIT was created pursuant to lowa Code Chapter 28E in 1987 to enable eligible lowa public
agencies to safely and effectively invest their available operating and reserve funds. The Diversified
portfolio has followed established money market mutual fund investment parameters designed to
maintain a $1 per unit net asset value since inception and was registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) in accordance with 17 C.F.R. Section 270.2a-7 in May 1993. The
Diversified Fund was among the first local government investment pools in the country to do so and
has been formally regulated by the SEC since that time. The City has investments in IPAIT which
were valued at an amortized cost of $2,552,319 pursuant to Rule 2 a-7 under the Investment
Company Act of 1940.

Interest rate risk — The City’s investment policy limits the investment of operating funds (funds
expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt) in instruments
that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments
with maturities longer than 397 days but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of
the City.

Credit risk — The City’s investment policy provides that City funds may be invested in interest
bearing money market accounts, interest bearing checking accounts, and certificates of deposit at any
approved bank in the City of Muscatine. Approved banks must be on the list of banks approved for
public investments by the Treasurer of the State of lowa and investments must be entirely covered by
federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of Iowa. City funds may also be invested in obligations of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities, and in the lowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT). The City’s
investment in IPAIT is unrated.

Concentration of credit risk — The City’s investment policy is to diversify its investment portfolio.
Assets shall be diversified, where possible, to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over
concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of securities.

Custodial credit risk — deposits — In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2013 the carrying
amount of the City's deposits with financial institutions totaled $16,396,864 and the bank balances
were $16,512,632. These bank balances were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by
the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This chapter provides
for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodial credit risk — investments — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City had no custodially-held
investments during the year.




NOTE 3.

As of December 31, 2012 MP&W's deposits and investments consist primarily of cash and
certificates of deposit as follows:

Fair
Value

Cash $ 20,677,434
Certificates of deposit 3.027.000

$ 23,704,434

As of December 31, 2012 the carrying amount of MP&W's deposits with financial institutions totaled
$23,701,398, and the bank balances were $24,219,135. These bank balances were entirely covered
by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

It is the policy of Muscatine Power & Water to maintain all deposits and investments within category
one in accordance with GASB No. 3 which includes authorized investment vehicles that are insured

or registered or which are collateralized by or evidenced by securities held by the utility or its agent
in the utility’s name.

As of December 31, 2012, Muscatine Power & Water had no investments subject to credit risk,
concentration of risk, or interest rate risk.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Interfund balances at June 30, 2013 consist of the following:

Due from/advance to
Nonmajor Transfer Nonmajor Internal
Governmental Station Enterprise Service Fiduciary Totals

E Nonmajor governmental $ 244578 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 244578
;:3 Water pollution control - 449,449 194,860 - - 644,309
_‘g Nonmajor enterprise - - 5212 - - 5,212
i; Internal service - - - 1,095 - 1,095
‘é Fiduciary - - - - 50,500 50,500
[=]

Total $ 244578 $§ 449449 § 200,072 $ 1,095 § 50,500 $ 945,694

The $449,449 balance due from the Transfer Station is the result of a loan for working capital needs
resulting from amounts in accounts receivable at year end and reduced waste volumes being received
at this facility. It is not expected that this amount will be eliminated in the subsequent year. The
remaining balances result from (1) working capital for inventory in the enterprise and internal service
funds, and (2) the time lag of receipts into the various funds.

In addition, the City has a loan to Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency, a discretely presented
component unit of $1,022,347 as of June 30, 2013. The loan is for capital costs including costs for
the development of new cells for disposal of waste at the landfill. The new cells are expected to have
a remaining capacity of 169,000 tons of waste or 4.5 years of use based on projected annual waste
volumes.



Interfund transfers for the year are as follows:

Transfers from

Employee  Local Option Debt Nonmajor Transfer Nonmajor Internal
General Benefits Sales Tax Service Gover 1 Station Enterprise Service Totals
General $ - $ 3,144204 $ - $ - $ 1,903,156 $ - $ 839,000 $ 46,326 $ 5,932,686
Debt service - - - - 209,625 - - - 209,625
*3 Nonmajor governmental 237,772 - 90,968 - 558,727 - - - 887,467
:‘:‘ Water pollution control - - 3,130,824 - - - - - 3,130,824
E Transfer station - - - 726,219 - - - - 726,219
& | Refuse collection - - - - - 1,349 - - 1,349
Nonmajor enterprise 374,467 - - - - - - - 374,467
Total N 612239 $§ 3,144204 $ 3221792 $ 726219 $ 2,671,508 $ 1,349 $ 839,000 $ 46,326 $ 11,262,637

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that State statutes or the budget requires them to
be collected in to the fund that State statutes or the budget requires them to be expended.

NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Primary government

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases  Transfers Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 9,149,516 $1,011,694 $ (4,0000 $ - $10,157,210
Art work 7,462,776 43,000 - - 7,505,776
Construction in progress 4,122,235 3,041,179 (4,945,844) - 2,217,570
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 20,734,527 4,095,873 (4,949,844) - 19,880,556
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 17,945,847 13,080 - - 17,958,927
Buildings 7,739,520 1,506,708 (8,652) - 9,237,576
Building improvements 2,122,873 222,314 - - 2,345,187
Equipment 5,213,057 158,077 (7,750) - 5,363,384
Vehicles 4,280,618 321,155 (168,729) (361) 4,432,683
Other Assets 22,968 - - - 22,968
Infrastructure 58,312,647 2,183,349 - - 60,495,995
Total capital assets, being depreciated 95,637,530 4,404,683 (185,131) (361) 99,856,721
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (8,662,871) (718,569) - - (9,381,440)
Buildings (5,040,160) (196,560) 8,652 - (5,228,068)
Building improvements (870,832) (124,708) - - (995,540)
Equipment (3,427,050) (291,682) 7,750 - (3,710,982)
Vehicles (3,403,195) (232,091) 141,376 361 (3,493,549)
Other Assets (6,891) (4,594) - - (11,485)
Infrastructure (28,429,295) (1,775,674) - - (30,204,969)
Total accumulated depreciation (49,840,294) (3,343,878) 157,778 361 (53,026,033)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 45,797,236 - 1,060,805 (27,353) - 46,830,688

Governmental activities capital assets, net $66,531,763  $- $5,156,678 $(4,977,197) $ - $66,711,244




Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,833,495 $ 52,078 $ - $ - $ 2,885,573
Construction in progress 1,690,876 5,307,564 (1,437,303) - 5,561,137
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 4,524,371 5,359,642 (1,437,303) - 8,446,710
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 13,052,966 416,056 (149,316) - 13,319,706
Buildings 64,794,904 148,367 - - 64,943,271
Building improvements 3,562,180 370,650 (21.917) - 3,910,913
Equipment 5,780,397 643,671 (220,467) - 6,203,601
Vehicles 3,420,730 185,585 - 361 3,606,676
Sewer system 45,274,672 - - - 45,274,672
Total capital assets, being depreciated 135,885,849 1,764,329 (391,700) 361 137,258,839
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (10,116,668) (404,165) 149,316 - (10,371,517)
Buildings (28,588,349) (1,565,936) - - (30,154,285)
Building improvements (2,191,525) (189,035) 10,959 - (2,369,601)
Equipment (3,002,370) (381,254) 196,843 - (3,186,781)
Vehicles (2,282,705) (261,062) 0 (361) (2,544,128)
Sewer system (12,675,220) (905,494) - - (13,580,714)
Total accumulated depreciation (58,856,837) (3,706,946) 357,118 (361) (62,207,026)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 77,029,012 (1,942,617) (34,582) - 75,051,813
Business type activities capital assets, net $ 81,553,383 $ 3,417,025 $  (1,471,885) $ - $ 83,498,523

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Capital assets held by the government’s
internal service funds are charged to the
various functions based on their usage of
the assets

Total depreciation expense —
governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water pollution control
Refuse collection
Transfer station
Airport
Parking
Transit
Golf course
Boat harbor
Ambulance
Public housing

Total depreciation expense —
business-type activities

$ 304,428
1,934,894
1,043,856

6,267
51,687

2,746

$ 3343878

§ 2,457,414
83,840
211,567
358,298
45,704

80,163
104,759

4,865

60,461
299,875

§ 3,706,946



Discretely presented component units

Activity for the Solid Waste Agency for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements

Buildings

Equipment

Leachate collection system

Total capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements

Buildings

Equipment

Leachate collection system

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Solid Waste Agency capital assets, net

Activity for Convention and Visitors Bureau for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Convention and Visitors Bureau
capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Balance
1,080,608 § - $ $ 1,080,608
1,080,608 - 1,080,608
1,873,587 - 1,873,587
37,314 - 37,314
31,317 - 31,317
616,835 - 616,835
2,559,053 - 2,559,053
(674,268) (257,852) (932,120)
(16,326) (933) (17,259)
(15,861) (1,472) (17,333)
(272,436) (19,866) (292,302)
(978,891) (280,123) (1,259,014)
1,580,162 (280,123) 1,300,039
2,660,770 §  (280,123) § $ 2,380,647

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
- $ 11412 $ $ 11,412
- 11,412 11,412
) (1,141) (1,141)
- (1,141) (1,141)
- 10,271 10,271
- $ 10,271 $ $ 10,271




NOTE 5.

Activity for Muscatine Power & Water for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and land rights $ 2,926,911 $ - 8 -3 - $ 29260911
Construction work in progress 349,057 4,408,738 (354,532) (3,680,648) 722,615
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 3,275,968 4,408,738 (354,532) (3,680,648) 3,649,526
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Generation plant 328,487,163 521 (426,399) 1,249,716 329,311,001
Transmission and distribution plant 56,978,992 589,286 (99,829) 513,690 57,982,139
General plant 21,854,609 129,655 (512,016) 1,093,029 22,565,277
Source of supply 2,127,805 14,293 - 2,878 2,144,976
Pumping equipment 2,043,250 - - - 2,043,250
Purification equipment 1,051,289 - - - 1,051,289
Distribution system 16,608,549 18,008 (92,236) 355,504 16,889,825
Network operations plant 29,111,294 949,143 (530,766) 465,831 29,995,502
Total capital assets being depreciated 458,262,951 1,700,906 (1,661,246) 3,680,648 461,983,259
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Generation plant (241,025,990) (7,468,308) 336,749 - (248,157,549)
Transmission and distribution plant (43,087,115) (2,193,396) 114,043 - (45,166,468)
General plant (19,125,485) (1,649,376) 410,338 - (20,364,523)
Source of supply (1,158,488) (70,932) - - (1,229,420)
Pumping equipment (480,869) (65,976) - - (546,845)
Purification system (775,426) (28,056) - - (803,482)
Distribution system (5,560,952) (366,396) 565,706 - (5,361,642)
Network operations plant and general plant (18,664,136) (2,246,976) - - (20,911,112)
Total accumulated depreciation (329,878,461) (14,089,416) 1,426,836 - (342,541,041)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 128,384,490 (12,388,510) (234,410) 3,680,648 119,442,218
Muscatine Power & Water capital assets, net $ 131,660,458 $ (7,979,772) $ (588,942) $ - $123,091,744
Muscatine Power & Water intangible asset $ 773,136 $ -3 (773,136) $ -3 -

LONG-TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds. The general obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2013 total
$16,459,687. These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from .40% to 3.50%. Portions of the general
obligation bond issues have been used to acquire or expand the enterprise fund facilities. In some
instances, revenue generated by the enterprise funds is used to pay the general obligation debt
principal and interest. The liability for those bonds, which are expected to be paid by the enterprise
funds, is included in those funds.

On March 7, 2013, the City of Muscatine issued $1,115,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2013 with interest rates ranging from 0.55 percent to 0.90 percent to current refund
$1,095,000 of the 2006 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, with interest rates from 3.90
percent to 4.00 percent. The proceeds were used to pay $15,021 in issuance costs immediately and
the remainder was used on June 1, 2013 for the redemption of the 2006 Bonds. The net change was a
decrease in cash flows related to the current refunding of $48,465. The economic gain resulting from
the current refunding was $52,225.



General obligation bonds as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following individual issues:

Issue Amount Interest Balance Governmental Business-Type
Date Issued Rates 6/30/2013 Activities Activities
General obligation bonds
General corporate 6/1/2008 $ 5,120,000 3.25-3.50 $ 3,106,329 (1) $ 3,106,329 $ -
General refunding 6/1/2008 6,560,000 325 800,955 (2) - 800,955
General corporate 6/1/2010 7,425,000 2.00-3.125 7,017,403 (3) 7,017,403 -
General corporate and refunding 6/1/2012 4,715,000 .40-1.90 4,420,000 (4) 4,420,000
General corporate and refunding 3/7/2013 1,115,000 .55-90 1,115,000 (5) 1,115,000 -
$ 16,459,687 $ 15,658,732 $ 800,955
1. Net of unamoritzed premium of $1,329
2. Net of unamoritzed premium of $955
3. Net of unamoritzed premium of $42,403
4. No premium or discount
5. No premiumor discount
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:
Year Ending Governmental Business-Type
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 $ 1,585,000 $ 374,104 $ 800,955 § 26,000
2015 2,294,047 343,243 -
2016 2,393,010 294,198 -
2017 2,236,692 236,648 -
2018 2,295,273 177,388 -
2019-2021 4,854,710 216,701 -
$ 15658732 $ 1,642,282 $ 800,955 $ 26,000

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds. In June 2004 $1,885,000 of tax increment bonds were issued to

fund public improvements in the Southend Urban Renewal Area.

TIF Revenues Pledged. The City has pledged a portion of future urban renewal tax increment
revenues to repay the Tax Increment Revenue Bonds noted above. The urban renewal tax increment

revenues were projected to produce 100% of the debt service requirements over the life of the bonds.
Total principal and interest remaining on the bonds are $1,308,445 payable through 2021. For the

current year, principal and interest paid and total incremental tax revenues were $166,308 and

$626,708, respectively.

Tax increment revenue bonds as of June 30, 2013 consist of the following issues:

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds:
Urban Renewal Tax Increment

Issue
Date

06/24/2004

$

Amount

Issued

Interest

Rates

1,885,000 4.75-5.80%

Balance
June 30,2013

$ 1,035,000



Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the tax increment revenue bond is as follows:

Year Ending Governmental
June 30 Principal Interest
2014 $ 110,000 $ 56,320
2015 115,000 50,930
2016 120,000 45,065
2017 125,000 38,705
2018 130,000 31,955
2019-2021 435,000 50,470
$ 1,035,000 $ 273,445

State Revolving Fund (SRF) Revenue Loan. In November of 2008, the City entered into a State
Revolving Fund Loan with the State of Iowa in the amount of $16,500,000 to finance comprehensive
improvements at the City’s Water Pollution Control Plant. As of June 30, 2013, the loan balance is
$14,873,000. The Loan has an interest rate of 3% and a loan servicing fee of .25% per annum of the
principal amount of the loan outstanding. Repayment of this loan is to come from future revenues of
the Plant.

State Revolving Fund Loan Revenues Pledged. The City is required to establish, impose, adjust,
and provide for the collection of fees to be charged to customers of the Water Pollution Control
Plant to produce gross revenues at least sufficient to pay operating and maintenance costs of the
plant and to leave a net balance equal to at least 110% of the principal and interest on all of the
bonds and any other parity obligations due in such fiscal year as they become due. The City is also
required to establish a Sewer Revenue Bond Sinking Fund into which there shall be set aside from
net revenues, sufficient funds to pay interest on and principal of all of the bonds and any parity
obligations as the same become due.

Annual debt service requirements for the state revolving fund revenue loan are as follows:

Year Ending Business-Type
June 30 Principal Interest Fees
2014 $ 578,000 $ 446,172 $ 37,183
2015 597,000 428,850 35,738
2016 616,000 410,940 34,245
2017 636,000 392,460 32,705
2018 657,000 373,380 31,115
2019-2023 3,619,000 1,558,200 129,852
2024-2028 4,248,000 978,780 81,566
2029-2032 3,922,000 298,860 24,905
$ 14,873,000 $ 4,887,642 $ 407,309

On April 15, 2010, the City entered into a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Planning and Design Loan in
the amount of $108,000 for engineering design services for a sewer extension project in the
northeast section of the City. The City decided to finance this project from available reserve funds
during the current year, paying the outstanding balance of $51,565 in March of 2013.



Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Primary government

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds $ 17,130,000 $ 1,115,000 $ (2,630,000) $ 15,615,000 $ 1,585,000
Tax increment revenue bonds 1,140,000 - (105,000) 1,035,000 110,000
Premiums/discounts 47,089 - (3,357) 43,732 -
Total bonds payable 18,317,089 1,115,000 (2,738,357) 16,693,732 1,695,000
Compensated absences 1,246,192 809,110 (761,434) 1,293,868 621,549
Other post-employment benefits
liability 232,229 65,041 - 297,270 -
Govermnmental activity
long-term liabilities $ 19,795,510 $ 1,989,151 § (3,499,791) $ 18,284,870 $ 2,316,549
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds $ 1,575,000 $ - $ (775,000) $ 800,000 $ 800,000
State revolving fund loan 15,428,000 5,000 (560,000) 14,873,000 578,000
State revolving fund planning and
design loan 51,565 - (51,565) - -
Premiums and deferred charges 1,910 - (955) 955 955
Total bonds payable 17,056,475 5,000 (1,387,520) 15,673,955 1,378,955
Compensated absences 360,292 293,614 (287,799) 366,107 184,033
Other post-employment benefits
liability 83,025 21,810 - 104,835 -
Closure/post-closure obligation 38,645 - - 38,645 -
Business-type activity
long-term liabilities $ 17,538,437 $ 320,424 $ (1,675,319) $ 16,183,542 $ 1,562,988

Internal service funds predominantly serve

the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term

liabilities for these funds are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At
year-end $47,678, of internal service funds compensated absences are included in the above
amounts. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated absences and other post employment
benefits are generally liquidated by the general fund.

Discretely presented component units

Activity for the Solid Waste Agency for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Compensated absences $ 1,320 $ 1,080 $ 812) $ 1,588 $ 1,406
Closure/post-closure obligation 2,494,809 63,765 - 2,558,574 -
Total liabilities $ 2496129 $ 64,845 $ 812) $ 2,560,162 $ 1,406




Activity for Muscatine Power & Water for the year ended December 31, 2012, was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Reductions Balance
State revolving fund loan $ 274,000 $ - $ (27,000) $ 247,000
Note payable to bank 4,800,000 - (885,000) 3,915,000
Post-employment health benefit provision 178,594 29,757 - 208,351
Total long-term debt 5,252,594 $ 29,757 $ (912,000) 4,370,351
Less current installments 912,000 943,000
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 4,340,594 $ 3,427,351

In December 2008, the communications utility acquired loans from three local banks to cover the
digital transition project and other capital costs. The loan agreement allowed the communications
utility to draw down a total amount of up to $4,800,000 through December 31, 2010, at an annual
interest rate of 4.7%. Interest is to be paid semi-annually beginning July 1, 2009; principal
repayment is to be paid annually beginning January 1, 2012. During the current year the
communications utility made principal payment totaling $885,000. As of December 31, 2012, the
total outstanding loan payable is $3,915.00.

On November 18, 2009, the utility closed on a loan from the lowa Department of Natural Resources’
State Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund for the well motor control project. The loan is
administered by the lowa Finance Authority. The loan agreement provided for the borrowing of up
to $494,000; the total amount borrowed was $399,000. The project qualified for ARRA (Stimulus
Act) funding as a “green” water project and eligible for $93,000 loan forgiveness. The interest rate
on the loan is 3.0% interest, plus a 0.25% servicing fee, with a 10-year repayment term. Interest
payments are payable semi-annually and began June 1, 2010; principal payments began June 1, 2011
and are due annually. The total outstanding loan payable at December 31, 2012 was $247,000.

At December 31, 2012, the bank loan and state revolving fund loan mature and bear interest as
follows:

Bank Loan State Revolving Fund Loan

Year Ending Prinicipal Prinicipal Servicing
December 31 Amount Interest Amount Interest Fee

2013 $ 915,000 $ 162,502 $ 28,000 $ 6,990 $ 618
2014 960,000 118,440 29,000 6,135 548
2015 1,005,000 72,263 29,000 5,265 475
2016 1,035,000 24,322 30,000 4,380 402
2017 - - 31,000 3,465 328
2018-2020 - - 100,000 4,590 507
Totals $ 3,915,000 $ 377,527 $ 247,000 $§ 30,825 $ 2,878

In prior years, the Utility provided for the advance refunding of certain revenue bonds. In connection
with these advance refundings, the Utility deposited certain amounts in irrevocable trust funds for the
repayment of all principal and interest on the advance refunded bonds. The Utility is contingently
liable for repayment of these bonds which in the aggregate amounted to $17,860,000 at December 31,
2012. The bonds and corresponding trust funds are not included on the balance sheet at December
31, 2012 as the outstanding bonds are considered defeased.



NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

Water and communications utility revenues, net of specified operating expenses, are pledged as
security of the water and communications debt until fully paid. Principal and interest paid in 2012
and water and communications utility net revenues are as follows:

Water Communications
Principal and interest paid $ 35511 $ 1,713,324
Net revenues 754,835 3,366,321

Annual future principal and interest payments are expected to require 5% and 59% of the water and
communications utility net revenues, respectively.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

State and federal laws and regulations require the Muscatine County Solid Waste Management
Agency to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure.

Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill
stops accepting waste, the Agency reports a portion of these closure and post closure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The
$2,558,574 reported as landfill closure and post closure care liability at June 30, 2013, represents the
cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 69.09% of the estimated capacity of the
current landfill property. The Agency will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post
closure care of $1,144,626 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled over the 17 remaining years.

These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in 2013.
The Agency expects the currently-permitted landfill property to reach its capacity in 2030. Actual
costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. The Agency
has begun to accumulate resources to fund these costs in accordance with state and federal
requirements.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
Iowa Public Employees Retirement System

The City contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of lowa. IPERS
provides retirement and death benefits which are established by State statute to plan members and
beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box
9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-9117.

In the current year plan members were required to contribute 5.78% of their annual covered salary
and the City was required to contribute 8.67% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements
are established by State statute. The City’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2013,
2012, and 2011 were $649,684, $596,712, and $507,528 respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.



NOTE 8.

NOTE 9.

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa

The City contributes to the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa, which is a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a Board of Trustees. The
Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits which are established by State statute to plan
members and beneficiaries. The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing
to Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa, 7155 Lake Drive, Suite 201, West Des
Moines, lowa 50266.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.35% of earnable compensation and the City’s contribution
rate for the year ended June 30, 2013 was 26.12% of earnable compensation. Contribution
requirements are established by State statute. The City’s contributions to the Plan for the years ended
June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $1,138,473, $1,029,441, and $778,181 respectively, which met
the required minimum contribution for each year.

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

Two of the City’s funds had fund balance deficits as of June 30, 2013. These funds and the amount
of the deficits are as follows:

Deficit
Fund Amount
Non-major capital projects:
Community development improvements $ 14,219
Riverfront improvement projects 209,005

These deficits are not considered a violation of any law, and are expected to be eliminated through
future operations.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH AND DENTAL CARE BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan description: The City sponsors a single-employer health care plan for its active and retired
employees. Upon normal retirement, employees have the option of continuing health and dental
insurance coverage at their cost until the age of 65.

The City, additionally, has an employee benefit program for employees laid off as a result of budget
reductions. The employee must be at least 55 years of age but no more than 65 years of age except
for the case of a police officer or a firefighter who must be at least 50 years of age but no more than
55 years of age. Employees must also have had at least 15 years of continuous service with the City.
The City will provide 100% paid single medical insurance for the employee until the employee
reaches the age of 65 or until the employee is re-employed in a position where medical insurance is
available or obtains medical insurance from another source. The City will pay 90% of the family
coverage if such individual had family coverage during the time of employment for a period of one
year after termination after which the City will pay 75% the second year, 50% the third year and 25%
after the fourth year. Participation by the City will cease in the fifth year. For police officers and
firefighters, this provision is effective until the age of 55.



In 1986, Congress approved the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 which
includes the provision for the continuation of group insurance coverage to either the employee or
dependents depending upon the circumstances. For the City, this coverage includes health insurance
and dental insurance. The death of a covered employee, a divorce or legal separation of the covered
employee from the employee's spouse, the covered employee's commencement of Medicare coverage,
the cessation of a dependent child's coverage under the terms of the plan, the termination of
employment other than by reason of gross misconduct of the covered employee or the reduction of
hours of the employee are events which would allow for such continuation. The continuation period
is thirty-six months except for the termination of employment or reduction of hours, which allows for
only an eighteen-month period. The premium for coverage during the continuation period is to be
paid by the employee or the employee's dependent to the City on a monthly basis. It is the
employee's responsibility to notify the employer of any change in status, which might involve the
continuation of coverage.

Funding policy: The City establishes and amends contribution requirements. The current funding
policy of the City is to pay health claims as they occur. This arrangement does not qualify as OPEB
plan assets under GASB reporting.

The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing. For the year ended June 30,
2013, the City contributed $11,219, which was net of retiree premiums received of $159,741.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City’s annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No.
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a
period not-to-exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City’s net OPEB
obligation to the postemployment health plan:

Annual Required Contribution $ 102,814
Interest on net OPEB obligation 15,764
Adjustment to annual required contribution (20.508)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 98,070
Contributions and payments made 11,219
Increase in net OPEB obligation 86,851
Net OPEB obligation — July 1, 2012 315,254
Net OPEB obligation — June 30, 2013 $ 402,105

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the two preceding years are as follows:

Annual Percentage of

OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $ 155310 62.17% § 156,003
June 30, 2012 164,574 3.23% 315,254

June 30, 2013 98,070 11.44% 402,105



NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

Funded status and funding progress: As of July 1, 2012 the most recent valuation date, the plan
was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $850,500 and the actuarial
value of assets is zero resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $850,500. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $10,143,280 and the
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 8.4 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumption about future employment, mortality and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and
included the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 3 percent salary increase, 5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses) which is based on the expected long-term investment return of the employer’s own
investments used to pay plan benefits, and an annual health care cost trend rate of 5 percent per year.
The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar of projected payroll on an open basis. The
amortization of UAAL is done over a period of 30 years.

INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS

The City has, during recent years, participated in several issues of industrial revenue bonds, issued for
the purpose of constructing privately owned manufacturing and other related facilities within the City.
These bonds are neither direct nor contingent liabilities of the City. The revenue from property
purchased with the bond proceeds is pledged for the full payment of principal and interest on the
bonds, and the bondholders can look only to these sources for repayment. The total bonds outstanding
for all issues is approximately $3,405,000 as of June 30, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the government
carries commercial insurance. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the
last three fiscal years.

The City has established a Health Insurance Fund for insuring benefits provided to City employees
and covered dependents which is included in the Internal Service Funds. Health benefits were self-
insured up to a specific stop loss amount of $75,000, and an aggregate stop loss of approximately
$2,909,000 for 2013. Coverage from a private insurance company is maintained for losses in excess



of the aggregate stop loss amount. All claims handling procedures are performed by a third party
claims administrator. Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based upon the
claims administrator's estimate. The estimated liability does not include any allocated or unallocated
claims adjustment expense. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the last
three fiscal years.

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Health Insurance Fund
based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. The claims
liability of $201,160 in the Health Insurance Fund is based on the requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated.

Changes in reported liabilities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as

follows:

Liabilities at July 1, 2011 $ 257,858
Claims and changes in estimates

during fiscal year 2012 2,094,943
Claim payments (2,139.919)
Liabilities at June 30, 2012 $ 212,882
Claims and changes in estimates

during fiscal year 2013 2,003,087
Claim payments (2,014.809)
Liabilities at June 30, 2013 $ 201,160

NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City Attorney has reported that as of June 30, 2013, there were claims and losses that are on file
against the City. The City has the authority to levy additional taxes outside the regular limit to fund
any uninsured judgment against the City. However, it is estimated that the potential settlement of
these claims not covered by insurance would not materially affect future financial statements of the
City.

The City has various outstanding contracts, which are accounted for in the Capital Projects, Water
Pollution Control, and Airport funds. The remaining commitment on these contracts as of June 30,
2013, is $4,789,512.

As a member of the Muscatine Area Geographic Information Consortium (MAGIC), the City is
responsible for one-third of the operating expenses incurred by MAGIC. The City’s contribution for
fiscal year 2014 is set at $102,880.

The City has signed an Order for Compliance On Consent issued by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency. Provisions of the Order require the City to complete separation of the combined
sewers including the West Hill area by December 31, 2028. Preliminary cost estimates for the
projects could reach or exceed $50 million. Estimates will be re-evaluated as planning progresses. It
is anticipated that the majority of the cost of these projects will be funded by the proceeds from the
1% local option sales tax.



NOTE 13.

Muscatine Power & Water committed to purchasing 522,000 tons of coal in 2012 on the spot market
under ten different contracts with six different suppliers. In May 2012, 58,000 tons of 8800 BTU
coal was sold simultaneously with a purchase of 54,000 tons of 8400 BTU coal that was delivered
later in the year.

Muscatine Power & Water has rail transportation agreements with two separate companies for the
delivery of coal through December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. The utility’s first agreement is
for coal shipped from the Powder River Basin (PRB), Wyoming to an interchange with the local
delivery carrier. The contract term is from July 1, 2011 through December 31, 2017 where the rate is
adjusted quarterly beginning January 2012 plus monthly fuel surcharges. The utility’s minimum
requirement is 100% of the tons shipped from the PRB up to the utility’s annual tonnage nomination.
In the event the utility does not meet their nominated tons, the utility has agreed to pay a per ton fee
as compensation for lost traffic.

Shipment of coal from the interchange point to the utility’s generating station is covered by one
agreement that expired 12/31/2012 and another that begins January 1, 2013 and expires December
31, 2016. The contract rate in both agreements is adjusted quarterly. There is no annual minimum
tonnage requirement in either agreement; however, in the second agreement, the utility will nominate
their needs by November 1 of the preceding year. In the event the utility does not meet their
nominated tons, the utility has agreed to pay a per ton fee as compensation for lost traffic.

Muscatine Power & Water has contracted to sell steam to a local customer. The ten-year agreement
began July 1, 2000. The customer is obligated to take a minimum annual quantity of steam each year
(2,338,920 kilo pounds). The contract was amended in 2007 to add an additional ten years to the
agreement. The amendment obligates the customer to certain environmental capital costs
(approximately $2 million) and ongoing sulfur dioxide (SO2), nitrogen oxide (NOx) and mercury
emission allowance costs. If the contract is cancelled during the amendment period, the customer has
agreed to reimburse the utility for any of the unrecovered environmental capital costs.

Muscatine Power & Water entered into a contract with a developer who constructed a new section of
water main for water service to a new subdivision. The route of the developer’s main coincided with
the utility’s expansion plan for water main and the utility agreed to reimburse the developer for the
cost differential for increasing the eight-inch water main to a 16-inch water main to accommodate
future development in the area. At December 31, 2012, the utility owed the developer $125,946 for
the construction.

In 2012, Muscatine Power & Water entered into a loan agreement with First National Bank of
Muscatine for a line of credit in an amount not to exceed $10,000,000. The terms of the loan require
monthly interest payments on the outstanding principal at the Prime Rate as published in the Wall
Street Journal; a quarterly fee of 3/8% on the unused amount is also due. The loan matures on
January 15, 2014. No advances were drawn against the loan during 2012 and no amount were
outstanding at December 321, 2012

NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) STATEMENTS

As of June 30, 2013, the GASB had issued several statements not yet implemented by the City. The
City has not yet determined the impact of the statements not yet implemented. The statements which
might impact the City are as follows:



NOTE 14.

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012, issued April 2012, will be effective for the
City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2014. This Statement enhances the usefulness of
financial reports by resolving conflicting accounting and financial reporting guidance that could
diminish the consistency of financial reporting. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 10,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by removing
the provision that limits fund-based reporting of a state or local government’s risk financing
activities to the general fund and the internal service fund types. As a result, governments would
base their decisions about governmental fund type usage for risk financing activities on the
definitions in GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. This Statement also amends GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for: (a) operating lease
payments that vary from a straight-line basis; (b) the difference between the initial investment
(purchase price) and the principal amount of a purchased loan or group of loans; and (C) servicing
fees related to mortgage loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from
a current (normal) servicing fee rate. These changes would eliminate any uncertainty regarding the
application of GASB Statement No. 13, Accounting for Operating Leases with Scheduled Rent
Increases, and result in guidance that is consistent with the requirements in GASB Statement No. 48,
Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and
Future Revenues, respectively.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, issued June 2012, will
be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2015. This Statement replaces the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental
Employers, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that
provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet
certain criteria. This Statement requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to
recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first time, and to more
comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. This Statement also
enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note disclosures and required
supplementary information.

RESTATEMENT

As a result of the adoption of GASB Statement No. 65, the beginning net position of the
governmental activities, business type activities, water pollution control fund, transfer station fund,
and refuse collection fund were restated. The effect on fiscal year 2012 is as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Net position June 30, 2012, as previously reported $ 60,956,216
Bond issuance costs previously reported as assets (148,003)
Net position June 30, 2012, as restated $ 60,808,213

Business Type

Activities
Net position June 30, 2012, as previously reported $ 72,560,898
Bond issuance costs previously reported as assets (148,468)

Net position June 30, 2012, as restated $ 72412430




Water Pollution

Control Fund
Net position June 30, 2012, as previously reported $ 57,349,526
Bond issuance costs previously reported as assets (142,555)
Net position June 30, 2012, as restated $ 57206971

Transfer Station

Fund
Net position June 30, 2012, as previously reported $ 3,438,609
Bond issuance costs previously reported as assets (5,198)
Net position June 30, 2012, as restated $ 3433411

Refuse Collection

Fund
Net position June 30, 2012, as previously reported $ 993,368
Bond issuance costs previously reported as assets (715)
Net position June 30, 2012, as restated $ 992,653

Prior to adoption of GASB Statement No. 65, bond issuance costs were capitalized and amortized
over the life of the debt. Amortization expense that was recognized during the year ended June 30,
2012 was $17,959 for Governmental Activities and $15,725 for Business Type Activities. The
Business Type Activities amount consisted of $12,768 for the Water Pollution Control Fund, $2,599
for the Transfer Station Fund, and $358 for the Refuse Collection Fund.
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Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Tax increment financing
Other city taxes
Licenses and permits
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public safety
Public works
Health and social service
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Debt service
Capital projects
Business type activities

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of long term debt
Proceeds of capital asset sales
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, June 30, 2012

Fund balances, June 30, 2013

City of Muscatine, Iowa
Budgetary Comparison Schedule of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Budgeted Governmental and Proprietary Funds

Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Governmental Proprietary Final Budget
Funds Funds Total Budgeted Amounts to Actual
Actual Actual Actual Original Final Variance

$ 12,261,319 $ - $ 12,261,319 $ 12,258,743 $ 12,258,743 $ 2,576
837,306 - 837,306 848,000 836,170 1,136
3,263,039 - 3,263,039 3,326,354 3,253,454 9,585
390,490 17,912 408,402 313,200 323,000 85,402
207,594 698,828 906,422 1,034,190 1,062,870 (156,448)
4,853,573 1,068,928 5,922,501 6,047,760 6,831,600 (909,099)
527,813 12,424,813 12,952,626 12,866,250 13,029,550 (76,924)
2,204,114 3,678,687 5,882,801 4,544,200 5,501,300 381,501
24,545,248 17,889,168 42,434,416 41,238,697 43,096,687 (662,271)
8,490,371 - 8,490,371 7,998,500 8,661,430 (171,059)
2,132,321 - 2,132,321 2,280,400 2,316,300 (183,979)
20,000 - 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
3,125,524 - 3,125,524 3,166,150 3,269,950 (144,426)
3,137,583 - 3,137,583 3,160,480 3,199,387 (61,804)
2,090,013 - 2,090,013 2,162,300 2,208,858 (118,845)
4,088,134 - 4,088,134 3,008,038 4,089,815 (1,681)
2,368,257 - 2,368,257 2,475,200 3,063,400 (695,143)
- 20,558,784 20,558,784 20,184,463 21,584,743 (1,025,959)
25,452,203 20,558,784 46,010,987 44,455,531 48,413,883 (2,402,896)
(906,955) (2,669,616) (3,576,571) (3,216,834) (5,317,196) 1,740,625
1,115,000 5,000 1,120,000 - 1,120,000 -
6,335,662 7,031,171 13,366,833 15,879,909 16,493,063 (3,126,230)
(8,741,346) (4,625,487) (13,366,833) (15,879,909) (16,493,063) 3,126,230
(1,290,684) 2,410,684 1,120,000 - 1,120,000 -
(2,197,639) (258,932) (2,456,571) (3,216,834) (4,197,196) 1,740,625
12,265,988 9,076,729 21,342,717 18,708,749 21,337,570 5,147
$ 10,068,349 $ 8,817,797 $ 18,886,146 $ 15,491,915 $ 17,140,374 $ 1,745,772

See notes to Required Supplementary Information.



Revenues

Expenditures/expenses

Net

Other financing sources (uses), net

Beginning fund balances/net assets
as restated

Ending fund balances/net assets

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30,2013

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise and
Budgeted Internal

Enterprise and
Internal Service

Service Funds Funds

Budget GAAP Budget GAAP

Basis Adjustments Basis Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 24,545,248 $ 114,313 $ 24,659,561 $ 17,889,168 $ (181,742) § 17,707,426
25,452,203 (1,028,364) 24,423,839 20,558,784 (2,127,153) 18,431,631
(906,955) 1,142,677 235,722 (2,669,616) 1,945,411 (724,205)
(1,290,684) (940,500) (2,231,184) 2,410,684 935,500 3,346,184
12,265,988 48,815 12,314,803 9,076,729 64,964,198 74,040,927
$ 10,068,349 $ 250,992 $ 10,319,341 $ 8,817,797 $ 67,845,109 $ 76,662,906

See notes to Required Supplementary Information.



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Fiscal Actuarial Accrued (Over-funded) Percentage
Year Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Ended Valuation Net Assets (AAL) (UALL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30 Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
2011 7-1-2010 - $ 1,302,300 $ 1,302,300 0% $ 9,966,290 13.1%
2012 7-1-2010 - 1,302,300 1,302,300 0% 10,108,158 12.9%
2013 7-1-2012 850,500 850,500 0% 10,143,280 8.4%

See notes to Required Supplementary Information.



NOTE 1.

Note 2.

CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2013

Budget Preparation and Adoption

The State of Iowa requires the annual budgets for the year beginning July 1 be certified to the
County Auditor no later than March 15 preceding the beginning of the fiscal year. The budget must
include the amount to be raised by property taxation, income from sources other than property
taxation, and expenditures for each of the functional areas described in Note 3.

Preliminary budget review of all operating department requests is conducted by the City
Administrator. The budget proposal as presented to the City Council by the City Administrator is a
complete financial plan for the upcoming fiscal year. The proposal is submitted on or before the first
Monday of February. The City Council holds various budget meetings with the City Administrator,
Finance Director, department heads, and boards and commissions, as well as holding a public
hearing prior to adopting the budget. The Council adopts the budget by resolution and certifies it to
the County Auditor by the 15th of March preceding the beginning of the fiscal year. This budget
becomes the appropriation for the operations of the City.

After the initial annual budget is adopted, it may be amended for specified purposes. Budget
amendments must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the original budget. Management
is not authorized to amend the budget or to make budgetary transfers between functions without the
approval of the City Council.

The City Council also approves a five-year capital improvement program. This capital improvement
program is reviewed and revised annually by the City Council; a public hearing also is held in regard
to proposed capital improvements for the City.

Basis of Budgeting

Annual budgets are adopted following required public notice and hearings for all funds with the
exception of certain internal service and permanent funds, on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), except that encumbrances are
also recognized as a valid and proper charge against the budget appropriations in the year in which
the commitment was issued. Encumbrances represent purchases on order related to unperformed
contracts for goods or services with the exception of capital projects fund contracts. For budgetary
purposes, encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against the budget appropriation
in the year in which the commitment was issued. Encumbrances do not lapse at year-end and provide
authorization for expenditure the following year. In the preceding budget schedules, expenditures
include current fiscal year encumbrances and exclude the payment of prior year encumbrances.
Additionally, all general obligation bond payments including those which for accounting purposes
are accounted for through enterprise funds are budgeted in the debt service fund.



NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

Budget Functions

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of expenditures known as
functions, not by fund or fund type. These nine functions are: public safety, public works, health and
social services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government,
debt service, capital projects, and business type activities. Function disbursements required to be
budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund,
Capital Projects Funds, Enterprise Funds and certain Permanent and Internal Service Funds.
Although the City’s budget document presents expenditures by fund, the legal level of control is at
the aggregated function level, not by fund. During the year, two budget amendments increased
budgeted disbursements in total by $3,958,352. This overall increase is primarily due to changes in
capital project construction schedules, grant funds awarded after the original budget was adopted,
and refunding $1,095,000 of outstanding general obligation debt. These budget amendments are
reflected in the final budgeted amounts.

During the year ended June 30, 2013 expenditures did not exceed the budgeted amounts in any of the
nine functions.

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

The information in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations as of July 1, 2010, and July 1, 2012. Additional information is as follows:

1. The cost method used to determine the ARC is the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost method.

2. There are no plan assets.

3. Economic assumptions in the July 1, 2012 valuation are as follows: health care cost trend rate of
5%, an investment return rate of 5.0%, and a 3% annual salary increase.

4. The amortization method is open period, level dollar.



NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are utilized to account for revenues derived from specific sources which are accounted for as
separate funds. These funds are as follows:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT - Accounts for block grants received to rehabilitate and
improve designated declining areas within the City.

1ST TIME HOME OWNERS PROGRAM - Accounts for funds received to provide education and counseling
services to assist persons interested in purchasing their own homes.

ROAD USE TAX - Accounts for road use tax allocated to the City to be used to maintain and improve the City's
street system.

SECTION 8 HOUSING PROGRAM - Accounts for the operations of the City's Section 8 Housing Program which
provides rental assistance to low income individuals and families in the City.

SUNSET PARK EDUCATION PROGRAM - Accounts for the children’s after school education program at the
Sunset Park public housing apartment complex.

POLICE FORFEITURES - Accounts for funds received by the police department from seized and forfeited
properties under guidelines established by the U.S. Department of Justice and the State of Iowa.

DOWNTOWN TAX INCREMENT - Accounts for the incremental taxes from the expanded Downtown Urban
Renewal Area and the debt service requirements on the bond issues which financed improvements in the downtown
area.

SOUTHEND TAX INCREMENT - Accounts for the incremental taxes from the Southend Urban Renewal Area
which funded economic development incentives for expanding businesses in this area, other improvements in the
southend area, and the debt requirements on the tax increment revenue bonds which financed improvements in the
southend area.

CEDAR DEVELOPMENT TAX INCREMENT - Accounts for incremental taxes from the Cedar Development
Urban Renewal Area.

MUSCATINE MALL TAX INCREMENT - Accounts for incremental taxes from the Muscatine Mall Urban
Renewal Area.

HIGHWAY 38 NORTHEAST TAX INCREMENT - Accounts for incremental taxes from the expanded
Highway 38 Northeast Urban Renewal Area.

HEINZ TAX INCREMENT - Accounts for incremental taxes from the Industrial/Heinz Urban Renewal Area.

ART CENTER SPECIAL FUNDS - Accounts for the Alice Dodge Schaeffer Trust, the principal and interest of
which is used for the conservation of furnishings, which accompanied this trust. Also accounts for the General
Donations Trust which is used for cash donations to the Art Center either for specific purchases or general donations
to be used to fund acquisitions designated by the Board of Trustees of the Art Center. Also accounts for funds
received from the estate of Brad Burns.



LIBRARY SPECIAL FUND - Accounts for the Library Gift and Memorial Trust used for general donations to the
Musser Public Library.

PARKS DONATIONS — Accounts for funds from the estate of Frank C. Bishop to be used for park improvements.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are utilized to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other major capital assets, with the exception of those that are financed by
Enterprise and Internal Service Funds. The project funds reflect the nature of the capital projects and are as follows:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENTS FUND - Accounts for urban renewal improvements,
housing rehabilitation, and building demolition projects in designated areas of the City.

STREET AND SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS FUND - Accounts for the City’s pavement management
program including ongoing maintenance of the improved streets.

OTHER STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND - Accounts for other street projects throughout the City.
RIVERFRONT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND - Accounts for riverfront and levee improvement projects.

OTHER PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FUND - Accounts for construction and improvements to City buildings,
improvements of City park facilities and equipment and technology acquisitions.

PERMANENT FUNDS

Permanent Funds are used to account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings and not
principal may be used for purposes that benefit the City’s programs and services.

McWhirter-Gilmore Trust - Accounts for funds received which accompanied the gift of the Musser Mansion
museum facility. Interest earnings on this trust are used for the maintenance of the museum building.

Perpetual Care Trust - Accounts for the portion of cemetery lot sales designated for perpetual care.

Perpetual Care Interest Trust — Accounts for interest earned on cemetery perpetual care funds which is required to
be used for the operation and maintenance of the cemetery facility.

Cemetery Special Trusts - Accounts for funds received, the interest earnings of which are designated to be used to
maintain specific cemetery lots or to provide floral arrangements for these lots.



City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2013
Special Capital
Revenue Projects Permanent Totals
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments $ 2,226,461 $ 702,118 $ 69,112 2,997,691
Investments 359,345 - 972,000 1,331,345
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles):
Interest 1,204 - 4,550 5,754
Taxes 921,934 - - 921,934
Intergovernmental 425,861 6,732 - 432,593
Accounts 7,298 32,579 220 40,097
Advances to other funds 26,489 218,089 - 244,578
Total assets 3,968,592 959,518 1,045,882 5,973,992
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accruals 21,617 50,449 1,058 73,124
Retainages payable - 82,594 - 82,594
Escrow liability 21,637 - - 21,637
Advances from other funds - 218,089 26,489 244,578
Unearned revenue 21,720 - - 21,720
Total liabilities 64,974 351,132 27,547 443,653
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 917,400 - - 917,400
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable:
Advances to other funds 26,489 218,089 - 244,578
Permanent fund principal - - 982,274 982,274
Restricted for:
Grant purposes 965,280 - - 965,280
Housing assistance payments 54,393 - - 54,393
Tax levy purposes 1,091,092 - - 1,091,092
Housing and community
development 194,080 - - 194,080
Law enforcement 41,579 - - 41,579
Art center 366,361 - 6,459 372,820
Library 218,009 - - 218,009
Parks and recreation 28,935 - - 28,935
Cemetery - - 29,602 29,602
Street improvement projects - 533,460 - 533,460
Building improvement projects - 49,201 - 49,201
Parks and recreation projects - 15,944 - 15,944
Unassigned - (208,308) - (208,308)
Total fund balances (deficits) 2,986,218 608,386 1,018,335 4,612,939
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances (deficits) $ 3,968,592 $ 959,518 $ 1,045,882 5,973,992




City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Special Capital
Revenue Projects Permanent Totals
REVENUES
Taxes:

Property $ 837,307 - - $ 837,307
Intergovernmental 4,092,769 181,848 - 4,274,617
Use of money and property 7,986 1,800 23,145 32,931
Other 108,940 235,920 6,958 351,818

Total revenues 5,047,002 419,568 30,103 5,496,673
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety 642 - - 642
Culture and recreation 27,622 - 3,434 31,056
Community and economic development 2,322,828 - - 2,322,828
Debt service:
Principal 105,000 - - 105,000
Interest 61,308 - - 61,308
Capital outlay:
Public safety 14,910 173,301 - 188,211
Public works - 1,953,130 - 1,953,130
Culture and recreation 42,412 1,192 - 43,604
Community and economic development - 4,664 - 4,664
General government - 235,970 - 235,970
Total expenditures 2,574,722 2,368,257 3,434 4,946,413
Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,472,280 (1,948,689) 26,669 550,260
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in - 887,467 - 887,467

Transfers out (2,595,187) (56,556) (19,765) (2,671,508)
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,595,187) 830,911 (19,765) (1,784,041)
Net change in fund balances (122,907) (1,117,778) 6,904 (1,233,781)
Fund balances, June 30, 2012 3,109,125 1,726,164 1,011,431 5,846,720
Fund balances, June 30, 2013 $ 2,986,218 608,386 1,018,335 $ 4,612,939




ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles):
Interest
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Advances to other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accruals
Escrow liability
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Advances to other funds
Restricted for:
Grant purposes
Housing assistance payments
Tax levy purposes
Housing and community development
Law enforcement
Art center
Library
Parks and recreation

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2013

Community 1st Time Section 8 Sunset Park Downtown
Development Home Owners Road Use Housing Education Police Tax
Block Grant Program Tax Program Program Forfeitures Increment
$ 39,688 140,403 $ 466,194 $ 5,637 $ 9,735 $ 41,579 $ 75,973
- - - 179,345 - - -
- - - 1 - - -
- - - - - - 210,000
- 4,632 - 2,666 - - -
- - 425,861 - - - -
39,688 145,035 892,055 187,649 9,735 41,579 285,973
- 22 - 16,674 356 - -
- - - 21,637 - - -
- - - 21,720 - - -
- 22 - 60,031 356 - -
- - - - - - 210,000
- - 892,055 73,225 - - -
- - - 54,393 - - -
- - - - - 75,973
39,688 145,013 - - 9,379 - -
- - - - - 41,579 -
39,688 145,013 892,055 127,618 9,379 41,579 75,973
$ 39,688 145,035 $ 892,055 $ 187,649 $ 9,735 $ 41,579 $ 285973




Southend
Tax
Increment

Cedar

Development
Tax Increment

Muscatine
Mall Tax
Increment

Highway 38

Northeast Tax

Increment

Heinz
Tax
Increment

Art Center
Special Funds

Library
Special Funds

Parks

Donations

Total

$ 979,426

429,534

$ 22,149

203,000

N 5,136

$

3,874

$ 187,358
180,000

$

220,349

$

28,960

$

2,226,461
359,345

1,204
921,934
7,298
425,861
26,489

1,408,960

225,149

368,561

220,349

3,968,592

2,200

2,340

21,617
21,637
21,720

2,200

2,340

64,974

425,000

203,000

19,000

60,400

917,400

366,361

218,009

26,489

965,280
54,393
1,091,092
194,080
41,579
366,361
218,009
28,935

983,960

22,149

5,136

3,874

366,361

218,009

2,986,218

$ 1,408,960

$ 225,149

$ 24,136

$

60,400

$

3,874

$ 368,561

$

220,349

$

55,449

$

3,968,592




City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Ch in Fund Balances

B

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Community 1st Time
Development Home Owners Road Use
Block Grant Program Tax

Section 8
Housing
Program

Sunset Park
Education
Program

Police
Forfeitures

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental:
HUD grants - - -
Road use tax - - 2,254,220
State grants - - -
Local grants - 19,818 -
Interest 48 173 -
Other:
Donations - - -
Miscellaneous - - -

1,802,082

160

1,816

17,200

54,328

Total revenues 48 19,991 2,254,220

1,804,058

17,213

54,353

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety - - -
Culture and recreation - - -
Community and economic
development - 41,923 -
Capital outlay:
Public safety - - -
Culture and recreation - - -
Debt service:
Principal - - -
Interest - - -

1,898,847

642

Total expenditures - 41,923 -

1,898,847

18,514

15,552

Revenues over (under)
expenditures 48 (21,932) 2,254,220

(94,789)

(1,301)

38,801

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (3,000) - (2,202,308)

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,000) - (2,202,308)

Net change in fund balances (2,952) (21,932) 51,912

Fund balances, June 30, 2012 42,640 166,945 840,143

(94,789)

222,407

(1,301)

10,680

38,801

2,778

Fund balances, June 30, 2013 $ 39,688 $ 145,013 $ 892,055

$

127,618

$ 9,379

$ 41,579




Downtown Southend Cedar Muscatine Heinz

Tax Tax Development Mall Tax Tax Art Center Library Parks
Increment Increment Tax Increment Increment Increment Special Funds  Special Funds Donations Total

$ 208,285 $ 417,758 $ 180,516 $ 14,878 $ 15,870 $ - $ - $ - $ 837,307
- - - - - - - - 1,802,082
- - - - - - - - 2,254,220
- - - - - - 16,649 - 16,649
- - - - - - - - 19,818
174 1,325 28 5 2 5,710 260 63 7,986
- - - - - 5,289 20,425 2,520 45,434
- - - - - 1,633 5,729 - 63,506
208,459 419,083 180,544 14,883 15,872 12,632 43,063 2,583 5,047,002
- - - - - - - - 642
- - - - - - 26,537 1,085 27,622
- 164,137 171,939 13,152 14,316 - - - 2,322,828
- - - - - - - - 14,910
- - - - - 20,794 21,618 - 42,412
- 105,000 - - - - - - 105,000
- 61,308 - - - - - - 61,308
- 330,445 171,939 13,152 14,316 20,794 48,155 1,085 2,574,722
208,459 88,638 8,605 1,731 1,556 (8,162) (5,092) 1,498 2,472,280
(209,625) (180,254) - - - - - - (2,595,187)
(209,625) (180,254) - - - - - - (2,595,187)
(1,166) (91,616) 8,605 1,731 1,556 (8,162) (5,092) 1,498 (122,907)
77,139 1,075,576 13,544 3,405 2,318 374,523 223,101 53,926 3,109,125

$ 75,973 $ 983,960 $ 22,149 $ 5,136 $ 3,874 $ 366,361 $ 218,009 $ 55,424 $ 2,986,218




ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments
Receivables:
Intergovernmental
Accounts
Advances to other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retainages payable
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable:
Advances to other funds
Restricted for:
Street improvement projects
Building improvement projects
Parks and recreation projects
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2013
Community Street and Other Riverfront Other
Development Sidewalk Street Improvement Public
Improvements Improvements Improvements Projects Improvements Total
$ - $ - § 551,342 $ - § 150,776 § 702,118
- - 6,732 - - 6,732
- 30,079 - - 2,500 32,579
- - 218,089 - - 218,089
- 30,079 776,163 - 153,276 959,518
4,664 19 6,649 15,615 23,502 50,449
- - 17,965 - 64,629 82,594
9,555 15,144 - 193,390 - 218,089
14,219 15,163 24,614 209,005 88,131 351,132
- - 218,089 - - 218,089
- - 533,460 - - 533,460
- - - - 49,201 49,201
- - - - 15,944 15,944
(14,219) 14,916 - (209,005) - (208,308)
(14,219) 14,916 751,549 (209,005) 65,145 608,386
$ - $ 30,079 § 776,163 $ - $§ 153,276 § 959,518




City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Community Street and Other Riverfront Other
Development Sidewalk Street Improvement Public
Improvements Improvements Improvements Projects Improvements Total
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
Federal grants $ - $ - $ 75,282 $ - $ 100,614 $ 175,896
State grants - - - - 5,952 5,952
Interest - 15 1,539 11 235 1,800
Other:
Contributions - 34,329 - 5,000 3,050 42,379
Reimbursement of costs 4,991 78,182 80,997 - 29,371 193,541
Total revenues 4,991 112,526 157,818 5,011 139,222 419,568
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Public safety - - - - 173,301 173,301
Public works - 702,911 1,173,021 77,198 - 1,953,130
Culture and recreation - - - 115 1,077 1,192
Community and economic development 4,664 - - - - 4,664
General government - - - - 235,970 235,970
Total expenditures 4,664 702,911 1,173,021 77,313 410,348 2,368,257
Revenues over (under) expenditures 327 (590,385) (1,015,203) (72,302) (271,126) (1,948,689)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 593,139 - 109,382 184,946 887,467
Transfers out - - (56,556) - - (56,556)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 593,139 (56,556) 109,382 184,946 830,911
Net change in fund balances 327 2,754 (1,071,759) 37,080 (86,180) (1,117,778)
Fund balances (deficits), June 30, 2012 (14,546) 12,162 1,823,308 (246,085) 151,325 1,726,164
Fund balances (deficits), June 30, 2013 $ (14,219) $ 14,916 $ 751,549 $§  (209,005) $ 65,145 $ 608,386




ASSETS

Cash and pooled investments

Investments

Receivables:
Interest
Accounts

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal
Restricted for:
Cemetery
Art center

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Permanent Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2013
McWhirter- Perpetual Perpetual Cemetery
Gilmore Care Care Interest Special
Trust Trust Trust Trusts Total
$ 46,058 $ 23,054 $ - $ - $ 69,112
60,000 827,000 - 85,000 972,000
401 - 3,974 175 4,550
- 220 - - 220
106,459 850,274 3,974 85,175 1,045,882
- - - 1,058 1,058
- - 3,974 22,515 26,489
- - 3,974 23,573 27,547
100,000 850,274 - 32,000 982,274
- - - 29,602 29,602
6.459 . . . 6.459
106,459 850,274 - 61,602 1,018,335
$§ 106,459 $ 850,274 $ 3,974 $§ 85175 $§ 1,045,882




REVENUES
Cemetery perpetual care
Interest
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, June 30, 2012

Fund balances, June 30, 2013

City of Muscatine, lowa

Non-Major Permanent Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2013
McWhirter- Perpetual Perpetual Cemetery
Gilmore Care Care Interest Special
Trust Trust Trust Trusts Total
$ - $ 6,958 $ - - $ 6,958
1,883 - 19,765 1,497 23,145
1,883 6,958 19,765 1,497 30,103
600 - - 2,834 3,434
1,283 6,958 19,765 (1,337) 26,669
- - (19,765) - (19,765)
1,283 6,958 - (1,337) 6,904
105,176 843,316 - 62,939 1,011,431
$ 106,459 $ 850,274 $ - 61,602 $§ 1,018,335
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NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations and activities that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to a private business enterprise, and where the cost of providing goods and services to
the general public on a continuing basis is expected to be recovered primarily through user charges. The
City has also established Enterprise Funds when the determination has been made that it is advantageous
to segregate revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net income for purposes of capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or accountability.

AIRPORT OPERATIONS - Accounts for the activities of the Municipal Airport. This activity is
supported by user charges and a subsidy from the General Fund.

PARKING OPERATIONS - Accounts for the operations of "on" and "off-street" parking meters and
parking in designated lots. All activities necessary to provide for such services are accounted for in this
fund including, but not limited to, meter enforcement, maintenance, and administration.

TRANSIT OPERATIONS - Accounts for the operations of the municipal transit system. The system is
funded from user fees, grants, and property taxes from a special levy.

GOLF COURSE - Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the Municipal Golf Course. This
includes activities necessary to provide for the operation of the course as well as capital improvements.

BOAT HARBOR - Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the municipal boat harbor in addition
to capital improvements to the harbor.

MARINA OPERATIONS - Accounts for the operation of the City's gas barge which provides fuel sales
to boaters on the Mississippi River.

AMBULANCE OPERATIONS - Accounts for the Fire Department Ambulance Service which began
providing service July 1, 2000.

PUBLIC HOUSING - Accounts for the operations of the City’s public housing program which includes
a 100-unit elderly housing facility and a 50-unit family facility.



Operating revenues:

Charges for sales and services:
Charges for services
Parking fees
Transit fees
Golf course fees
Boat harbor fees
Management fees
Rents

Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Cost of sales and services:
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services

Administration

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Federal, state and local grants
Interest revenue
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets

Non-operating revenues (expenses), net

Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions - grants
Transfers in

Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position, June 30, 2012

Net position, June 30, 2013

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Airport Parking Transit
Operations Operations Operations Golf Course Boat Harbor
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- 177,415 - - -
- - 179,203 - -
- - - 717,893 -
- - - - 28,665
9,900 - - - -
55,781 - - - -
3,455 - 419 22,801 -
69,136 177,415 179,622 740,694 28,665
- 159,562 652,981 347,627 10,069
2,353 4,934 129,116 232,199 696
182,748 9,565 246,487 135,761 7,048
8,100 20,500 16,600 48,600 5,200
358,298 45,704 80,163 104,759 4,865
551,499 240,265 1,125,347 868,946 27,878
(482,363) (62,850) (945,725) (128,252) 787
12,929 - 509,141 - -
15 99 17 142 6
12,944 99 509,158 142 6
(469,419) (62,751) (436,567) (128,110) 793
122,066 - - - -
53,987 - 320,480 - -
(293,366) (62,751) (116,087) (128,110) 793
4,535,842 1,359,277 318,586 1,128,544 49,018
$ 4,242,476 $ 1,296,526 $ 202,499 $ 1,000,434 $ 49,811




Marina Ambulance Public
Operations Operations Housing Total

- $ 1,287,169 $ - $ 1,287,169

- - - 177,415

- - - 179,203

- - - 717,893

- - - 28,665

- - - 9,900

- - 428,469 484,250
13,079 64,545 47,017 151,316
13,079 1,351,714 475,486 3,035,811
1,118 139,343 392,263 1,702,963
11,186 108,579 66,191 555,254
1,569 160,610 331,754 1,075,542
- 33,500 - 132,500

- 60,461 299,875 954,125
13,873 502,493 1,090,083 4,420,384
(794) 849,221 (614,597) (1,384,573)

- - 263,011 785,081

- 154 1,301 1,734
- - (10,958) (10,958)

- 154 253,354 775,857
(794) 849,375 (361,243) (608,716)

- - - 122,066

- - - 374,467
- (839,000) - (839,000)
(794) 10,375 (361,243) (951,183)
868 610,177 2,690,220 10,692,532
74 $ 620,552 $ 2,328,977 $ 9,741,349




Operating revenues:

Charges for sales and services:
Charges for services
Parking fees
Transit fees
Golf course fees
Boat harbor fees
Management fees
Rents

Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Cost of sales and services:
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services

Administration

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Federal, state and local grants
Interest revenue
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets

Non-operating revenues (expenses), net

Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions - grants
Transfers in

Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position, June 30, 2012

Net position, June 30, 2013

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Airport Parking Transit
Operations Operations Operations Golf Course Boat Harbor
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- 177,415 - - -
- - 179,203 - -
- - - 717,893 -
- - - - 28,665
9,900 - - - -
55,781 - - - -
3,455 - 419 22,801 -
69,136 177,415 179,622 740,694 28,665
- 159,562 652,981 347,627 10,069
2,353 4,934 129,116 232,199 696
182,748 9,565 246,487 135,761 7,048
8,100 20,500 16,600 48,600 5,200
358,298 45,704 80,163 104,759 4,865
551,499 240,265 1,125,347 868,946 27,878
(482,363) (62,850) (945,725) (128,252) 787
12,929 - 509,141 - -
15 99 17 142 6
12,944 99 509,158 142 6
(469,419) (62,751) (436,567) (128,110) 793
122,066 - - - -
53,987 - 320,480 - -
(293,366) (62,751) (116,087) (128,110) 793
4,535,842 1,359,277 318,586 1,128,544 49,018
$ 4,242,476 $ 1,296,526 $ 202,499 $ 1,000,434 $ 49,811




Marina Ambulance Public
Operations Operations Housing Total

- $ 1,287,169 $ - $ 1,287,169

- - - 177,415

- - - 179,203

- - - 717,893

- - - 28,665

- - - 9,900

- - 428,469 484,250
13,079 64,545 47,017 151,316
13,079 1,351,714 475,486 3,035,811
1,118 139,343 392,263 1,702,963
11,186 108,579 66,191 555,254
1,569 160,610 331,754 1,075,542
- 33,500 - 132,500

- 60,461 299,875 954,125
13,873 502,493 1,090,083 4,420,384
(794) 849,221 (614,597) (1,384,573)

- - 263,011 785,081

- 154 1,301 1,734
- - (10,958) (10,958)

- 154 253,354 775,857
(794) 849,375 (361,243) (608,716)

- - - 122,066

- - - 374,467
- (839,000) - (839,000)
(794) 10,375 (361,243) (951,183)
868 610,177 2,690,220 10,692,532
74 $ 620,552 $ 2,328,977 $ 9,741,349




Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments for interfund services used
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other funds
Advances from other funds
Advances to other funds
Repayment of advances from other funds
Repayment of advances to other funds
Subsidies from federal, state and local grants
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Capital contributions
Purchase of capital assets
Return of portion of prior year prepaid asset purchase
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchase of investments
Interest received
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and pooled investments
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2012

Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2013

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accruals
Compensated absences payable
Other post-employment benefits
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non-cash capital and related financing activities:

Change in accounts payable used to purchase capital assets

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Non-Major Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Airport Parking Transit
Operations Operations Operations Golf Course Boat Harbor
$ 69,212 $ 173,580 $ 181,795 $ 748,104 $ 28,665
(166,827) (12,700) (38,474) (341,583) (8,081)
- (118,751) (528,565) (259,168) (8,692)
- (36,922) (123,914) (83,126) (1,896)
(9,973) (20,500) (354,982) (51,674) (5,200)
(107,588) (15,293) (864,140) 12,553 4,796
53,986 - 320,480 - -
- - - 188,320 -
- - - - (5,212)
(3,466) - - - -
- 526 - - -
12,929 - 509,741 - -
63,449 526 830,221 188,320 (5,212)
108,689 - - - -
(64,565) - - (330,164) -
44,124 - - (330,164) -
15 99 17 142 6
15 99 17 142 6
- (14,668) (33,902) (129,149) (410)
- 94,984 88,586 129,149 8,201
$ - $ 80,316 $ 54,684 $ - $ 7,791
$  (482,363) $ (62,850) $  (945,725) $  (128,252) $ 787
358,298 45,704 80,163 104,759 4,865
57 (1,375) 2,257 410 -
- - - (2,666) -
16,401 1,799 (1,253) 25,969 (336)
- 3,236 13 4,110 (520)
- 653 489 1,224 -
19 (2,460) (84) 6,999 -
374,775 47,557 81,585 140,805 4,009
$  (107,588) $ (15,293) $  (864,140) $ 12,553 $ 4,796
$ 15,121 $ - $ - $ - $ -



Marina Ambulance Public
Operations Operations Housing Total

$ 13,329 $ 1,362,706 3 477,135 $ 3,054,526
(16,897) (229,678) (289,491) (1,103,731)
(965) (112,050) (295,039) (1,323,230)
(153) (24,962) (101,447) (372,420)
- (77,220) (86,850) (606,399)
(4,686) 918,796 (295,692) (351,254)
- (839,000) - (839,000)

- - - 374,466

5212 - - 193,532
- - - (5,212)
(526) - - (3,992)

- - - 526

- - 263,011 785,681

4,686 (839,000) 263,011 506,001

- - - 108,689
- - (49,900) (444,629)

- 1,100 - 1,100
- 1,100 (49,900) (334,840)

- - 540,011 540,011
- - (464,983) (464,983)

- 154 1,457 1,890

- 154 76,485 76,918
- 81,050 (6,096) (103,175)

- 30,532 7,798 359,250

$ - $ 111,582 $ 1,702 $ 256,075
$ (794) $ 849,221 $  (614,597) $ (1,384,573)
- 60,461 299,875 954,125

250 5,006 4,933 11,538
(2,005) - - (4,671)

- - 38,624 38,624

(2,137) (4,208) (17,018) 19,217

- 1,922 (5,979) 2,782

- 408 1,754 4,528

- 5,986 (5,109) 5,351

- - 1,825 1,825

(3,892) 69,575 318,905 1,033,319
$ (4,686) $ 918,796 $  (295,692) $  (351,254)
$ - $ - $ - $ 15,121



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are established to finance and account for services and commodities furnished by
one department or agency of the City to other departments or agencies of the City. Internal Service Funds
are as follows:

EQUIPMENT SERVICES FUND - Accounts for the operations and maintenance of the central garage.
All costs incurred for the maintenance of City vehicles and operation of the facility are charged to
departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

CENTRAL SUPPLIES FUND - Accounts for the central inventory of office supplies which are
provided to City departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

HEALTH INSURANCE FUND - Accounts for the costs related to the City's self-insurance plan which
provides health insurance benefits to employees.

DENTAL INSURANCE FUND — Accounts for the costs related to the City’s self-insurance plan which
provides dental insurance benefits to employees.



ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Due from other funds
Inventories

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Equipment
Vehicles
Less accumulated depreciatior

Total capital assets net of accumulated

depreciation

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Compensated absences payable
Due to other funds

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable
Other post employment benefit:
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

City of Muscatine, lowa

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30,2013
Equipment Central Health Dental
Services Supplies Insurance Insurance Total

§ 68,641 $ - $ 1,946,921 § 20276 $ 2,035,838
3,205 - 25,771 - 28,976
- - 1,095 - 1,095
128,802 2,217 - - 131,019
200,648 2,217 1,973,787 20,276 2,196,928
117,956 - - - 117,956
64,309 - - - 64,309
(161,957) - - - (161,957)
20,308 - - - 20,308
220,956 2,217 1,973,787 20,276 2,217,236
51,654 151 201,160 2,785 255,750
19,805 - - - 19,805
- 1,095 - - 1,095
71,459 1,246 201,160 2,785 276,650
27,873 - - - 27,873
7,844 - - - 7,844
35,717 - - - 35,717
107,176 1,246 201,160 2,785 312,367
20,308 - - - 20,308
93,472 971 1,772,627 17,491 1,884,561
$§ 113,780 $ 971 $ 1,772,627 § 17,491 $ 1,904,869




Operating revenues:

Charges for sales and services:

Services

Fuel

Supply charges
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Other contributions
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Cost of sales and services:
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services

Administration

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:
Interest revenue

Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers out

Change in net position

Net position, June 30, 2012

Net position, June 30, 2013

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Equipment Central Health Dental

Services Supplies Insurance Insurance Total
§ 695,397 $ - $ - $ - § 695,397
513,161 - - - 513,161
- 2,747 - - 2,747
- - 2,218,838 59,349 2,278,187
- - 157,021 59,762 216,783
- - 154,109 5,632 159,741
1,266 - 3,370 - 4,636
1,209,824 2,747 2,533,338 124,743 3,870,652
297,637 - - - 297,637
640,907 2,549 - - 643,456
241,770 - 2,301,391 131,694 2,674,855
15,300 - 3,000 - 18,300
2,746 - - - 2,746
1,198,360 2,549 2,304,391 131,694 3,636,994
11,464 198 228,947 (6,951) 233,658
- - 2,147 30 2,177
11,464 198 231,094 (6,921) 235,835
- - (46,326) - (46,326)
11,464 198 184,768 (6,921) 189,509
102,316 773 1,587,859 24,412 1,715,360
$§ 113,780 $ 971 $ 1,772,627 $ 17,491 $ 1,904,869




Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments for interfund services used
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers to other funds
Advances from other funds
Advances to other funds
Repayment of advances from other funds
Repayment of advances to other funds
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Purchase of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and pooled investments
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2012

Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2013

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accruals
Compensated absences payable
Other post employment benefits payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Equipment Central Health Dental
Services Supplies Insurance Insurance Total
$ 1,215,990 $ 2,747 $ 2,517,158 § 124,743 $ 3,860,638
(876,854) (2,643) (2,313,113) (132,955) (3,325,565)
(201,116) - - - (201,116)
(91,656) - - - (91,656)
(15,300) - (3,000) - (18,300)
31,064 104 201,045 (8,212) 224,001
- - (46,326) - (46,326)
- 1,095 - - 1,095
- - (1,095) - (1,095)
- (1,199) - - (1,199)
- - 1,199 - 1,199
- (104) (46,222) - (46,326)
(8,676) - - - (8,676)
- - 2,147 30 2,177
22,388 - 156,970 (8,182) 171,176
46,253 - 1,789,951 28,458 1,864,662
$ 68,641 $ - $ 1,946,921 $ 20,276 $ 2,035,838
$ 11,464 $ 198 $ 228,947 $ (6,951) $ 233,658
2,746 - - - 2,746
6,166 - (16,180) - (10,014)
26,523 (85) - - 26,438
(20,700) ) (11,722) (1,261) (33,692)
3,233 - - - 3,233
1,632 - - - 1,632
19,600 (94) (27,902) (1,261) (9,657)
$ 31,064 $ 104 $ 201,045 $ (8,212) $ 224,001



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are those used to account for assets held by a government as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, or other governments.

PAYROLL CLEARING FUND - Accounts for the collection and payment of employee payroll
withholdings and City contributions for payroll taxes.

MISCELLANEOUS CLEARING FUND - Accounts for general City expenditures to be allocated to
other funds and miscellaneous funds received by the City as an agent for individuals, organizations or
other funds.

HOUSING REVOLVING FUND - Accounts for general City expenditures allocated to the City’s
Housing Programs, which are reimbursed by the Housing Programs.



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Agency Funds
June 30, 2013
Payroll Miscellaneous Housing
Clearing Clearing Revolving Totals
§ 672,253 171 $ - $ 672,424
- - 50,821 50,821
50,500 - - 50,500
722,753 171 50,821 773,745
722,753 171 321 723,245
- - 50,500 50,500
§ 722753 171 $ 50,821 $ 773,745




City of Muscatine, lowa

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Payroll Clearing Fund
Assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals

Miscellaneous Clearing Fund
Assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals

Housing Revolving Fund
Assets:
Accounts receivable

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

Total

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Accounts receivable
Advances to other funds

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Advances from other funds

Total liabilities

All Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Balance Balance
June 30, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013
$ 672,760 15,923,208 15,923,715 $ 672,253
52,641 - 2,141 50,500
$ 725,401 15,923,208 15,925,856 $ 722,753
$ 725,401 4,563,885 4,566,533 $ 722,753
$ 362 - 191 $ 171
15 - 15 -
$ 377 - 206 $ 171
$ 377 - 206 $ 171
$ 53,035 - 2,214 $ 50,821
$ 394 - 73 $ 321
52,641 - 2,141 50,500
$ 53,035 - 2,214 $ 50,821
$ 673,122 15,923,208 15,923,906 $ 672,424
53,050 - 2,229 50,821
52,641 - 2,141 50,500
$ 778,813 15,923,208 15,928,276 $ 773,745
$ 726,172 4,563,885 4,566,812 $ 723,245
52,641 - 2,141 50,500
$ 778,813 4,563,885 4,568,953 $ 773,745




MUSCATINE COUNTY SOLID WASTE AGENCY
COMPONENT UNIT

Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency (Agency). The Agency has been organized as a joint venture
under Chapter 28E of the Code of Iowa between the City of Muscatine; Muscatine County; and the
municipalities of Fruitland, Stockton, West Liberty, Atalissa, Nichols, and Conesville, lowa. The Agency

is responsible for the disposal of all solid waste for member municipalities and unincorporated portions of
Muscatine County.



Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency
Component Unit

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

ASSETS

Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments

Capital assets:
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals
Compensated absences payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Loan due to primary government
Closure/post-closure obligation
Compensated absences payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

$

$

1,360,499

1,080,608
2,490,422
37,314
31,317

(1,259,014)
2,380,647

3,741,146

58,400
1,406

59,806

1,022,347
2,558,574
182

3,581,103

3,640,909

2,380,647

(2,280,410)

100,237



Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency

Component Unit

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Cost of services:
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services
Administration
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Non-operating revenue:
Intergovernmental revenue
Interest revenue
Total non-operating revenues
Net income

Net position, June 30, 2012

Net position, June 30, 2013

$

1,195,186
15,000

1,210,186

25,714
21,594
752,132
48,200
280,123

1,127,763

82,423

117,177
149

117,326

199,749

(99,512)

100,237




Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency
Component Unit

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers and users $ 1,210,185
Payments to suppliers (712,889)
Payments to employees (18,768)
Payments for employee benefits (6,679)
Payments for interfund services used (48,200)
Net cash provided by operating activities 423,649

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Repayment of loan from primary government (433,295)
Subsidies from federal, state and local governments 117,177
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities (316,118)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 149
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 149
Net increase in cash and pooled investments 107,680
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2012 1,252,819
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2013 $ 1,360,499

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income $ 82,423
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 280,123
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accruals (2,930)

Compensated absences payable 268

Closure/post-closure liability 63,765
Total adjustments 341,226

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 423,649



MUSCATINE COVENTION
AND VISITORS BUREAU
COMPONENT UNIT

Muscatine Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB). The CVB was established as a non-profit
corporation as defined in section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code in the current year. The initial
CVB Board of Directors was appointed by the Mayor. Thereafter board member appointments will be
made according to provisions of the CVB’s bylaws. The City of Muscatine has allocated 25% of the
hotel/motel tax revenue to the CVB which is substantially all of the CVB’s financial resources. Because
of its fiscal dependence on the City the CVB is considered a component unit of the City.



Muscatine Convention and Visitors Bureau
Component Unit

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments

Capital assets:
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals

Total liabilities
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

S 64831

11,412
(1,141)

10,271

75,102

296

296

10,271
64,535

S 74806



Muscatine Convention and Visitors Bureau
Component Unit

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Operating revenues:
City contributions $ 55,000
Other contributions 48,980
Total operating revenues 103,980
Operating expenses:
Cost of services:
Personal services 18,431
Commodities 1,075
Contractual services 8,600
Depreciation 1,141
Total operating expenses 29,247
Operating income 74,733
Non-operating revenue:
Interest revenue 73
Change in net position 74,806

Net position, June 30, 2012 -

Net position, June 30, 2013 $ 74,806



Muscatine Convention and Visitors Bureau
Component Unit

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from contributing entities $ 103,980
Payments to suppliers 9,379)
Payments to employees (16,512)
Payments for employee benefits (1,919)
Net cash provided by operating activities 76,170

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Purchase of capital assets (11,412)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities (11,412)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 73
Net cash provided by investing activities 73
Net increase in cash and pooled investments 64,831

Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2012 -
Cash and pooled investments, June 30, 2013 $ 64,831

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income $ 74,733
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,141
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accruals 296
Total adjustments 1,437
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 76,170



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Muscatine’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial
health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends (Schedules 1 — 5) 104-110

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the government’s financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity (Schedules 6 — 9) 111-114

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity (Schedules 10 — 13) 115-118

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and
the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information (Schedules 14 — 15) 119-120

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government’s
financial activities take place.

Operating Information (Schedules 16 — 18) 121-123

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the government’s financial
report relates to the services the government provides and the activities
it performs.



Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

City of Muscatine, Iowa
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 1

(Unaudited)

Fical Year
2003/2004 2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013
$ 48,955,154 $ 51,221,230 $ 50,011,138 $ 51,581,004 $ 50,833,005 $ 50,303,012 $ 48,735,481 $ 50,534,706 $49,843,849  § 51,062,032
3,044,136 2,948,998 3,420,397 3,305,450 5,644,659 2,989,872 2,899,555 4,914,742 8,626,783 6,014,924
7,329,316 5,250,409 5,466,892 6,823,222 6,272,247 7,330,802 7,905,068 2,910,113 2,485,584 2,852,152
$ 59,328,606 $ 59,420,637 $ 58,898,427 $ 61,709,676 $ 62749911 $ 60,623,686 $ 59,540,104 $ 58,359,561 $ 60,956,216 $ 60,529,108
$ 47,010,683 $ 47,550,543 $ 51,101,160 $ 52,481,362 $ 53,255,999 $ 57,286,029 $ 60,488,326 $ 63,959,885 $ 64,583,715  $ 67,867,972
- - - - - 190,093 413,321 135,331 178,360 136,888
6,547,924 6,529,619 6,582,593 6,023,561 7,796,532 7,105,081 7,500,477 8,340,770 7,798,823 6,931,260
$ 53,558,607 $ 54,080,162 $ 57,683,753 $ 58,504,923 $ 61,052,531 $ 64,581,203 $ 68,402,124 $ 72,435,986 $ 72,560,898 § 74,936,120
$ 95,965,837 $ 98,771,773 $ 101,112,298 $ 104,062,366 $ 104,089,004 $ 107,589,041 $ 109,223,807 $ 114,494,591 BT
3,044,136 2,948,998 3,420,397 3,305,450 5,644,659 3,179,965 3,312,876 5,050,073 8,805,143 6,751,812
13,877,240 11,780,028 12,049,485 12,846,783 14,068,779 14,435,883 15,405,545 11,250,883 10,284,407 9,783,412
$ 112,887,213 $ 113,500,799 $ 116,582,180 $ 120,214,599 $ 123,802,442 $ 125,204,889 $ 127,942,228 $ 130,795,547 eGSR




Expenses

Governmental activities:

Public safety

Public works

Health and social service:

Culture and recreation

Community and economic developmen
General government

Interest and fees on long-term debt

Total governmental activities expens

Business-type activities
Water pollution contro!
Transfer station
Refuse collectior
Airport
Parking
Transit
Golf course
Boat harbor
Marina
Cable Televisior
Ambulance
Public housing

Total business-type activities expens

Total primary government expenst

City of Muscatine, Iowa
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting’

Schedule 2

(Unaudited)
Fical Year

2003/2004 2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013
$ 5,561,580 $ 6,081,788 $ 6,164,169 $ 6,476,982 $ 6,972,493 $ 7,136,808 $ 6,038,292 $ 7,231,247 $ 7,933,672 $ 8,106,891
2,970,927 3,220,525 3,802,168 3,299,503 3,498,689 5,262,061 4,392,189 6,104,574 4,603,469 4,111,389
16,560 15,700 16,660 26,700 16,660 16,660 17,100 17,800 17,800 20,000
2,957,891 3,466,568 3,967,702 3,774,353 3,773,895 3,970,285 4,393,742 3,991,705 4,072,299 4,018,788
3,849,722 3,217,531 2,234,880 2,446,232 2,757,190 2,656,737 2,918,941 3,232,025 3,063,468 3,099,380
1,659,438 1,725,955 1,844,303 1,866,359 1,880,724 1,967,161 2,877,107 2,088,819 2,129,477 2,352,743
397,429 422,410 379,549 432,626 391,759 473,916 439,305 570,313 504,515 496,578
17,413,547 18,150,477 18,409,931 18,322,755 19,291,410 21,483,628 21,076,676 23,236,483 22,324,700 22,205,769
4,094,791 4,134,898 4,329,934 4,581,077 4,649,437 4,992,317 5,413,555 5,083,681 5,757,128 6,088,562
2,002,761 2,181,508 2,130,005 2,363,530 2,486,114 1,519,980 2,240,614 2,174,384 2,302,385 2,140,480
1,221,882 1,243,306 1,283,743 1,423,922 1,390,113 2,228,048 1,798,493 1,827,138 2,015,577 2,068,419
621,520 551,070 579,586 545,259 561,312 605,009 709,883 566,129 462,094 551,499
204,879 205,301 220,508 210,405 244,774 201,409 228,674 247,292 244,115 237,933
618,308 678,757 763,123 781,763 872,252 907,562 1,028,876 1,016,663 1,077,339 1,121,524
451,551 468,149 439,438 586,908 778,125 825,757 798,587 818,018 871,848 864,167
41,486 33,273 33,630 37,325 33,015 34,648 31,605 29,041 31,036 27,878
8,430 8,004 27,176 24,203 12,461 10,961 19,451 12,802 19,507 13,873

31,137 - - - - - - - - -
749,644 914,100 908,058 912,403 428,659 483,223 390,308 426,829 473,350 500,046
831,545 935,354 882,502 911,298 924,183 975,076 994,013 1,120,421 1,164,215 1,089,036
10,877,934 11,353,720 11,597,703 12,378,093 12,380,445 12,783,990 13,654,059 13,322,398 14,418,594 14,703,417
$ 28,291,481 $ 29,504,197 $ 30,007,634 $ 30,700,848 $ 31,671,855 $ 34,267,618 $ 34,730,735 $ 36,558,881 $ 36,743,294 $ 36,909,186

(Continued)



(Continued)
Program Revenues

Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic developmen
General government
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contribution:
Total governmental activities program revenue

Business-type activities

Charges for services:

Water pollution control

Transfer station

Refuse collection

Airport

Parking

Transit

Golf course

Boat harbor

Marina

Cable Televisior

Ambulance

Public housing

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contribution:
Total business-type activities program revenue

Total primary government program revenue:

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activitie

Total primary government net expenst

Fical Year

2003/2004 2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013
$ 310762 $ 356703 S 306954 $ 383518 § 421978 $ 438932 S 339786 $ 530,879 $ 1230430 $ 1,137,537
143,089 179,104 141,803 140,649 151,785 319,112 231,564 262,393 634,870 224,263
537,726 599,761 577,257 616,982 598,707 494,131 448271 478,394 545,297 488,456
349,250 372,703 407,977 398,479 405,832 358,812 480,137 430,574 426,917 456,674
307,054 324,733 432,880 382,812 410,042 473,567 506,364 545,322 529,471 747,062
4,271,667 4,617,475 4,805,002 4,263,038 4,229,961 4,736,388 5,211,201 4,861,170 4,915,000 4,922,364
2,544,051 894,158 1,733,592 2,018,077 963,114 108,213 1,726,091 3,398,652 1,398,288 767,392
3,463,590 7,344,637 3,405,465 3,203,555 7.181,419 6,029,155 3,043,414 10,507,384 9,680,273 3,743,748
3,537,974 3,612,206 3,745,884 3,854,728 4,259,343 4,518,700 4,627,301 4,748,558 4,947,231 5,399,757
1,750,444 1,898,293 1,767,744 1,893,083 2,090,391 1,498,300 1,822,105 1,806,445 1,958,817 1,850,428
1,257,199 1,261,040 1,312,208 1,364,809 1,462,820 1,555,388 1,905,643 1,961,389 2,110,442 2,137,772
43,639 46,086 43,564 47,351 41,023 39,523 37,647 37,833 42,124 69,136
171,614 161,344 188,146 178,128 204,733 194,821 176,103 175,691 182,220 177,415
86,731 90,457 106,144 129,429 183,586 185,653 175,505 169,004 177,055 179,622
412,069 402,214 402,832 532,104 719,281 764,679 821,005 773,938 874,501 740,694
19,552 18,745 21,782 26,022 23,899 23,359 29,104 27,338 39,814 28,665
7,129 5,200 26,616 22,494 10,721 6,599 19,623 13,473 18,757 13,079

236,479 - - - - - - - - -
792,432 850,406 735,295 817,532 968,157 1,048,722 1,038,306 1,360,650 1,167,042 1,351,714
373,202 362,487 367,010 382,556 424,905 420,104 557,631 444,151 542,721 475,486
594,674 551,160 619,692 674,031 1,017,826 1,008,488 961,896 924,856 659,185 820,150
364,601 296,941 642,818 324,539 353,324 1,317,819 919,232 349,116 661,419 561,426
9,647,739 9,556,579 9,979,735 10,246,306 11,760,000 12,582,155 13,091,101 12,792,442 13,381,328 13,805,344
$ 18,111,338 $ 16901216  $ 18385200  $ 18,450,361 $ 18041428  $ 19,511,310  $ 22,034,515  $ 23,299.826  $ 23,061,601 $ 22,549,092
$ (8,949,948)  $(10,805,840)  $(10,004,466)  $(10,119200)  $(12,109,991)  $(14,554,473)  $(12,133,262)  $(12,729,099)  $(12,644,427)  $(13,462,021)
(1,230,195) (1,797,141) (1,617,968) (2,131,287) (620,436) (201,835) (562,958) (529,956) (1,037,266) (898,073)
$(10,180,143)  $(12,602,981)  $(11,622,434)  $(12.250487)  $(12,730427)  $(14,756,308)  $(12,696220)  $(13,259,055)  $(13,681,693)  $(14,360,094)

(Continued)



(Continued)

General Revenues and Other Changes in

Net Position
Governmental activities:
Taxes
Property taxes
Utility taxes
Local option sales tax
Hotel/motel taxes
Cable franchise taxes
Utility franchise taxe:
Intergovernmental, unrestrictec
Unrestricted investment incom¢
Gain on sale of capital assets
Contributions to endowments
Transfers
Total governmental activitie

Business-type activities
Unrestricted investment incom
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers

Total business-type activitie

Total primary governmen

Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities
Business-type activitie

Total primary governmen

Fical Year

2003/2004 2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013
$ 9,983,521 $ 10,242,610  $ 10,916,665  $ 11,763,138  $ 12,141,875  $ 12,040,376  $ 12,114,066 S 12,478438  $ 12,861,006  $ 13,117,510
67,339 63,638 59,209 63,986 67,703 64,358 63,449 52,274 58,048 57,576
2,210,111 1,938,370 2,290,018 2,589,592 2,688,049 2,864,582 2,471,108 2,533,919 2,543,654 2,567,849
310,798 327,575 306,075 338,818 366,261 344,354 302,273 363,664 347,771 335,701
- 238,788 245,132 242,164 239,812 239,039 236,192 236,253 225,902 222,288
- - - - - - - 227,680 170,225 103,931
129,974 64,870 61,834 99,002 150,424 149,913 151,270 154,551 156,229 150,031
111,595 203,275 337,227 455,562 399,317 267,227 45,999 22,297 16,177 13,582
4,187 - 248,667 - - - - - - -
8,100 4,500 8,820 8,735 7,980 6,620 5,550 7,850 6,373 6,958
(993,773) (2,185,755) (4,991,391) (2,630,548) (2,911,195) (3,548,221) (4,340,227) (4,528,370) (1,144,303) (3,392,510)
11,831,852 10,897,871 9,482,256 12,930,449 13,150,226 12,428,248 11,049,630 11,548,556 15,041,082 13,182,916
78,901 130,688 230,168 317,561 256,849 182,286 43,652 24,232 17,875 9,379
3,108 2,253 - 4348 - - - 11,216 - 19,874
993,773 2,185,755 4,991,391 2,630,548 2,911,195 3,548,221 4,340,227 4,528,370 1,144,303 3,392,510
1,075,782 2,318,696 5,221,559 2,952,457 3,168,044 3,730,507 1,383,879 1,563,318 1,162,178 3,421,763
$ 12,907,634 $ 13216,567  $ 14,703,815  $ 15882906  $ 16318270  § 16,158,755  $ 15433,559  $ 16,112374  $ 16403260  $ 16,604,679
$ 2881904 $ 92031 $ (522210) $ 2,811,249 $ 1040235  $ (2,126225) S (1,083,582) $ (1,180,543) $ 2596,655 $ (279,105)
(154,413) 521,555 3,603,591 821,170 2,547,608 3,528,672 3,820,921 4,033,862 124,912 2,523,690
$ 2,727,491 $ 613,586 S 3,081,381 $ 3632419 $ 3587843 $ 1402447 S 2737339 S 2853319 § 2721,567 $ 2,244,585




General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendable
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All other governmental funds

Reserved

Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Nonspendable

Restricted

Unassigned

Total all other governmental funds

City of Muscatine, lowa
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 3

(Unaudited)

2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 (1) 2011/12 2012/13
$ 36,674 $ 27,589 $ 27,156 $ 65,640 $ 11,833 $ 119,222 $ 155,132 $ - $ - $ -
1,877,669 1,697,668 1,715,921 1,670,285 1,733,810 1,641,489 1,720,635 - - -

- - - - - - - 15,637 5,221 88,328

- - - - - - - 382,877 256,263 506,407

- - - - - - - 2,141,534 3,319,319 3,073,412

$ 1,914,343 $ 1,725,257 $ 1,743,077 $ 1,735,925 $ 1,745,643 $ 1,760,711 $ 1,875,767 $ 2,540,048 $ 3,580,803 $ 3,668,147
$ 1,847,902 $ 3,534,473 $ 2,111,183 $ 2,675,724 $ 4,162,323 $ 2,349,556 $ 3,659,652 $ - $ - $ -
6,872,499 3,202,064 6,292,089 6,965,479 8,589,873 7,606,228 7,026,552 - - -
510,981 184,922 (460,420) (688,952) (4,856) (1,564,725) (565,270) - - -

- - - - - - - 2,437,508 1,314,714 1,226,852

- - - - - - - 4,062,133 7,651,467 5,632,650

- - - - - - - (1,538,918) (232,181) (208,308)

$ 9,231,382 $ 6,921,459 $ 7,942,852 $ 8,952,251 $ 12,747,340 $ 8,391,059 $ 10,120,934 $ 4,960,723 $ 8,734,000 $ 6,651,194

1. In2010/2011 the City implemented GASB Statement 54. Under this Statement several former special revenue funds were
re-classified and are now considered part of the City's general fund. This Statement also provided for new classifications of

governmental fund balances: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.



Changes of Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

City of Muscatine, Iowa

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 4

(Unaudited)
2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/2012 2012/2013
Revenues
Taxes $ 12,571,769 $ 12,810,981 $ 13,817,099 $ 14,997,698 $ 15,503,700 15,484,709 $ 15,235,088 $ 15,792,228 $ 16,318,451 $ 16,361,663
Licenses and permits 312,573 301,322 332,378 324,913 319,931 324,492 285,956 271,372 308,385 390,491
Fines and forfeitures 143,730 149,785 126,720 144,427 203,136 177,324 183,714 393,340 1,029,833 895,789
Intergovernmental 4,391,299 4,613,775 5,695,585 5,170,180 4,247,598 4,830,706 6,461,868 6,031,516 6,449,297 4,967,887
Charges for services 390,484 478,454 416,045 418,119 437,472 480,659 449,346 444,456 556,802 527,813
Use of money and property 270,222 354,965 532,674 654,064 620,396 453,027 232,725 205,724 226,243 207,593
Special assessments 8,751 6,882 5,926 3,764 - - - - - -
Other 2,890,469 1,695,158 1,472,920 1,488,012 1,201,473 1,174,617 1,112,327 1,249,691 1,526,397 1,308,325
Total revenues 20,979,297 20,411,322 22,399,347 23,201,177 22,533,706 22,925,534 23,961,024 24,388,327 26,415,408 24,659,561
Expenditures
Public safety 5,237,847 5,397,682 5,743,778 6,122,631 6,704,267 6,887,993 6,687,695 6,818,872 7,414,924 7,703,992
Public works 1,399,487 1,487,544 1,553,652 1,640,026 1,821,559 2,021,234 2,017,868 2,092,212 1,998,400 1,829,551
Health and social services 16,560 15,700 16,660 26,700 16,660 16,660 17,100 17,800 17,800 20,000
Culture and recreation 2,233,786 2,366,457 2,445,399 2,513,499 2,632,617 2,708,935 2,823,824 2,815,312 2,834,621 2,784,267
Community and economic development 2,800,999 2,388,844 2,076,963 2,271,322 2,548,056 2,646,867 2,889,973 3,003,602 3,109,089 3,120,334
General government 1,564,697 1,594,378 1,754,878 1,754,039 1,803,850 1,869,708 1,846,437 1,936,768 1,981,756 2,049,017
Capital outlay 6,881,185 5,709,323 4,300,157 3,611,445 4,127,296 5,629,604 7,539,211 5,162,510 5,648,873 3,655,151
Debt service:
Principal 1,681,018 1,377,790 1,397,975 1,343,176 1,361,385 1,520,837 1,620,615 1,977,932 1,675,000 2,735,000
Interest 395,867 418,977 370,960 431,653 378,304 475,087 422,906 579,145 508,615 508,706
Paying agent 2,582 2,400 2,500 2,800 2,800 1,600 1,800 2,250 2,700 2,800
Bond issuance costs - - - - 6,962 - - - 28,329 15,021
Total expenditures 22,214,028 20,759,095 19,662,922 19,717,291 21,403,756 23,778,525 25,867,429 24,406,403 25,220,107 24,423,839
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,234,731) (347,773) 2,736,425 3,483,886 1,129,950 (852,991) (1,906,405) (18,076) 1,195,301 235,722
Other financing sources (uses)
General obligation bonds issued - - 2,990,000 - 5,120,000 - 7,425,000 - 4,496,400 -
General obligation bond premium (discount) - - (15,548) - 2,655 - 21,741 - - -
Refunding bonds issued 1,714,384 - - - 218,600 1,115,000
Refunding bond premium 2,220 - - - - -
Payment of refunded bonds - - - - (1,680,000) - - - - -
Tax increment revenue bonds issued 2,305,000 - - - - - - - - -
Proceeds from capital lease - - - - - - - - - -
Sale of capital assets - - 275,840 - - - - - - -
Insurance recoveries - - - 103,514 379,589 - - - - -
Transfers in 5,284,115 5,074,263 4,905,672 5,783,805 6,431,380 5,819,738 6,377,061 6,585,087 7,139,163 7,029,778
Transfers out (6,235,052) (7,225,499) (9,853,176) (8,368,958) (9,295,371) (9,307,960) (10,072,466) (11,062,941) (8,235,432) (10,375,962)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,354,063 (2,151,236) (1,697,212) (2,481,639) 2,674,857 (3,488,222) 3,751,336 (4,477,854) 3,618,731 (2,231,184)
Net change in fund balances $ 119,332 $ (2,499,009) $ 1,039,213 $ 1,002,247 $ 3,804,807 (4,341,213) $ 1,844,931 $  (4,495,930) $ 4,814,032 $  (1,995,462)
Debt service as a percentage of
non-capital expenditures 12.4% 10.8% 10.5% 10.6% 9.6% 9.8% 9.9% 11.6% 10.5% 15.1%



City of Muscatine, Iowa
Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Schedule 5

(Unaudited)

General Incremental Utility Mobile Cable Utility

Property Property Tax Excise Home Hotel/Motel Franchise Franchise Local Option
Fiscal Year Tax (TIF Districts) Tax Tax Tax Tax (1) Tax (2) Sales Tax Total
2003/2004 $ 9,176,000 § 789,101 $§ 67,339 § 18,420 $§ 310,798 $ - $ - § 2,210,111 $ 12,571,769
2004/2005 9,233,886 990,224 63,638 18,500 327,575 238,788 - 1,938,370 12,810,981
2005/2006 9,841,238 1,056,387 59,209 19,040 306,075 245,132 - 2,290,018 13,817,099
2006/2007 10,737,977 1,004,423 63,986 20,738 338,818 242,164 - 2,589,592 14,997,698
2007/2008 11,131,690 990,255 67,703 19,930 366,261 239,812 - 2,688,049 15,503,700
2008/2009 11,350,093 671,050 64,358 19,233 344,354 239,039 - 2,796,582 15,484,709
2009/2010 11,332,799 763,184 63,449 18,083 302,273 236,192 - 2,519,108 15,235,088
201072011 11,689,172 771,639 52,274 17,627 363,664 236,253 227,680 2,433,919 15,792,228
2011/2012 12,031,835 810,293 58,049 18,878 347,771 225,902 170,225 2,655,498 16,318,451
2012/2013 12,260,308 837,307 57,576 19,895 335,701 222,288 103,931 2,524,657 16,361,663
Change 2003/2004 to 2012/2013 33.6% 6.1% -14.5% 8.0% 8.0% - - 14.2% 30.1%

1. Cable franchise tax revenue was accounted for in an enterprise fund through 2003/2004; beginning in 2004/2005 this revenue is

accounted for in the General Fund.

2. A Utiltiy Franchise Fee on the provider of natural gas services was implemented in 2010/2011 at the rate of 2%. This rate was
reduced to 1% for the 2012/2013 budget.



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Taxable Value and Estimated Actual Value of Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 6

(Unaudited)
Total Direct Taxable Value
Tax Less: Total Tax Rate Estimated as a Percentage
Collection Residential Commercial Industrial Railroads and Military Taxable (per $1,000 of Actual of Estimated
Year Property Property Property Utilities Exemption Value Valuation) Value Actual Value
2003/2004 $314,511,010 $179,354,859 $114,983,487 § 7,163,614 $§ 2,679,844 $613,333,126 $ 14.84914 § 914,556,777 67.1%
2004/2005 304,751,605 181,561,051 114,149,216 6,486,449 2,547,347 604,400,974 15.14549 935,583,731 64.6%
2005/2006 309,991,311 196,029,944 116,742,479 7,311,377 2,455,752 627,619,359 15.51344 969,948,931 64.7%
2006/2007 332,674,470 203,766,173 122,163,719 7,712,376 2,382,598 663,934,140 16.03891 1,063,565,913 62.4%
2007/2008 336,495,971 211,504,406 115,798,968 6,652,746 2,376,768 668,075,323 16.52992 1,076,411,985 62.1%
2008/2009 339,854,784 233,055,584 121,374,018 6,926,265 2,278,038 698,932,613 16.15095 1,136,242,003 61.5%
2009/2010 357,670,553 238,025,912 124,706,905 7,312,791 2,215,335 725,500,826 15.55353 1,157,482,324 62.7%
2010/2011 372,746,348 239,793,310 119,283,095 7,233,428 2,126,455 736,929,726 15.77146 1,163,419,885 63.3%
2011/2012 397,168,357 235,275,621 118,497,883 7,339,282 2,070,643 756,210,500 15.77146 1,182,251,155 64.0%
2012/2013 418,570,988 236,549,608 117,483,923 7,085,446 2,001,533 777,688,432 15.67209 1,187,559,428 65.5%

Source: Muscatine County Auditor's Office



Fiscal Year

2003/2004
2004/2005
2005/2006
2006/2007
2007/2008
2008/2009
2009/2010
2010/2011
2011/2012
2012/2013

Notes - Per State statutes maximum tax rates apply to the General Fund, Transit, Levee and Emergency levies. The City has been at the maximum
rate of $8.10 for the General Fund, and $.0675 for the Levee as shown above. A maximum rate of $.95 applies to the Transit tax and a maximum rate

City of Muscatine, Iowa
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rate
(Rates per $1,000 of Valuation)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 7

(Unaudited)
City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates
School Districts Totals by School District
General Employee Debt Tort Emergency Total County Muscatine  Louisa-Muscatine Muscatine Louisa-Muscatine
Fund Benefit Service Transit Liability Levee Emergency Management! Direct Rate Consolidated Community Community Community Community
$8.10000 $3.04167 $2.82657 $0.24223 $0.30117 $0.06750 $0.27000 $ - $14.84914 $ 7.58716 $15.51555 $ 13.86347 $37.95185 $ 36.29977
8.10000 3.22143 2.81627 0.35191 0.31838 0.06750 0.27000 - 15.14549 7.41669 16.28523 15.76815 38.84741 38.33033
8.10000 3.26353 3.09837 0.35615 0.35789 0.06750 0.27000 - 15.51344 7.73543 15.55390 15.89643 38.80277 39.14530
8.10000 4.07275 2.93250 0.21753 0.37863 0.06750 0.27000 - 16.03891 8.44031 14.70326 14.85256 39.18248 39.33178
8.10000 4.46685 2.78130 0.49418 0.35009 0.06750 0.27000 - 16.52992 8.79042 15.15328 14.95807 40.47362 40.27841
8.10000 4.07576 2.95759 0.22751 0.31040 0.06750 0.27000 0.14219 16.15095 8.64189 14.86671 15.03328 39.65955 39.82612
8.10000 3.55524 2.90101 0.31516 0.34462 0.06750 0.27000 - 15.55353 9.18309 14.90569 13.78199 39.64231 38.51861
8.10000 3.79446 3.14336 0.24310 0.34304 0.06750 0.08000 - 15.77146 9.60976 14.90920 14.08973 40.29042 39.47095
8.10000 4.06191 2.85051 0.39489 0.29665 0.06750 - - 15.77146 9.51343 15.36192 13.78625 40.64681 39.07114
8.10000 3.87206 2.90388 0.40950 0.31915 0.06750 - - 15.67209 9.12600 15.35345 11.97595 40.15154 36.77404

of $.27 applies to the Emergency tax; the City's Transit & Emergency levies are less than the maximum allowed.

Source: Muscatine County Auditor's Office



City of Muscatine, lowa
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
(Unaudited)

January 1, 2011 Valuation (for 2012/2013 Tax Levy)

Schedule 8

January 1, 2002 Valuation (for 2003/2004 Tax Levy)

Percent of Percent of
Assessed Total Assessed Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpaver Valuation Rank Value Valuation Rank Value
Grain Processing/Kent Feeds $ 39,472,650 1 5.1% $ 37,559,680 2 6.1%
HNI Corporation (HON 33,540,660 2 4.3% 43,673,330 1 7.1%
Industries/HON Financial)
Heinz, U.S.A. 11,932,400 3 1.5% 10,259,450 4 1.7%
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 10,202,870 4 1.3% 8,956,790 5 1.5%
Menard Inc. 9,704,700 5 1.2%
Bridgestone Bandag LLC / 8,552,610 6 1.1% 16,820,840 3 2.7%
Bandag, Inc.
Sodarak Properties, LLC 7,915,050 7 1.0%
(Property formerly owned by
Riverbend Leasing, LLC)
GRIDCO, LLC 7,611,700 8 1.0%
Davenport Farm & Fleet, Inc. 7,003,000 9 0.9% 6,785,350 6 1.1%
(Blain's Farm & Fleet)
Cobblestone Apartments 6,789,960 10 0.9%
LBM Storage, LLC (Portion 6,452,580 11 0.8%
of this property formerly owned
by Warehouse Distributing, LLC)
First National Bank of Muscatine 6,179,360 12 0.8% 4,261,670 13 0.7%
Central State Bank 5,945,150 13 0.8% 5,314,880 11 0.9%
Hy-Vee Inc. 5,871,930 14 0.8% 5,896,680 9 1.0%
BT Prime Mover 5,724,810 15 0.7% 6,037,150 7 1.0%
WID, Inc. 5,435,250 16 0.7%
Muscatine Downtown Investors 5,425,770 17 0.7%
SECO Investment Co. (Stanley 5,264,280 18 0.7% 5,845,690 10 1.0%
Engineering Co.)
Cottonwood Apartments LLC 4,902,790 19 0.6%
Muscatine Mall Associates LLP 4,210,010 20 0.5% 5,911,740 8 1.0%
TID, LLC (CAM 1II) 4,491,240 12 0.7%
(Warehousing)
Pretium Packaging 3,181,540 14 0.5%
$ 25.4% $ 164,996,030 27.0%

Source: Muscatine County Auditor's Office

198,137,530




Schedule 9

City of Muscatine, Iowa
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy
Taxes Levied Percent of Delinquent Tax Total Tax Ratio of Total Tax
for the Levy Collections Collections Collections to Total
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount (1) Collected (3) (2) (2) Tax Levy (3)
2003/2004 $9,180,577 $ 9,170,392 99.89% $ 5,608 $§ 9,176,000 99.95%
2004/2005 9,239,618 9,229,567 99.89% 4,319 9,233,886 99.94%
2005/2006 9,837,794 9,836,626 99.99% 4,612 9,841,238 100.04%
2006/2007 10,736,626 10,733,950 99.98% 4,027 10,737,977 100.01%
2007/2008 11,122,293 11,122,888 100.01% 8,802 11,131,690 100.08%
2008/2009 11,348,069 11,345,388 99.98% 4,705 11,350,093 100.02%
2009/2010 11,350,546 11,325,483 99.78% 7,316 11,332,799 99.84%
2010/2011 11,692,917 11,681,035 99.90% 8,138 11,689,173 99.97%
2011/2012 11,993,253 12,001,729 100.07% 30,106 12,031,835 100.32%
2012/2013 12,258,743 12,258,496 100.00% 1,812 12,260,308 100.01%

1. Current tax collections reflect payments received by the Muscatine County Treasurer's office from July 1 through June 30 of each year.
Taxes levied for the current year are classified as delinquent if not paid by June 30 each year.

2. Delinquent tax collections reflect the amounts of delinquent taxes the City received during the year. Information is not available from
the County Treasurer's Office as to the year(s) for which the delinquent tax collections apply.

3. Collection percentages are close to 100% each year since the State of Iowa provides for "tax sales" in June of each year for properties
with unpaid taxes. Substantially all of the taxes are paid by investors purchasing tax certificates from the "tax sales". Collections
in excess of 100% are due to rounding differences when tax rates are applied to property valuations, differences in tax credits reimbursed
by the State of Iowa, or changes in taxable valuations by the County Assessor after the City's budget is certified.



Schedule 10
City of Muscatine, lowa
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
General Tax General State Total Percentage
Obligation Increment Capital Obligation Revolving Primary of Personal Per
Fiscal Year Bonds Bonds Lease Bonds Fund Loan Government Income (1) Capita (1)
2003/2004 $ 6,735,741 $ 3,505,000 $ 12,039 $ 8315054 $ - § 18,567,834 2.8% § 818
2004/2005 5,621,770 3,245,000 9,249 7,443,616 - 16,319,635 2.3% 719
2005/2006 7,467,253 2,980,000 6,273 6,547,178 - 17,000,704 2.3% 749
2006/2007 6,409,835 2,700,000 3,097 5,605,740 - 14,718,672 1.9% 648
2007/2008 10,462,294 2,415,000 - 4,587,029 606,783 18,071,106 2.2% 796
2008/2009 9,254,498 2,115,000 - 3,554,215 3,598,195 18,521,908 2.2% 816
2009/2010 15,452,533 1,805,000 - 2,897,277 13,289,062 33,443,872 4.2% 1,473
2010/2011 13,953,147 1,330,000 - 2,197,656 15,609,360 33,090,163 4.0% 1,446
2011/2012 17,177,089 1,140,000 - 1,490,103 15,479,565 35,286,757 4.0% 1,542
2012/2013 15,658,732 1,035,000 - 800,955 14,873,000 32,367,687 N/A 1,359

Note - Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statement

1. See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics (Table14) for personal income and population datz



Schedule 11
City of Muscatine, lowa
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Estimated
General Actual Percentage
Obligation Value of of Actual Per
Fiscal Year Bonds Property (1) Valuation Population (2) Capita
2003/2004 $ 15,050,795 § 914,556,777 1.6% 22,697 $ 663
2004/2005 13,065,386 935,583,731 1.4% 22,697 576
2005/2006 14,014,431 969,948,931 1.4% 22,697 617
2006/2007 12,015,575 1,063,565,913 1.1% 22,697 529
2007/2008 15,049,323 1,076,411,985 1.4% 22,697 663
2008/2009 12,808,713 1,136,242,003 1.1% 22,697 564
2009/2010 18,349,810 1,157,482,324 1.6% 22,697 808
2010/2011 16,150,803 1,163,419,885 1.4% 22,886 706
2011/2012 18,667,192 1,182,251,155 1.6% 22,886 816
2012/2013 16,459,687 1,187,559,428 1.4% 23,819 691

Note - Net position restricted for debt service is restricted for future interest payments. Further details regarding the
City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Sources:
1. Muscatine County Auditor's Office
2. United States Census Bureau. The 2012/2013 population increase reflects the added population from areas
annexed into the City in 2012 and 2013.



City of Muscatine, lowa

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes

Muscatine County
Eastern lTowa Community College (EICC)

Other debt

Eastern lTowa Community College (EICC)
Subtotal, overlapping debt
City direct debt (2)

Total direct and overlapping debt

Schedule 12

As of June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)
Estimated Estimated Share

Percent of Direct and
Debt Applicable Overlapping

Qutstanding to City (1) Debt
$ 12,800,000 45.66% $ 5,844,480
24,450,000 6.29% 1,537,905
38,395,000 6.29% 2,415,046
$ 9,797,431
100.00% 16,693,732
$ 26,491,163

1. The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the other governmental unit's taxable
assessed value that is within the City of Muscatine's boundaries and dividing it by each governmental
unit's total taxable value. These estimates were used for both debt to be repaid with property taxes as
well as debt for the EICC to be repaid from sources other than property tax.

2. Excludes general obligation bonds reported in business-type activities.

Sources:
Muscatine County Auditor's Office
Eastern JTowa Community College

Note - Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of
the City of Muscatine. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of Muscatine. This process recognizes that,
when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the
residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer

is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each overlapping government.



Debt limit (1)
Total debt applicable to limit
Legal debt margin

Total debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

City of Muscatine, lowa
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 13

(Unaudited)
2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
$45,727,839 $46,779,187 $48,497,447 $53,178,296 $53,820,599 $56,812,100 $ 57,874,116 58,170,994 60,567,395 $ 60,902,264
18,997,039 16,704,249 17,356,273 15,028,097 17,770,000 15,170,000 20,275,000 17,555,000 19,845,000 17,450,000
$26,730,800 $30,074,938 $31,141,174 $38,150,199 $36,050,599 $41,642,100 $ 37,599,116 40,615,994 40,722,395 $ 43,452,264
41.54% 35.71% 35.79% 28.26% 33.02% 26.70% 35.03% 30.18% 32.77% 28.65%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2012/2013
Total assessed valuation as of January 1, 2011
Debt limit - 5% of assessed valuation
Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:
General obligation bonds
Tax increment revenue bonds

Total debt applicable to debt limit

Legal debt margin

1. Under state law the City's debt may not exceed 5% of the total actual valuation of property.

$1,218,045,274

$ 60,902,264
$ 16,415,000
1,035,000
17,450,000

$ 43452264



Schedule 14
City of Muscatine, Iowa
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Personal Percent High
Popula- Personal Per Capita Median School Graduates School Unemploy-
tion Income Income Age or Higher Enrollment ment Rate
Fiscal Year (€] 2) 2) (@) (€] 3 “

2003/2004 22,697 $658,167,606 $ 28,998 35.8 80.3% 5,375 4.2%
2004/2005 22,697 715,817,986 31,538 35.8 80.3% 5,280 4.5%
2005/2006 22,697 730,820,703 32,199 35.8 80.3% 5,305 4.2%
2006/2007 22,697 778,575,191 34,303 35.8 80.3% 5,387 32%
2007/2008 22,697 819,180,124 36,092 35.8 80.3% 5,403 3.5%
2008/2009 22,697 834,886,448 36,784 35.8 80.3% 5,247 4.6%
2009/2010 22,697 804,449,771 35,443 35.8 80.3% 5,395 8.1%
2010/2011 22,886 826,184,600 36,100 382 85.2% 5,293 7.6%
2011/2012 22,886 872,048,144 38,104 382 85.2% 5,305 6.4%
2012/2013 23,819 N/A N/A 382 85.2% 5,300 5.5%

Sources:

1. United States Census Bureau. The 2012/2013 population increase reflects the added population from areas annexed
into the City in 2012 and 2013.

2. Bureau of Economic Analysis. Per capita income for the City of Muscatine is not available. The amounts shown are for
Muscatine County and reflect average per capita income for the calendar years which end midway through the fiscal
years shown. Personal income for the City has been estimated using the per capita income for Muscatine County multiplied
by the City's population. Personal income information is not yet available for 2012.

3. Muscatine Community School District

4. Iowa Workforce Development. Unemployment rates for the City of Muscatine are not available. The rates shown are rates for
Muscatine County and reflect average annual unemployment for the calendar years which end midway through the fiscal
years shown.



Schedule 15
City of Muscatine, lowa

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
(Unaudited)
2013 2004
Percentage of Percentage of
Approximate Estimated Approximate Estimated
Number of Total County Number of Total County

Employer Employees (1) Rank Employment (2) Employees (1) Rank Employment (2)
HNI Corporation//The HON Company, 3,400 1 15.1% 3,000 1 13.4%

Allsteel
Grain Processing/Kent Feeds 900 2 4.0% 1,268 2 5.7%
Muscatine Community School

District 844 3 3.7% 1,100 3 4.9%
Trinity Muscatine 534 4 2.4% 496 6 22%

(Formerly Unity Health Care)
Musco Sports Lighting 400 5 1.8% 204 14 0.9%
Monsanto Company 395 6 1.8% 480 7 2.1%
Hy-Vee Food Store 358 7 1.6% 345 9 1.5%
Wal-Mart Superstore 337 8 1.5% 373 8 1.7%
Heinz, U.S.A. 295 9 1.3% 762 4 3.4%
Muscatine Power & Water 285 10 1.3% 306 10 1.4%
SECO Investment Co. (Stanley

Engineering Co.) 265 11 1.2% 257 11 1.1%
Raymond-Muscatine, Inc. 265 12 1.2% 210 13 0.9%

(Previously BT Prime Mover)
City of Muscatine 225 13 1.0% 231 12 1.0%
Muscatine County 203 14 0.9% 197 15 0.9%
Bridgestone Bandag LLC 200 15 0.9% 550 5 2.5%

(Formerly Bandag, Inc.)

8,906 39.7% 9,779 43.6%

Sources:

1. Muscatine Chamber of Commerce & Industry provided the 2013 employment figures. The 2004 figures were from City of Muscatine
historical records and may be on a basis which differs from the data provided by the Muscatine Chamber of Commerce & Industry.

2. Iowa Workforce Development. Employment data for the City of Muscatine is not available. Employers listed are the largest in the
immediate area of the City of Muscatine. Percentages shown are based on total employment in Muscatine County. The average
monthly employment in Muscatine County was 22,569 in 2013 and 22,400 in 2004.



City of Muscatine, Iowa
Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Function
(Excludes Seasonal Employees)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 16

(Unaudited)
Function 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013
General government 17.12 16.80 17.50 17.85 17.35 17.35 17.05 16.00 16.00 16.00
Public Safety:
Police
Officers (1) 37.00 37.75 38.00 38.00 38.00 39.00 40.00 39.00 41.00 42.00
Civilians (2) 13.50 4.87 3.60 3.75 3.88 3.88 3.88 3.88 3.88 3.88
Fire
Firefighters and officers (3) 29.50 28.50 29.00 29.50 36.00 36.00 36.00 36.00 36.00 37.00
Civilians 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Culture and recreation
Library 15.58 15.75 15.75 15.75 15.75 15.75 15.93 1591 15.74 15.51
Art center 4.30 4.43 433 433 433 4.34 4.04 4.57 4.54 4.25
Parks and recreation 13.75 13.25 12.82 13.00 12.75 12.75 12.75 11.83 11.75 11.75
Community and economic
development (4) 9.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 6.50 6.50 6.17 6.67 6.72 6.92
Public works 16.75 16.75 16.75 16.74 16.84 16.50 16.51 16.51 16.51 16.51
Business-type:
Parking 3.65 3.65 3.65 3.60 3.60 3.10 3.10 3.10 3.10 3.10
Golf course (5) 3.00 3.00 2.75 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Boat harbor 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
Transit 2.83 2.83 2.83 2.83 3.03 3.03 3.03 3.03 3.03 3.03
Refuse collection 9.80 9.80 9.80 9.80 10.30 10.30 11.33 10.45 10.66 10.66
Landfill 0.83 0.83 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.30 0.25 0.25
Transfer station 3.17 3.17 3.67 3.67 3.67 3.67 3.67 3.58 3.42 3.42
Water pollution control 29.75 29.50 29.50 29.50 29.70 31.00 30.33 29.61 29.61 29.61
Ambulance (6) 7.75 8.75 8.25 7.75 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25
Housing 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.75 12.50 12.13 12.25
Equipment services 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Totals (7) 232.53 221.88 220.78 220.65 221.53 223.00 223.87 221.94 223.34 225.14

7.

. Police officer positions fluctuated primarily due to grant funding for special police programs.

. Police civilian positions were reduced by 9.5 equivalent positions when the City's dispatch center was combined with the Muscatine County dispatch operation in 2004/2005.
. Firefighter positions were allocated to the Ambulance operation through 2006/2007. This number fluctuated each year. Beginning in 2007/2008 all firefighter positions

are being charged to the Fire Department budget with a portion of the overall personnel costs allocated to the Ambulance Fund.
. Staffing in the Community Development department was reduced due to the decline in General Fund revenues.
. The City changed from a contractual arrangement with a Golf Professional to having a Golf Pro on staff beginning in 2007/2008.
. The City began providing ambulance service July 1, 2000 adding 6 equivalent positions. Beginning in 2007/2008 all firefighter positions are being charged to the Fire
Department budget with a portion of the overall personnel costs allocated to the Ambulance Fund.

Source: City of Muscatine records

The overall decline in positions between 2003/2004 and 2004/2005 was due to the decline in revenues to provide General Fund services.



City of Muscatine, Iowa

Operating Indicators by Function/Department

Last Ten Calendar or Fiscal Year:

Schedule 17

(Unaudited)
Calendar Year Indicatory
Function/Department 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Public Safety
Police
Calls for service 26,555 24,590 21,638 20,427 21,437 20,066 22,011 18,667 20,312 22,795
Traffic enforcemen 5,535 4,946 4,020 5,188 4,616 3,425 4,066 3,406 3,247 3,840
Arrests 2,229 2,068 1,971 2,062 2,114 2,195 2,111 1,827 1,885 1,916
Parking tickets issuec 2,037 2,122 1,852 1,764 1,710 1,721 1,438 1,280 1,329 1,607
Fire (includes ambulance)
Calls for service 3,143 3,085 3,161 2,963 3,530 3,650 3,414 3,711 3,916 3,864
Culture and recreation
Parks and recreatio
Weed Park Pool/Aquati
Center attendance (1)(4 - 46,576 55,948 45,891 41,076 46,649 33,462 39,813 41,620 43,810
Adult program participants (2 1,075 1,006 272 328 376 408 499 532 634 817
Children's program participan 1,333 1,558 1,698 1,547 1,602 1,610 1,590 2,006 2,066 2,274
Cemetery burials (5 126 111 99 104 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Community and economic developmen
Building-related permit 1,150 1,231 1,063 969 1,195 915 902 925 1,021 1,016
Business-type
Golf course
Rounds playec 35,989 32,768 33,195 31,825 29,748 32,687 34,767 33,374 31,491 34,036
Fiscal Year Indicators
Function/Department 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Culture and recreation
Library
Registered borrower: 19,910 20,756 22,298 20,315 16,504 16,415 17,671 17,512 18,639 19,877
Circulatior 312,623 331,445 324,179 319,446 332,355 336,210 357,897 311,425 355,993 381,942
Art centel
Attendance 18,451 17,945 18,088 15,640 22,582 19,704 26,054 27,522 29,552 23,070
Cemetery burials (5 N/A N/A N/A 95 110 96 97 121 112 77
Public works
Miles of streets maintainec 138 139 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 140
Business-type activities
Transit
Total passenger: 131,117 136,476 136,265 151,434 180,382 188,303 172,306 172,580 188,277 175,548
Parking (3’
Tickets issued 15,763 14,764 15,598 15,764 13,204 9,704 8,465 8,684 11,212 11,499
Refuse collectior
Tons of refuse collectec 8,521 8,888 9,449 9,482 8,731 8,129 8,391 8,180 7,765 7,957
Tons recycled (curbside) (6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 294 1,284 1,327
Transfer statior
Tons of waste processe 41,435 44,423 41,356 44,883 49,263 41,320 29,915 31,492 32,004 32,896
Tons recycled (contractor 4,734 4,854 5,721 6,215 5,830 5,388 4,993 4,609 4,886 4,590
Water pollution contro
Cubic feet of wastewate
treated (in millions’ 187.47 183.18 173.38 208.26 279.03 289.79 301.01 314.76 201.15 224.80

S

parking tickets issued decreased significantly with this chang

Source: City of Muscatine record

. Weed Park Aquatic Center attendance varies with summer temperatures and rain da
Cemetery burials were reported on a calendar year bais through 2006. They are now being reported on a fiscal year basis consistent with how burials are reported to the
. The Curbside recycling collection program began April 1, 201

. The former Weed Park Pool did not open for the 2003 season due to mechanical problems. The Aquatic Center replaced the former pool and opened for the 2004 se.
The decline in adult program participants in 2005 is due to the City no longer organizing the adult softball league. A private organization now coordinates this l¢
. In 2007/2008, parking was reconfigured in the downtown area. Parking meters were removed from Second Street and free 3-hour parking was established. The numt



Function/Department

Public Safety:
Police
Stations
Patrol vehicles
Fire
Fire stations
Aerial tower
Fire pumpers
Water Tender
Hazmat vehicle
Ambulances
Culture and recreation:
Library
Art center and museum
Parks and recreation:
Parks
Park acreage
Swimming pools
Softball and baseball diamonds
Soccer fields
Tennis courts
Cemeteries
Cemetery acreage
Public works:
Miles of streets
Business-type activities
Transit:
Buses
Golf course
Airport:
Airport
Primary runway length (in feet)
Solid waste:
Transfer station/recycling center
Refuse collection vehicles
Water pollution control:
Plants
Daily capacity (in gallons)

Source: City of Muscatine records

City of Muscatine, lowa
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Department
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 18

(Unaudited)
2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 12 12
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
18 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
258 246 254 254 254 254 254 254 254 254
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1
19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
10 8 8 8 8 8 10 10 10 8
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80
138 139 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 140
10 10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
15 million 15 million 15 million 15 million 15 million 15 million 15 million 15 million 16.4 million 16.4 million
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Muscatine, lowa
Muscatine, lowa

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Muscatine (the City), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2013. The
City’s June 30, 2012 financial statements have been restated due to the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 65 to write off bond issuance assets. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who
audited the financial statements of Muscatine Power & Water as described in our report on the City’'s
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal
control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those
auditors.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are described in Part IV of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Comments involving statutory or other legal matters about the City’s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2013, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures during our audit of the
basic financial statements of the City. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretation of those
statues.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%&%&7 ce,

Davenport, lowa
December 5, 2013
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Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; and
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required By OMB Circular A-133

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Muscatine, lowa
Muscatine, lowa

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Muscatine’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.The City’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

The City’s basic financial statements include Muscatine Power & Water which are not included in the
schedule during the year ended June 30, 2013. Our audit, described below, did not include this
organization as it did not receive federal awards and they engaged other auditors to perform their audit.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

/%c-%@ e~

Davenport, lowa
December 5, 2013
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Pass-Through

CFDA Grantor's
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 1A049V0O0090/0094 1,551,323
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 JAO49AF0060/0068 192,243
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 |1AO49FSF003/004 58,516
Subtotal 1,802,082
Public and Indian Housing Operating Subsidy 14.850 1A04900000113D 92,005
Public Housing Capital Funds Program 14.872 JAO5P049501-11 171,006
Total 2,065,093
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through lowa Department of Transportation:
Formula Grants for Other than Urbanized Areas 20.509 18-0030-533-13 255,035
Training Fellowship 20.509 TF 2013-014 177
Subtotal 255,212
Job Access/Reverse Commute Grant 20.516 37-X013-533-13 59,799
New Freedoms Program 20.521 57-X002-533-13 7,656
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STP-U-5330(614)--27-70 56,232
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 EDP-5330(613)--7Y-70 17,583
Subtotal 73,815
Passed through lowa Department of Public Safety:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 12-02, Task 8 1,995
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 13-02, Task 8 4,858
Subtotal 6,853
Total 403,335
Federal Aviation Administration
Direct:
Airport Improvement Program:
Airport Runway Lighting Improvements 20.106 AIP-3-19-0063-15 4,576
Airfield Maintenance 20.106 AIP 3-19-0063-17-2012 63,211
Airport Obstruction Removal 20.106 AIP 3-19-0063-18-2012 50,756
Subtotal 118,543

(Continued)
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Pass-Through

CFDA Grantor's
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct:
Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (Byrne/JAG) Program 16.738 2012-DJ-BX-0179 14,045
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710 2011-UM-WX-0050 129,465
Passed through lowa Department of Justice,
Stop Violence Against Women Grant 16.588 VW-13-58A 5,713
Passed through lowa Governor's Alliance on Substance Abuse and
Muscatine County,
ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Program/Grant
to Units of Local Government 16.803 10-JAG-42612 29,707
Methamphetamine Drug Hot Spots Grant Program 16.710 09-Hotspots/Interdiction-03 1,902
Total 180,832
Office of National Drug Control Policy
Passed through lowa Department of Public Safety:
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Grant 07.G11MWO0002A G11MWO0002A 339
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Grant 07.G12MWO0002A G12MWO0002A 34,655
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Grant 07.G13MWO0002A G13MWO0002A 36,112
Total 71,106
U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through State of lowa and Generations Area Agency on Aging,
Senior Community Service Employment Program 17.235 N/A 22,795
Environmental Protection Agency
Passed through lowa Department of Natural Resources:
ARRA - State Clean Diesel Grant Program 66.040 13-ESDAQB0001-7260CIIAM 1,700
United States Department of Energy
Passed through State of lowa Office of Energy Independence,
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant
Program (EECBG) Recovery 81.128 EECBG-11-18811 11,124
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant
Program (EECBG) Recovery 81.128 EECBG-11-21185 16,889
Total 28,013
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through Scott County, lowa,
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 EMW-2011-SS-0071-S01-24 75,600
Passed through lowa Department of Public Defense,
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 HMGP-Dr-1930-0028 01 18,185
Total 93,785
Total 2,985,202

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City
of Muscatine, lowa (the City) and Muscatine County Solid Waste Agency, its discretely presented
component unit and is presented on the accrual or modified accrual basis of accounting. All federal
financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal financial assistance
passed through other governmental agencies expended during the year, is included in the schedule. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States and Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts
presented in the schedule may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the basic
financial statements.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue from federal awards is recognized when the City has done everything necessary to establish its
right to revenue. In the governmental funds, revenue from federal grants is recognized when they become
both measureable and available. For proprietary funds, revenue from federal grants is recognized when
they are earned. Expenditures of federal awards are recognized in the accounting period when the liability
is incurred and has met the eligibility criteria of the federal grant.

Note 3. Subrecipients

The City provided federal awards during year ended June 30, 2013 to subrecipients as follows:

Amount
Federal CFDA Provided to
Program Title Number Subrecipients
Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (Byrne/JAG) 16.738 $ 8,555

Program

Note 4. Total by Program

The total for the Public Safety partnership and Community Policing Grants CFDA No. 16.710 was
$131,367.
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Corrective Action or

Number Comment Status Other Explanation
Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting
12-IV-A Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2012 Corrected

exceeded the amount budgeted in the debt
service function.
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2013

I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with

Section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

Identification of major program:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

(Continued)
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Findings Related to the Financial Statement Audit as Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

A. Internal Controls
None reported
B. Compliance Findings
None reported
Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards
A. Internal Controls
None reported
B. Compliance Findings
None reported
Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting
13-IV-A — Certified Budget: No disbursements exceeded the amount budgeted.

13-IV-B — Questionable Expenditures: No questionable disbursements were noted.

13-1V-C - Travel Expense: No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of spouses of
City officials or employees were noted.

13-1V-D - Business Transactions: Business transactions between the City and City officials or
employees are detailed as follows:

Transaction Description Amount

Temporary employment senices $ 345

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(3)(j) of the Code of lowa, this transaction does not appear to
represent a conflict of interest since total transactions with the individual were less than $1,500
during the fiscal year.

13-IV-E - Bond Coverage: Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions.

13-1V-F — Council Minutes: No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Council minutes but were not.

13-1V-G — Deposits and Investments: No instances of nhoncompliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of lowa and the City’s investment
policy were noted.

13-1V-H — Revenue Notes: No instances of noncompliance with the provisions of the City’'s
revenue bond resolutions.
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City of Muscatine, lowa

Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Anticipated
Current Date of
Number Comment Corrective Action Plan Completion Contact Person
None Noted
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Muscatine / 421464-40 / CDC
(Form of)
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate™) is executed and delivered by
the City of Muscatine, lowa (the “Issuer”), in connection with the issuance of $2,575,000 General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014 (the “Bonds”) dated June 2, 2014. The Bonds are
being issued pursuant to a resolution of the Issuer approved on May 15, 2014 (the “Resolution”). The
Issuer is currently compliant in all material respects with its continuing disclosure undertakings under the
Rule, as hereinafter defined, and has filed all required reports for the past five years. However, the City
inadvertently failed to properly calculate the due date for the June 30, 2011 annual reports. When
calculating the due date, a 360 day year was used versus the actual number of days in the year. While not
material, this miscalculation resulted in the report being filed 5 days late. The City has taken steps to
assure future compliance with its Disclosure Covenants, and has filed the June 30, 2012 and June 30,
2013 annual reports timely. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12.

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply
to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

“Beneficial Owner” shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to
vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding
Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any
Bonds for federal income tax purposes.

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean the Dissemination Agent, if any, designated in writing by
the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such designation.

“Holders” shall mean the registered holders of the Bonds, as recorded in the registration books of
the Registrar.

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

“Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board” or “MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board, 1900 Duke Street, Suite 600, Alexandria, VA 22314.

“National Repository” shall mean, at any point in time, a nationally recognized municipal
securities information repository which is then recognized as such by the SEC; as of the date of this
Disclosure Certificate, the sole National Repository is the MSRB, which accepts filings via its Electronic
Municipal Market Access (EMMA) system at http://emma.msrb.org.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required
to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Repository” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository.
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“Rule” shall mean Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

“State” shall mean the State of lowa.
“State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State
as a state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the Securities and Exchange

Commission. As of the date of this Certificate, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

@) As soon as available but not later than 210 days after the end of the Issuer’s fiscal year
(presently June 30), commencing with the report for the 2013-2014 fiscal year, the Issuer shall, or shall
cause the Dissemination Agent (if any) to, provide to each National Repository an electronic copy of its
Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate and
which Annual Report is in a format and accompanied by such identifying information as prescribed by
the MSRB. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents
comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this
Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the Issuer may be submitted
separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing of
the Annual Report if they are not available by that date. If the Issuer's fiscal year changes, it shall give
notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

(b) If the Issuer has designated a Dissemination Agent, then not later than fifteen (15)
business days prior to the filing date in Section 3(a), the Issuer shall provide the Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent.

(c) If the Issuer is unable to provide an Annual Report by the date required in subsection
(a), the Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent (if any) to, send a notice to each National
Repository stating (1) that there has been a failure to provide an Annual Report on or before the date
specified in this Disclosure Certificate and (2) the date by which the Issuer will be able to provide the
required report.

(d) The Dissemination Agent (if any) shall file a report with the Issuer certifying that the
Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, stating the date it was
provided and confirming that it was filed with each National Repository.

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the following:

@) The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal year, prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board as modified in accordance with the governmental accounting standards promulgated
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board or as otherwise provided under State law, as in
effect from time to time, or, if and to the extent such financial statements have not been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, noting the discrepancies therefrom and the
effect thereof. If the Issuer's audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual
Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited
financial statements in a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official
Statement, and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report
when they become available.
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(b) Tables, schedules or other information contained in the Official Statement for the Bonds,
under the following captions:

1/1/2012 VALUATIONS
LARGER TAXPAYERS

DEBT LIMIT

DIRECT DEBT

OVERLAPPING DEBT
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEVIES & TAX COLLECTIONS
TAX RATES

The information to be provided pursuant to Section 4(b) may be unaudited, but is to be
certified as to accuracy and completeness in all material respects by the lIssuer’s chief financial
officer to the best of his or her knowledge, which certification may be based on the reliability of
information obtained from governmental or other third party sources. Any or all of the items listed
above may be included by specific reference to other documents, including official statements of debt
issues of the Issuer or related public entities, which are available to the public on the MSRB’s web
site or are filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document included by reference
is a final official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
The Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material;

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events
affecting the tax status of the security;

(7) Modifications to rights of security holders, if material;

(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;

(9) Defeasances;

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material;

(11) Rating changes;
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(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person;

Note to paragraph (12): For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (12), the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent
or similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in
any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if
such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or
officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation
by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of
the assets or business of the obligated person;

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated person
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or
the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its
terms, if material;

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if
material; and

(b) If a Listed Event described in paragraph (2), (7), (8) (but only with respect to bond calls
under (8)), (10), (13) or (14) above has occurred and the Issuer has determined that such Listed Event is
material under applicable federal securities laws, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner but not later than ten
business days after the occurrence of such Listed Event, promptly file a notice of such occurrence with
each National Repository.

(c) If a Listed Event described in paragraph (1), (3), (4), (5), (6), (8) (but only with respect to
tender offers under (8)), (9), (11) or (12) above has occurred the Issuer shall, in a timely manner but not
later than ten business days after the occurrence of such Listed Event, promptly file a notice of such
occurrence with each National Repository. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events
described in subsections (a) (8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice
(if any) of the underlying event is given to Holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Resolution.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of
all of the Bonds or upon the Issuer's receipt of an opinion of nationally recognized Bond counsel to the
effect that, because of legislative action or final judicial action or administrative actions or proceedings,
the failure of the Issuer to comply with the terms hereof will not cause Participating Underwriters to be
in violation of the Rule or other applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice
of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The
Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report
prepared by the Issuer pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be
Public Financial Management, Inc.
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Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

@) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 4, or 5(a), it may
only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect
to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted:;

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of
nationally recognized Bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the
original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as
well as any change in circumstances; and

(© The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Holders of the Bonds in the
same manner as provided in the Resolution for amendments to the Resolution with the consent of
Holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized Bond counsel, materially impair the
interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the
Issuer shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a
narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the
case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating
data being presented by the Issuer. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to
be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same
manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the
change is made will present a comparison or other discussion in narrative form (and also, if feasible, in
guantitative form) describing or illustrating the material differences between the financial statements as
prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former
accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed
to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth
in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in
any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this
Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of
occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this Certificate to update such information or include
it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision
of this Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as
may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order,
to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. Direct, indirect,
consequential and punitive damages shall not be recoverable by any person for any default hereunder
and are hereby waived to the extent permitted by law. A default under this Disclosure Certificate
shall not be deemed an event of default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy under this
Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure
Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The
Dissemination Agent, if any, shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this
Disclosure Certificate, and the Issuer agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its

5-
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officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it
may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder,
including the costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) of defending against any claim of
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct.
The obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the
Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of
the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial
Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Dated: June 2, 2014

CITY OF MUSCATINE, IOWA

By
Mayor
Attest:
By
City Clerk
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City of Muscatine
Notes on Issuing Additional Debt Between "Scheduled” Every Other Year Bond Issues
5/6/2014

The attached schedule shows estimated impacts to the City's property tax rate if additional
debt is issued 6-1-15. This is based on having equal debt payments in each of the 10 years of
the debt issue for debt of $500,000, $1,0600,000, $1,500,000, $2,000,000, or $2,500,000. The
impact on the tax rate would be approximately $.07/$1,000 of valuation for each $500,000
of debt issued.

Bond issuance costs are incurred with each debt issue. The issuance costs for the recent bond
issue are estimated at $44,500. (This includes costs for the financial advisor, bond attorney,
and the bond rating.)

The City can choose to proceed with select capital projects prior to issuance of debt by

approving a "Resolution Relating to Financing of Certain Proposed Projects and Establishing
Compliance with Reimbursement Bond Regulations under the Internal Revenue Code".

In effect, after the Resolution is adopted the City may use existing funds (if available) to cash flow
project costs and then have those costs reimbursed when the bonds are issued. This Resolution is
required prior to actual contract costs being incurred in order to meet Internal Revenue Code
requirements. (Engineering design costs can be incurred prior to this Resolution being adopted.)

If the design has been completed for specific projects (and also if bids have been received for
the projects), the specific amount of bond financing would be known at the time of the debt
issuance.

Most projects financed with the 2014 bond issue had a portion of their project costs funded
from grants. This included Cedar, Colorado, and the Airport projects. “Leveraging" local funds
with grants or other outside funding allows local dollars to go further in completing major projects.

For projects in the City's Capital Improvements Plan, City staff plans to look for outside funding to
assist in financing these projects if it is available. Major projects identified for the 2016 bond issue
include the local share of the costs of Mulberry Avenue reconstruction and local share of the
Airport Runway 6/24 Reconstruction project, with both projects partially funded by federal grants.
Also identified for the 2016 issue are improvements to the Art Center including the HVAC system.
Outside funding will be sought to fund a portion of the cost of the Art Center improvements.

The Art Center HVAC and other improvements are considered a "general corporate purpose” by

the State Code of lowa and as such there are limitations for bonding project costs exceeding $700,000

unless a referendum is held. The referendum would require approval by 60% of voters. City staff
will be working with the City's bond attorney for options in funding this project.

Per a previous PFM analysis, the City can issue $2.5 million in new debt in 2016 and maintain

the same debt service tax levy rate. Based on interest savings from the recent bond issue, the City
could issue $3 million in debt in 2016 and keep the same tax rate IE no bond principal was paid in
the first two years of the issue. This is something the City has been trying to avoid.

The attached document from Moody's outlines the City's current rating and the progress we have
made. Deviations from our planned path could negatively affect the City's bond rating.

Recommendation - Hold off on borrowing additional funds until 2016. At that time, the City could
consider bonding in excess of the $2.5 million.



City of Muscatine
Estimated Impact of Additicnal Debt Issuance - Various Scenarios
Based on Assumptions Noted Below

Assumptions for Preliminary Analysis Purposes Only:
10 Year Issue
3% Interest
Assumes Even Annual Payments
{(Actual would be structured
around existing debt after
FY 14/15)
Assumes Debt Issued 6-1-15
Assumes FY 15 Taxable Valuations

Debt Amount Scenarios

Debt Amounts S 500,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,500,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 2,500,000
(Include bond issuance costs for
preliminary analysis purposes)

Based on 3% annual interest on
10-year issue with even annual
payments $ 58,760 $ 117,520 $ 176,280 S 235,040 $ 293,800

Taxable Valuations (Assumes FY 15
Debt Service Taxable Valuation ) $ 825,838,976 S 825,838,976 $ 825,838,976 $ 825,838,976 $ 825,838,976

Equivalent Tax Rate for Annual

Payments (per $1,000 of Valuation) S 0.07115 S 0.14230 S 0.21346 S 0.28461 S 0.35576
Current City Tax Rate (per $1,000 of S 15.67209 $ 15.67209 $ 15.67209 S 15.67209 S 15.67209
Valuation)
Current Rate Plus Est'd Additional S 1574324 $ 15.81439 S 15.88555 $ 15.95670 $ 16.02785
Percent Increase in Tax Rate 0.45% 0.91% 1.36% 1.82% 2.27%

Prepared by: Finance Department (NL}
Date: 5/5/14




MooDY’s
INVESTORS SERVICE

New Issue: Moody's assigns Aa2 to Muscatine, IA's $2.6M GO Bonds, Ser. 2014

Global Credit Research - 29 Apr 2014
Maintains Aa2 on $16.6M of post-sale GOULT debt

MUSCATINE (CITY OF) IA
Cities (including Towns, Villages and Townships)
1A

Moody’s Rating
ISSUE RATING
General Obligtaion Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014 Aa2
Sale Amount $2,575,000
Expected Sale Date 05/01/14
Rating Description General Obligation
Moody’s Outiook
Opinion

NEW YORK, April 29, 2014 —Moody's Investors Service has assigned a Aa2 rating to the City of Muscatine's (1A)
$2.6 million General Obligation Corporate Pumpose Bonds, Series 2014. Debt service payments are secured by
the city’s general obligation unlimited tax (GOULT) pledge. Proceeds from the sale of bonds will finance various
capital projects including street, airport, and library improvements and acquiring ambulance equipment. Moody's
rnalin’rains the Aa2 rating on the city's outstanding general obligation debt, of which there will be $16.6 million post-
sale.

SUMMARY RATINGS RATIONALE

The Aa2 rating reflects the city's stable, moderately-sized tax base located along the Mississippi River: trend of
balanced financial operations and improving reserve levels: average debt burden; and moderate exposure to
unfunded pension liabilities.

STRENGTHS

- Stable economy with low unemployment

- Sound financial management with improving reserve levels

CHALLENGES

- Smaller tax base size and lower socio-economic indices compared to similarly rated entities

- Tax base concentration, with top ten taxpayers comprising 17.6% of assessed valuation
MODERATELY-SIZED TAX BASE LOCATED ALONG MISSISSIPPI RIVER IN SOUTHEAST IOWA

We expect the city's tax base to remain stable due to its strong commercial and industrial presence and continued
growth through voluntary annexations of land adjacent to the city's borders. Located in southeast lowa (Aaa
stable) along the Mississippi River, the city's $1.2 billion tax base has remained stable over the past five years,
despite the national economic downturn, with 0.9% average annual growth. Residential development is modest
with approximately 10 new single family homes built each year, but voluntary annexations continue to add homes
to the community. Most recently, in 2013, the city annexed 1,200 acres inhabited by 933 residents on the
northeast side of the city.



The city's commercial and industrial property is substantial, comprising 43% of the city's 2012 taxable valuation.
There is some tax base concentration with the top ten taxpayers comprising 17.6% of taxable valuation in 2012,
The top two taxpayers, Grain Processing Corporation (also known as GPC, 5.0% of assessed value) and HNI
Corporation (also known as Hon Industries, 3.9% of assessed value), are both headquartered in the city. Notably,
in March 2014, GPC was assessed a $1.5 million penally as a result of a lawsuit initiated by the state Attorney
General related to air and water pollution. Additionally, the consent decree requires GPC to make improvements to
its plant and operations which the company estimates that will cost $15 million to $17 million in capital expenses,
$1 million per year in operating costs, and $4 million to $12 million per year in increased fuel costs. In addition,
construction is in progress on a $110 million GPC plant expansion and improvement project. Currently, GPC's
operations are anticipated to remain stable and there are no expectations of reductions in workforce. In addition to
being the second largest taxpayer, Hon Industries is the city's largest employer with 3,400 employed. Over the
past few years, Hon has closed manufacturing fines nationally, but has brought scme of those jobstoits
headquarters, increasing the number of employees located in Muscatine. Additional recent expansions within the
city include a $24 miilion expansion at H.J. Heinz Company that is expected to add 106 new jobs and an $18.5
million renovation to the Trinity-Muscatine Hospital. As of January 2014, Muscatine County's unemployment rate
was a low 5.3%, which is on par with the state's 5.4% rate but well below the national rate of 7.0% for the same
time period. Resident income levels are below average, with median family income (2006-2010 average) at 88.9%
of national levels according to American Community Survey estimates.

IMPROVED FINANCIAL RESERVES; BALANCED FINANCIAL OPERATIONS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE

We expect the city's financial position to remain stable given management's demonstrated history of
conservatively budgeting revenues and expenditures. Historically, the city's reserve and liquidity levels have been
lower than the median Aa2 levels, with its unreserved General Fund balance remaining under 14% of General
Fund revenues through fiscal 2011. Management has actively been working to improve reserves and diversify ils
revenue. As part of this effort, the city achieved a $1 million operating surplus in fiscal 2012, bringing the city's
unassigned fund balance up to $3.3 million, or 19.4% of Genera! Fund revenues. In November 2013, the city
council passed a new fund balance policy to maintain a minimum of two months, or 16.7%, of expenditures in
unreserved fund balance, and any excess reserves are to be used for one-time expenditures. In fiscal 2013, the
city conservatively budgeted for a $130,000 use of reserves, but due to favorable variances to budget achieved an
$87,000 operating surplus. The city council also assigned a portion of its fund balance for one-time capital
spending, bringing its unassigned General Fund balance down to $3.2 million, or 18.5% of revenues. The re-
estimated fiscal 2014 budget includes a $300,000 use of General Fund reserves, but due to conservative ‘
budgeting, management estimates the use of reserves will be less than projected. The fiscal 2015 budget includes
a $100,000 use of General Fund reserves, but again management estimates the use of reserves will be less than
budgeted. If the city draws down the full amounts budgeted both 2014 and 201 5, the city will still remain above its
new fund balance policy of 16.7% in reserve.

City operations are primarily funded with property taxes, which comprised 59% of General Fund revenues infiscal
2013. The city levies the statutory maximum $8.10 for general operations, but it is not levying the $0.27 emergency
levy nor is it levying the full amount for employee benefits. If the city were to levy the full amount for both of these
levies in fiscal 2015, it could raise an additional $585,000 in revenue. Addttionally, the city retains the ability to
increase its natural gas franchise fee from 1.0% to 5.0%, which would result in approximately $400,000 of
additional revenue. The city also has a 1% Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) which expires June 30, 2019. The
LOST revenues are designated to be used for street (20%) ard sewer (80%) improvements and generate a total of
approximately $2.5 million annually. The city anticipates going to voters of a renewal prior to its expiration as the
revenues significantly reduce the annual borrowing needs of the city.

AVERAGE DEBT BURDEN WITH LIMITED FUTURE BORROWING

Given the city's limited borrowing plans and rapid repayment schedule, we believe the city's debt position will
remain manageable over the long term. Inclusive of the current issue, the city's net direct debt is slightly above
average at 1.4% of full value. Amortization is rapid with 100% of the city’s debt repaid within 10 years. In fiscal
2013, debt service, net of refunded debt, comprised a manageable 10.2% of operating expenditures. The city
typically issues $1 miltion to $2.5 million in general obligation debt every other year to finance projects included in
its Capital Improvement Program. Accordingly, additional debt issuances are not expected until fiscal 2016. All of
the city's debt is in fixed rate mode and the city is not party to any derivative or swap agreements.

MODERATE EXPOSURE TO UNFUNDED PENSION LIABILITIES
The city's fiscal 2013 adjusted net pension liability (ANPL) is $42.9 million, equivalent to 3.47% of full valuation and



2.33 times operating revenue. The ANPL is based upon our allocation of the reported unfunded liabilities of two
multi-employer cost-sharing pension plans to which the city contributes as well as our methodology of adjusting
reported pension information. City employees are members of the lowa Public Employees Retirement System
(IPERS) and the Municipal Fire and Pclice Retirement System of lowa (MFPRSI). The city's fiscal 2013
contribution to the two plans was $1.6 million, or 8% of operating expenditures. We allocated the reported unfunded
liabiliies of the plans to the city based on its share of total public employer contributions (less contributions of self-
supporting enterprises). The city's share of reported unfunded pension liabilities allocated by Moody's is an
estimated $16.1 million in fiscal 2013.

WHAT COULD CHANGE THE RATING -UP

- Substantial expansion and diversification of the tax base

- Improved socioeconomic indicators

- Continued growth in reserves, bolstering financial flexibility and liquidity
WHAT COULD CHANGE THE RATING - DOWN

- Weakening of the local economy as evidenced by valuation declines, increased unemployment, or deterioration
of the city's socio-economic profile

- Declines in General Fund reserves and liquidity

- Substantial increase in the city's debt burden

KEY STATISTICS:

Tax Base Size - Fiscal 2013 Full Value: $1.2 billion

Full Value Per Capita: $54,108

Socioeconomic Indices - MFI: 88.9% of the US

Fiscal 2013 Available Operating Funds Balance: 18.1% of revenues

5-Year Dollar Change in Available Operating Fund Balance as % of Revenues: 9.4%
Fiscal 2013 Operating Funds Cash Balance: 16.2% of revenues

5-Year Dollar Change in Cash Balance as % of Revenues: 9.3%

institutional Framework: Aa

Operating History: 5-Year Average of Operating Revenues / Operating Expenditures: 1.02x
Net Direct Debt / Full Value: 1.4%

Net Direct Debt / Operating Revenues: 0.89x

3-Year Average of Moody's Adjusted Net Pension Liability / Full Value: 3.24%

3-Year Average of Moody's Adjusted Net Pension Liability / Operating Revenues: 2.20x
PRINCIPAL METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in this rating was US Local Government General Obligation Debt published in
January 2014. Please see the Credit Policy page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For ratings issued on a program, series or category/class of debt, this announcement provides certain regulatory
disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series or category/class
of debt or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing ratings in accordance
with Moody's rating practices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this announcement provides certain



regulatory disclosures in relation to the rating action on the support provider and in relation to each particular rating
action for securities that derive their credit ratings from the support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings,
this announcement provides certain regulatory disclosures in relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in
relation to a definitive rating that may be assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in each case where
the transaction structure and terms have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in a manner
that would have affected the rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page for
the respective issuer on www.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply to the credit rating and, if applicable, the related rating
outlook or rating review.

Please see www.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody's legal
entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on www.moodys.com for additional regulatory disclosures for
each credit rating.

Analysts
Cora Bruemmer

Lead Analyst
Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Rachel Cortez

Additional Contact

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Contacts

Journalists: (212) 553-0376
Research Clients: (212) 553-1653

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
250 Greenwich Street

New York, NY 10007

USA

Mooby’s

INVESTORS SERVICE

© 2014 Moody's Corporation, Moody's Investors Service, Inc., Moody's Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and
affiiates (collectively, "MOODY'S"). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. ("MIS") AND ITS AFFILIATES ARE
MOODY'S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND RESEARCH
PUBLICATIONS PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ("MOODY'S PUBLICATION") MAY INCLUDE MOODY'S
CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS,
OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES. MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN
ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY
ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY
OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE
VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE



NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO
INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR
COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ANALYTICS, INC. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S
PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND
CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE
RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT
RATINGS NOR MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR
ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES MOODY'S
PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH
DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER
CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL
INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO CONSIDER MOODY'S CREDIT
RATINGS OR MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS IN MAKING ANY INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU
SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE
REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED,
REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON
WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable.
Because of the possibility of human or mechanical emror as well as other factors, however, all information contained
herein is provided "AS IS® without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the
information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be
reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and
cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process or in preparing
the Moody's Publications.

To the extent permitied by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors
and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or
damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to
use any such information, even if MOODY'S or any of its direclors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or damages, including but not limited
to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial
instrument is not the subject of a particular credit rating assigned by MOODY'S.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors
and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory losses or damages caused to any person or entity,



including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability
that, for the avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the
control of, MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers,
arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such
information.

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH RATING OR OTHER
OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER
WHATSOEVER.

MIS, a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation ("MCO"), hereby discloses that most
issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and
preferred stock rated by MIS have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MIS for appraisal and rating
services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain policies
and procedures to address the independence of MIS's ratings and rating processes. Information regarding certain
affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold ratings from
MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually
at www.moodys.com under the heading "Shareholder Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and
Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”

For Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services
License of MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336869 and/or
Moody's Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended
to be provided only to "wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By
continuing to access this document from within Australia, you represent to MOODY'S that you are, or are
accessing the document as a representative of, a "wholesals client” and that neither you nor the entity you
represent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of
section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY'S credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a
debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is avaiable to
retail clients. it would be dangerous for “retail clients” to make any investment decision based on MOODY'S credit
rating. If in doubt you should contact your financial or other professional adviser.






In 2006, Council supported the creation
of the West Hill Historic D1s{'r1c’t -




$1,601,998 1nves‘ted in restoration of
historic homes in West Hﬂl Historie
District since 2006

$400,501 in Jccu:::é- crécli’cs ’trS-= help res’co.re
historic homes in West Hill Historic
District |

Creates Jobs:
ina typical rehabilitation project,
60-70% of total cost is labor

-labor is almost always hired locally
and money is spent locally, stimulating
local economy

source.

Economic Benefits of HP April 2011 pdf7dooID=9023













Saturday series of historic
photographs of Muscatine featuring

many lost and current structures
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@MY Solid Waste Pick Up
sl Reminders

Solid waste contimer vsed must be the issued 1Gireen) contaner by
the City of Muscatine,

Al waste must be put in the City issued contener

A waste mast be hageaed

Container must have 3 1, space aroune amd casy access

for colleciion to ocour

Allitems for collection must be out no carlier than 4:00 pm the day before
collection and no Later than 3:00 am the day of cotlection
Visht wiwsvmuseatineiows, gov or S63. 26390689 for more information,
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